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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF 
MERGER BY AND AMONG 
WS TELECOM, INC. D/B/A EXPETEL, 
XFONE, 1NC. 
AND XFONE USA. INC. 

JOINT APPLICATION 

WS Telecom, Inc. d/b/a Expetel (“WS Telecom”), XFONE, Inc. (IIXFONE‘I) and 

Xfone, USA, Inc. (YJSA” or “Acquisition Sub”)(together referred to as the “Applicants”), 

pursuant to the applicable Statutes of the State of Florida and the Commission’s Rules and 

Regulations currently in effect and/or subsequently enacted, hereby request Commission 

approval of an Agreement and Plan of Merger’ (the “Agreement”) whereby WS Telecorn 

will merge with and into USA, a wholly owned subsidiary of XFONE (hereinafter, the 

“Transaction”). (See pre and post-transaction charts attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 

Ex h i b it ‘‘ C ” ) . 

The practical effect of the Transaction will be that WS Telecom will be merged into 

USA and the present shareholders of WS Telecom will receive shares in USA’s parent 

corporation, XFONE, in accordance with t h e  terms of the Agreement. USA will be the 

survivor2 of the Transaction. The Applicants will enter into a Management Operating 

A copy of the Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 7 

2 In connection with the filing of this Application, Applicant, USA, which is 
not presently certified as a telecommunications provider, is seeking certification to 
operate as both a local and long distance telecommunications service provider in this 
state, which Application is being filed simultaneously herewith. 
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Agreement (“Management Agreement”) by which WS Telecom will continue to operate and 

provide telecommunications services to its customers until such time as USA obtains the 

necessary authority to provide telecommunications services in the states it intends to 

operate in, and the Public Service Commission of each such state approves the 

Transaction. After the Transaction, USA will continue to operate, in all material respects, 

as WS Telecom currently operates. The technical, managerial and financial personnel of 

USA will be substantially comprised of WS Telecom’s management team.3 USA will 

continue to provide service under USA’s operating authorities, certifications and tariffs, to 

the extent permitted by this Commission. USA has an application for certification which 

is being filed simultaneously with this Application for Approval of Agreement and Plan of 

Me rg e r. 

WS Telecom, XFUNE and USA hereby jointly seek Commission approval of the 

Agreement, which will result in a change in ownership of the capital stock of WS Telecom. 

Commission approval of the Ag 

as their customers, primarily 

combined companies which wil 

.cement will be beneficial to the involved companies as well 

due to the enhanced overall financial strength of the 

result from the transaction. Approval of the Agreement will 

not in any way be detrimental to the public interests of this state. The customers of WS 

Telecom will continue to receive from USA the same high quality service presently 

rendered to them by WS Telecom, and there will not be any increase in their rates due to 

this transaction. Customer bills will reflect a name change to Xfone USA. The customers 

of WS Telecom will be given the opportunity to switch their service from WS Telecom to 

Resumes of WS Telecom’s current management team are attached 3 

hereto as Exhibit “D.” 
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a different ~ a r r i e r . ~  Those customers who choose not to switch to a different carrier will 

continue to receive long distance service from USA under the Certificate of Public 

Convenience and Necessity, or other operating authority, issued to USA in this State. 

In support of this Application, Applicants show the following: 

I. THE PARTIES 

1. WS Telecom is a privately held Mississippi corporation with principal offices 

located at 2506 Lakeland Drive, Flowood, Mississippi 39232. WS Telecom is a non- 

dominant carrier that provides resold domestic and international long distance services 

along with UNE and resold local services. 

2. WS Telecom is authorized by the FCC to provide international services as 

a non-dominant carrier and intrastate service, pursuant to certification, registration or tariff 

requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in five (5) states. WS Telecom is a certificated 

carrier in this state.’ 

3. XFONE is a publicly held Nevada corporation with principal offices located 

at Britannia House, 960 High Road, London, UK N1294Y. XFONE is a holding company 

which does not directly offer telecommunications services, but rather owns and operates 

wholly owned subsidiaries which offer such services. 

4. USA is a privately held Mississippi corporation (which is a wholly owned 

4 The customer notification informing WS Telecom’s customers of the 
transaction is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”. 

WS Telecom, Inc. provides telecommunications services pursuant to 5 

Docket No. 020201-TX, Order No. PSC-02-0684-CO-TX, dated May 20, 2002. 
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subsidiary of XFONE) that has been formed strictly for purposes of effectuating the 

Transaction. In connection with the Transaction, WS Telecom will merge with and into 

USA and will continue to provide service under USA’s present operating authorities, 

certifications and tariffs, to the extent permitted by this Commission. USA will operate 

under a management agreement with WS Telecom until such time as USA’s application 

for authority to provide telecommunications services filed in this state is approved. 

II. DESIGNATED CONTACT 

5. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application is: 

EIlenAnn G. Sands 
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, APLLC 
3500 North Causeway Boulevard, Suite 1442 
Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Telephone: (504) 832-1 984 
Facsimile: (504) 831-0892 

with copies to: 

Ted Parsons 
2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 405 
Flowood, MS 39232 

and 

Guy Nissenson 
960 High Road 
Britannia House 
London, UK, UN Nl2-9RY 
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111. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO CONSUMMATE THE AGREEMENT 

6. The Transaction contemplates WS Telecom merging with and into USA. The 

practical effect of the merger will be the acquisition by USA of all of the outstanding and 

issued shares of WS Telecom’s common stock in exchange for shares in USA’s parent, 

XFONE. After the Transaction, USA will continue to operate, in all material respects, as 

WS Telecom currently operates, pursuant to authorization to provide telecommunications 

services in this state. USA will operate pursuant to a Management Agreement until USA’s 

authority to provide telecommunications services is granted. 

By virtue of this Transaction, and the resulting association of the two (2) 

corporate entities, both companies will realize economic, marketing and administrative 

efficiencies. Copies of financial statements for both WS Telecom and XFONE are 

attached to this Application, in globo, as Exhibit “F”. 

7. 

8. 

The parties submit that the Transaction will accomplish the following: 

XFONE, through its subsidiary USA, will acquire all of the issued 
and outstanding shares of the stock of WS Telecom by virtue of the 
merger of WS Telecom with and into USA; 

USA shall operate pursuant to a Management Operation 
Agreement until such time as this Commission grants authority for 
USA to operate as a regulated entity. 

It is respectfully represented herein that the transfer of stock as outlined 

above will be made for fair and equitable consideration to the stockholders of WS 

Telecom. 

9. The practical effect of the transaction is a change in ownership of the 

common stock of WS Telecom. USA will operate in all material respects as WS 

Telecom presently operates. The Transaction will be seamless and transparent to the 
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customers of WS Telecom. As a result, the customers of WS Telecom will in no way 

be adversely impacted by the Transaction. The customers of WS Telecom will be given 

the opportunity to switch their service from WS Telecom to a different carrier. Those 

customers who choose not to switch to a different carrier will continue to receive both 

local and long distance service from USA under the Certificate of Public Convenience 

and Necessity, or other operating authority, issued to USA in this State. 

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS 

I O .  Critical to the Transaction is the need to ensure the continuation of high 

quality service to all customers currently served by WS Telecom. The Transaction will 

serve the public interest for the following reasons: 

11. 

First, it will enhance the operating efficiencies, including market 
efficiencies, of the combined companies. 

Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers 
as communications services will be provided in a more cost-effective 
manner due to higher buying power and lower transport costs. 

Finally, it will provide improved access to capital and the ability to 
provide services to customers at competitive prices. 

Accordingly, the Transaction will serve to create a heightened level of 

operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capacity of the 

combined companies to compete in the marketplace and to provide telecommunications 

services for customers in this state at competitive rates. 

12. Applicants further request that the Commission waive the verification 

requirements of Florida Administrative Code Rule 25-4.1 18. 
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V. CONCLUSION 

13. WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicants respectfully request 

that the Commission approve the Agreement and authorize consummation of the 

Transaction as described above and further request that this application be granted without 

necessity of a hearing. 

DATED this3cCbay of June, 2004. 

Respectfully submitted, 

EllenAnn G. Sands 
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, APLLC 
3500 North Causeway Boulevard, Suite 1442 
Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Telephone: (504) 832-1 984 
Counsel for WS Telecom, Inc., XFONE, Inc. and 
Xfone USA, Inc. 
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VERIFICATION 

1 ,  Wade Spooner, am the  President of WS Telecorn, Inc. d/b/a Expetel 

Communications, and am authorized to make this verification on its behalf. The 

statements made in the foregoing Application are true of my own knowledge, except as 

to those matters which are therein stated on information and belief, and as to those 

matters I believe them to be true. 

Ngme: W a d p < n e r  
Title: Pres' ent  

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and 
County named above, this 3dehday of June, 2004. 

MY commission expires: LL+ &,&/I 

ELLEN ANN G. SANDS 
Notary Public, State of Louisiana 
My Commission is issued for life. 

Notary Number: 46206 



VERIFICATION 

I ,  Wade Spooner, am the President of XFONE USA, Inc., and am authorized to 

make this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the foregoing Application 

are true of my own knowledge, except as tu those matters which are therein stated on 

information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and 
County named above, this ,2 &day of June, 2004. 

MY commission expires: *k 



VERIFICATION 

I, k u ~ l  .@iS(~- rJ iod  am the President of XFONE, lnc., and am 

authorized to make this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the foregoing 

Application are true of my own knowledge, except as to those matters which are therein 

stated on information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them tu be true. 

Name: G.ltv mf sGmJ& 
Title: Presided 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and 
County named above, this . ~ d ?  day of June, 2004. 

-. -- 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: 0 &4 

ELLEN ANN G. SANDS 
Notary Public, State of Louisiana 
My Commission is issued for lifeL 

Notary Number: 45206 



Exhibit A 

The Agreement 
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 

By and Among 

WS TELECOM, INC., 

XFONE, INC. AND XFONE USA, INC. 

! 

975953.6114O24.19 I42 , __ 



AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 

This AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (”Agreementlt), dated as of May - 2004 
by and among WS TELECOM, INC., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Mississippi (I’WS Telecom” or Yhe Company“), XFONE, INC., a corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Nevada (“Parent”), XFone USA, hc . ,  a corporation organized under the laws 
of the State of Mississippi, which at the Closing Date shall be a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent 
(“Acquisition Sub”), and Wade Spooner and Ted Passons (the “Principals”). 

BACKGROUND 

A. The Board of Directors of each of Parent, Acquisition Sub, and the Company believe 
it is in the best interests of their respective companies and their respective shareholders that Parent 
acquire the Company through the statutory merger of the Company with and into the Acquisition Sub 
(the “Merger”) and, in furtherance thereof, have approved the Merger. 

B. Pursuant to the Merger, among other things, all of the issued and outstanding capital 
stock of the Company shall be acquired and converted into the right to receive the consideration 
upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

C. The Company and each ofthe Principals, on the one hand, and Parent and Acquisition 
Sub, on the other hand, desire to make certain representations, warranties, covenants and other 
agreements in connection with the Merger. 

D. Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, as material 
inducements to Parent and Acquisition Sub to enter into this Agreement: (i) Parent, the Escrow 
Agent (as defined herein) and the Principals are entering into an Escrow Agreement, in the form 
attached as Exhibit B (the “Escrow Ameement”); (ii) Acquisition Sub and Wade Spooner are 
entering into an Employment Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit C (the ‘‘Spooner 
Emplovrnent Ameement”) and (iii) Acquisition Sub and Ted Parsons are entering into an 
Employment Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit D (”Parsons Employment Agreement” and 
together with the Wade Spooner Employment Agreement, the “Principals Employment 
Agreements”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and representations set 
forth in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 



ARTICLE I 

TJXE MERGER 

1.01 The Merger; Effective Time. The Company shall be merged with and into 
Acquisition Sub, and Acquisition Sub shall be the surviving corporation (sometimes referred to 
herein as the ”Surviving Corporation”). The Merger shall be consummated effective at the time 
Articles of Merger attached hereto as Exhibit A, are completed, executed and filed with the 
Mississippi Secretary of State. The date and time of such consummation are referred to as the 
“Closing Date” and the ”Effective Time,” respectively. The ”Management Date“ shall mean a date 
prior to the Closing Date that the Company and the Acquisition Sub enter into a Management 
Operating Agreement; provided, however, if the Company and Acquisition Sub fail to enter into a 
Management Operating Agreement, the Management Date shall be the Closing Date. 

1.02 Effect of the Merger. At the Effective Time, (i) the separate existence of the 
Company shall cease and the Company shall be merged with and into Acquisition Sub, (ii) 
Acquisition Sub shall continue to possess all of the rights, privileges and franchises possessed by it 
and shall, at the Effective Time, become vested with and possess all property, rights, priviIeges, 
powers and franchises possessed by and all the property, real or personal, causes of action and every 
other asset of the Company, (iii) Acquisition Sub shall be responsible for all of the liabilities and 
obligations of the Company in the same manner as if Acquisition Sub had itself incurred such 
liabilities or obligations, and the Merger shall not affect or impair the rights of the creditors or of any 
persons dealing with the Company, (iv) the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of Acquisition 
Sub shall become the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Company, (vi) the Merger will 
affect the tenure in ofice of all officers and directors of the Company and the existing officers and 
directors of Acquisition Sub shall succeed to such positions with the Company solely by virtue of 
the Merger, and (vii) the Merger shall have all the effects provided by applicable Mississippi law. 

1.03 Consideration: Conversion of Shares. 

(a) Definitions. For all purposes ofthis Agreement, the following terns shall have the 
following respective meanings: 

(i) ‘‘Aggregate Merger Consideration” shall mean the: (1) the Parent Stock 
Consideration, and (2) the Parent Warrant Consideration. 

(1) “Parent Stock Consideration” shall mean a number of shares of the 
common stock of the Parent Common Stock with an agreed market value of $2,200,000 determined 
using the weighted average price of the Parent Common Stock forthe ten (1 0) trading days preceding 
the trading day immediately prior to the Management Date (which weighted average price shall in 
no event be less than $3.30 per share or greater than $4.30 per share). 
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(2) ”Parent Warrant Consideration” shall mean a number of Parent Stock 
Warrants with a value of $1,300,000 with the value calculated as of the Management Date assuming 
90% volatility of the underlying Parent Common Stock pursuant to the Black Scholes option - 
pricing model. 

(ii) “Company Common Stock” shall mean shares of the Company’s common 
stock. 

(iii) “Companv Preferred Stock” shall mean shares of the Company’s Series A 
Preferred Stock. 

(iv) “Companv Stockholders” or ”Company Shareholders” shall mean the holders 
of the Total Company Common Stock and Total Company Preferred Stock at the Effective Time, 

(v) “Escrow Agent” shall mean Trustmark National Bank or such other person 
or entity mutually agreed to by the parties to serve as an escrow agent under the Escrow Agreement. 

(vi) “GAA€”’ shall mean U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

(vii) “Know1edg;e” shall mean (i) with respect to the Company, the knowledge of 
any of the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s officers or directors or either of the Principals and the 
knowledge that such persons would have obtained of the matter represented after reasonable inquiry 
thereof under the circumstances; and (ii) with respect to the Parent, the actual knowledge of the 
Parent’s officers and the knowledge that such person would have obtained of the matter represented 
after reasonable inquiry thereof under the circumstances. 

(viii) “Material Adverse Effect” shall mean any change, event or effect that is 
materially adverse to the business, assets, fmancial condition, prospects or results of operations of 
the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. 

(ix) “Parent Common Stock” shall mean shares of the common stock of Parent. 

(x) ”Parent Stock Warrants’’ shall mean warrants convertible on a one to one basis 
into Parent Common Stock with a term of five ( 5 )  years, a strike price that is 10% above the closing 
price of the Parent Common Stock on the Closing Date with the Parent Common Stock into which 
the warrant is convertible is restricted stock. 

(xi) “SEC” shall mean the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(xii) “Total Company Common Stock” shall be the aggregate number of all shares 
of Company Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. 
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(xiii) ”Total Companv Preferred Stock” shall be the aggregate number of all shares 
of the Company Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. 

(b) The Aggregate Merger Consideration shall be allocated among the Company 
Stockholders as of the EEective Date as follows: 

(c) Each share of Company Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior 
to the Effective Time (other than Dissenting Shares as defined in Section 1.04) will be canceled and 
extinguished and be converted automatically into the right to receive upon surrender of certificate@) 
representing Company Preferred Stock (i) an amount of the Parent Stock Consideration equal to the 
product of the Parent Stock Consideration times 28.6% divided by Total Company Preferred Stock 
and (ii) an amount of the Parent Warrant Consideration equal to the product of the Parent Warrant 
Consideration times 28.6% divided by the Total Company Preferred Stock; and 

(d) Each share of Company Common Stock issued and outstanding imrnediately prior 
to the Effective Time (other than Dissenting Shares as defined in Section 1.04) will be canceled and 
extinguished and be converted automatically into the right to receive upon surrender of certificate(s) 
representing Company Common Stock (i) an amount of the Parent Stock Consideration equal to the 
product of the Parent Stock Consideration times 71.4% divided by the Total Company Common 
Stock and (ii) an amount of the Parent Warrant Consideration equal to the product of the Parent 
Warrant Consideration times 7 1.4% divided by the Total Company Common Stock. 

1.04 Dissenting Shares. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, any shares 
of Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock held by a Company Shareholder who has 
exercised and perfected appraisal rights for such Company Common Stock or Company Preferred 
Stock in accordance with the Mississippi Business Corporation Act and who has not effectively 
withdrawn or lost such appraisal rights (“Dissenting Shares”), shall not be converted into or 
represent a right to receive the consideration set forth in Section 1.03, but the holder shall only be 
entitled to such rights as are provided by the Mississippi Business Corporation Act. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1.04(a) hereof, if any holder of Dissenting 
Shares shall effectively withdraw or lose (through failure to perfect or otherwise) such holder’s 
appraisal rights under the Mississippi Business Corporation Act, then, as of the later of the Effective 
Time and the occurrence of such event, such holder’s shares shall automaticalIy be converted into 
and represent only the right to receive the consideration set forth in Section 1.03 hereof, without 
interest thereon, upon surrender of the certificate(s) representing such shares. 

(c) The Company shall give Parent (i) prompt notice of any written demand for appraisal 
received by the Company pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Mississippi Business 
Corporation Act; and (ii) the opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with 
respect to such demands. The Company shall not, except with the prior written consent of Parent 
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or as required by the Mississippi Business Corporation Act, make any payment with respect to any 
such demands or offer to settle or settle any such demands. To the extent that Parent or the Company 
makes any payment or payments to any Dissenting Shares, Parent shall be entitled to recover under 
the terns of Article VI hereof the aggregate amount by which such payment or payments exceed the 
aggregate consideration that otherwise would have been payable in respect of the stock of any 
Dissenting Shares. 

1.05 Surrender of Certificates. 

(a) Exchange Agent. Transfer OnIine, h c .  shall serve as the exchange agent (the 
“Exchange Agent”) for the Merger. 

(b) Parent to Provide Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Wmants. Upon the terns 
and subject to the conditions of Section 1.03, promptly after the Effective Time, in exchange for 
outstanding Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock, Parent shall make available 
to the Exchange Agent for exchange in accordance with this Article I, the Aggregate Consideration 
issuable pursuant to Section 1.03, less the Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Wmants being 
escrowed in accordance with Section 6.02(b) hereof (the “Escrow Shares”), which Parent shall 
deposit into the Escrow Fund as defined in Section 6.02(b) hereof. 

. 

(c)  Exchange Procedures. As promptly as practicabIe after the Effective Time, Parent 
shall cause the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of record of a certificate@) which, 
immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented outstanding Company Common Stock or 
Company Preferred Stock (the “Certificates”), whose Company Common Stock or Company 
Preferred Stock was converted into the right to receive shares of Parent Common Stock and Parent 
Stock Warrants pursuant to Section 1.03: (i) a Ietter of transmittal (which shall specify that delivery 
shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon delivery of the 
Certificates to the Exchange Agent and shall be in such form and have such other provisions as 
Parent may reasonably specify); and (ii) instructions for use In effecting f i e  surrender of the 
Certificates in exchange for certificate@) representing shares of Parent Common Stock and for the 
Parent Stock Warrants. Upon surrender of Certificates for cancellation to the Exchange Agent or 
to such other agent or agents as may be appointed by Parent, together with such letter of transmittal, 
duly completed and validly executed in accordance with the instructions thereto, the holders of such 
Certificates shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor certifxcate(s) representing the number 
of whole shares of Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants, and the Certificates so 
surrendered shall forthwith be canceled. Until so surrendered, outstanding Certificates will be 
deemed from and after the Effective Time, for all corporate purposes other than the payment of 
dividends, to evidence the ownership of the number of full shares of Parent Common Stock and 
Parent Stock Warrants into which such Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock shall 
have been so converted. 

(d) Distributions With Respect to Unexchanged Shares- No dividends or other 
distributions declared or made after the Eflfective Time with respect to Parent Common Stock with 

I 

975953. W14024.19141 5 



arecord date after the Effective Time will be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered Certificate with 
respect to the Parent Common Stock represented thereby until the holder of record of such 
Certificates shall surrender such Certificates. Subject to applicable law, as promptly as practicable 
following surrender of any such Certificates, the Exchange Agent shall deliver to the record holder 
thereof, without interest, (i) certificate(s) representing whole shares of Parent Common Stock and 
Parent Stock Warrants issued in exchange therefore, and fii) the amount of dividends or other 
distributions with a record date after the Effective Time but prior to surrender payable with respect 
to such whole shares of Parent Common Stock. 

(e) No Liability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 1.05, neither 
the Exchange Agent, the Suniving Corporation nor any party hereto shall be liable to a holder of 
shares of Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock for any amount properly paid to 
it public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law. 

1.06 Value of Parent Common Stock. For purposes of the indemnification obligations 
described in h-ticle VI hereof, the parties hereto agree that the Parent Common Stock and Parent 
Stock Warrants issued in the Merger shall be deemed to have a value per share equal to the value per 
share determined in accordance with Section 1-03. 

1.07 Treatment ofthe Cornpanv Options and Warrants. A11 outstanding options, warrants 
and other rights to purchase Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock or any other 
equity interest in the Company as set forth in Section 2.03 that remain unexercised as of the Effective 
Time will be terminated, and the rights granted thereunder will be forfeited. Prior to the Effective 
Time, the Company shall provide all necessary notifications, and obtain all necessary consents, 
releases or cancellation agreements from the holders of such options, warrants and other rights as 
Parent may reasonably require. 

I 

1.08 No Further Ownership Rights in the Company Capital Stock, The shares of Parent 
Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants paid in respect of the surrender for exchange of Company 
Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms hereof (including any 
cash paid with respect to fractional shares of Parent Common Stock or Parent Stock Warrants) shall 
be deemed to be in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to such Company Common Stock or 
Company Preferred Stock, and there shall be no further registration of transfers on the records of the 
Surviving Corporation of capital stockthat’was outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. 
If, after the Effective Time, Certificates are presented to the Surviving Corporation for any reason, 
they shall be canceled and exchanged as provided in this Article 1. 

1.09 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any certificates evidencing shares 
of Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, 
the Exchange Agent shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates, upon the 
making of an affidavit of that fact by the holder thereof, such shares of Parent Common Stock, 
Parent Stock Warrants or such cash consideration as may be required pursuant to Section 1.03 
hereof; provided, however, that Parent may, in its discretion and as a condition precedent to the 
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issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates to deliver a bond in 
such amount as it may reasonably direct against any claim that may be made against Parent or the 
Exchange Agent with respect to the certificates alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed. 

1.1 0 Taking of Necessary Action; Further Action. If at m y  time after the EfTective Time 
any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this Agreement and to vest 
the Surviving Corporation with h l l  right, title and possession to all assets, property, rights, 
privileges, powers and franchises of the Company, then the officers, directors and employees of the 
Company, Parent and Acquisition Sub are hlly authorized in the name of their respective companies 
or otherwise to take, and will take, all such I a h l  and necessary action. 

1.11 Tax Consequences. It is intended that the Merger shall constitute a reorganization 
within the meaning of Section 36X(a)(l)(A), by reason of Section 368(a)(2)(D) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and that this Agreement shall constitute a "plan 
of reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368 of the Code. 

ARTICLE I1 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY AND THE PRINCIPALS 

The Company, and each of the Principals, hereby represent and warrant to Parent and 
Acquisition Sub that on the date hereof and as of the Effective Time as though made on the Effective 
Date as follows: 

2.01 Corporate Organization. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validIy 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Company has all 
requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as 
now being conducted, and is duly licensed or qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which 
its ownership or leasing of its properties or the nature of the business conducted by the Company 
makes such licensing or qualification necessary. The copies of the Articles of Incorporation of the 
Company and the Subsidiaries and the Bylaws of the Company and the Subsidiaries, certified by its 
Secretary as of the date of this Agreement, which are being delivered to Parent and Acquisition Sub 
herewith, are complete and correct copies of such documents in effect as of the date of this 
Agreement. The minute books of the Company and the Subsidiaries contain true and complete 
records of all meetings and other corporate actions of its shareholders and their Boards of Directors 
(including all committees of their Boards of Directors). 

2.02 Subsidiaries. The only corporation, limited liability company, partnership, 
association, joint venture or other business entity that the Company owns or controls, directly or 
indirectly, is eXpeTel Communications, Inc., a Mississippi company, and Gulf Coast Utilities, Inc., 
a Mississippi company (each, a "Subsidiarv" and collectively, the "Subsidiaries") and the Company 
owns 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of each Subsidiary. Each Subsidiary is duly 
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its 
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incorporation and each has all requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties 
and to cany on its business as now being conducted. Each of the Subsidiaries is duly qualified or 
licensed to do business and in good standing in each jurisdiction in which its ownership or leasing 
of its properties or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification or licensing 
necessary. 

2.03 Capital Structure. 

(a) The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of (i) 40,000,000 shares of 
Company Common Stock, 27,056,778 shares of which are issued and outstanding and (ii) 2,000,000 
shares of Company Preferred Stock, 2,000,000 shares ofwhich are issued and outstanding. The 
capitalization of the Company is as set forth on Schedule 2.03(a) hereto. The names, addresses, 
number of shares held and domiciles of each the Company Shareholder are set forth on Schedule 
2.03(a) hereto. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.03(a) hereto, there are no shares of capital stock 
of the Company authorized, issued or outstanding. Except for Company Common Stock and 
Company Preferred Stock set forth on Schedule 2.03(a) hereto, there are no classes or series of 
ownership interests of the Company of any kind authorized, outstanding or issuable. All outstanding 
shares of Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock are duly authorized, validly 
issued, hlly paid and non-assessable, and are not subject to preemptive rights created by statute, the 
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company, or any agreement to which the Company is a 
party or by which it is bound. All shares of Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock 
have been issued in compliance with all applicable federal and state securities laws. The 
designations, powers, preferences, rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions in respect of 
Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock are as set forth in Schedule 2.03(a) hereto. 
There are no declared or accrued but unpaid dividends with respect to any shares of the Company 
capital stock and none of the Company capital stock is held in treasury. 

(b) As of the date hereof, an aggregate of 623,322 shares of Company Common Stock 
are issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options, warrants and similar rights. Schedule 2.03@) 
sets forth for each outstanding option, warrant, or similar right, the name of the holder of such right 
and the domicile address of the holder, the number of shares of Company Common Stock issuable 
upon the exercise of such right, the exercise price of such right, the vesting schedule for such right 
(including any vesting acceleration triggered by this Agreement, upon events following the Closing, 
or the transactions contemplated hereby), and whether such right is intended to qualify as an 
incentive stock option as defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the "Code"). As of the Closing Date, all such options, warrants or other rights, written or unwritten, 
to purchase my of the Company's authorized or unissued capital stock shall have been exercised or 
will have terminated. There are no outstanding or authorized stock appreciation, phantom stock, 
profit participation, or other similar rights with respect to the Company. There are no voting trusts, 
proxies, or other agreements or understandings with respect to Company Common Stock and 
Company Preferred Stock. The shareholders of the Company have good, valid and marketable title 
to Company Common Stock and Company Preferred Stock free and clear of any claim, lien, pledge, 
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charge, security interest options, charges, assessments or other encumbrance of any nature 
whatsoever. 

(c) The requisite vote required to approve the Merger under Mississippi law, the 
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and any other agreement to which the Company or any 
Shareholder of the Company is a majority of the Company Preferred Stock voting as a class and a 
majority of the Company Common Stock voting as a class. 

(d) The authorized capital stock, membership interests or other ownership interests 
(cokctively, the “Equitv Interests”) of each Subsidiary, as well as the number of such shares issued 
and outstanding, are set forth on Schedule 2.03(d). A11 of the issued and outstanding Equity 
Interests of each Subsidiary have been duly authorized and are validly issued, fully paid and 
nonassessable. The Company holds of record and owns beneficially all of the outstanding Equity 
Interests of each Subsidiary, fiee and clear of any charges, liens, encumbrances or security interests 
and no Equity Interests of any Subsidiary are held in treasury. There are not now, and at the Effective 
Time there will not be, any existing options, warrants, calls, subscriptions or other rights or other 
agreements or commitments obligating the Company or any Subsidiary to issue, transfer or sell any 
of the Equity Interests of any Subsidiary or my other securities convertible into or evidencing the 
right to subscribe for any such shares. Except for interests in the Subsidiaries, neither the Company 
nor any Subsidiary has any investment or interest in any entity. 

2.04 Authority. The Company and each of the Principals have all requisite power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement and any Related Agreement (as defined below) to which they 
are party and to consurnmate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, any ReIated Agreement to which the Company is party and the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by 
all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company, subject to the approval of the Company 
Shareholders. No further action is required on the part of any of the Principals to authorize the 
Agreement, any Related Agreement to which they are a party and the transactions contemplated 
hereby and thereby. This Agreement, any Related Agreement to which the Company is a party and 
the Merger have been unanimously approved by the board of directors of the Company, and the 
Board of Directors will recommend to the Company Shareholders to vote in favor of this Agreement, 
the Merger and the transactions contemplated thereby. This Agreement and any Related Agreement 
to which the Company and/or any of the Principals is a party has been duly executed and delivered 
by the Company and/or the Principals, as the case may be, and constitute the valid and binding 
obligations of the Company and each of the Principals, enforceable against each such party in 
accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to the laws of 
general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and rules of law 
governing specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies. For the purposes of 
this Agreement, the term “Related Agreements” shall mean the Escrow Agreement, the Parsons 
Employment Agreement, the Spooner Employment Agreement, the Articles of Merger, and any other 
agreements to which the Company andor the Principals is a party that is entered into in order to 
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. 
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2.05 No Conflict. The execution and delivery by the Company and each of the Principals 
of this Agreement and any Related Agreement to which the Company andor any Principal is aparty, 
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, will not conflict with 
or result in any violation of or default under (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) or give 
rise to a right of termination, cancellation, modification or acceleration of any obligation or loss of 
m y  benefit under (any such event, a “Conflict”): (i) any provision of the Articles of Incorporation 
or Bylaws of the Company, each as mended to date; (ii) the organizational documents of any of the 
Subsidiaries; (iii) any contract to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party, or to which any 
of the Principals, is subject; or (iv) any judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or 
regdation applicable to the Company, its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective properties or assets, 
or applicable to any of the Principals. 

2.06 Consents. No consent, waiver, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, 
declaration or filing with any court, administrative agency or commission or other federal, state, 
county, local or other foreign governmental authority, instrumentality, agency, commission, military 
division or department, inspectorate, minister, ministry or pubIic or statutory person (whether 
autonomous or not) thereof (or of any political subdivision thereof) (each, a “Governmental Entity’’), 
is required by or with respect to the Company, any Subsidiary or any of the Principals in connection 
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, any of the Related Agreements to which the 
Company, any Subsidiary or any Principal is a party, or the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby, except for: (i) such consents; waivers, approvals , orders, 
authorizations, registrations, declarations and filings as may be required by the public service 
commission in the States of Mississippi, Alabama, Florida, Louisiana and Georgia to approve the 
change of ownership/transfer of the Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity issued to the 
Company by each such authority (“PSC Approvals”); (ii) the filing of the Articles of Merger with 
the Secretary of State of the State of Mississippi; (iii) the approval of this Agreement and the 
transactions contemplated hereby by the Company Shareholders; (iv) the consents as set forth in 
Section 5.02@); and (v) such other consents, filings, approvals, registrations or declarations, the 
failure of which to make or obtain is not reasonably likely, individualIy, or in the aggregate, to have 
a Material Adverse Effect. 

2.07 The ComPany Financial Statements. Attached as Schedule 2.07 are the (i) 
consolidated unaudited balance sheet as of December 3 I , 2001 , 2002 and 2003 , and the corsolidated 
Profit and Loss Statement for the Company and its Subsidiaries for the years ended December 3 1, 
2001,2002 and 2003 and (ii) the consolidated unaudited balance sheet as of March 3 1 , 2004 and the 
consolidated Profit and Loss Statement for the Company and its Subsidiaries for the three months 
ending March 3 1 , 2004 (collectively, the “Financials”). The Financids are true, correct and accurate 
and have been based upon the information contained in the books and records of the Company and 
its Subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with GAAP except that the March 3 1 , 2004 
Financials do not have notes thereto and may be subject to normal and recurring year end 
adjustments consistently applied throughout the periods covered thereby. The Financials present 
fairly the financial condition, operating results and cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries 
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(and their predecessors) as of the dates and during the periods indicated therein. The Company’s 
unaudited balance sheet as of March 31, 2004 is referred to hereinafter as the “Current Balance 
Sheet.” The Company maintains and will continue, prior to the Effective Time, to maintain a 
standard system of accounting established and administered in accordance with GAAP. 

2.08 No Undisclosed Liabilities. Except as and to the extent reflected or reserved against 
in the Financials or as disclosed on Schedule 2.08, which shall include all the Company’s accuunts 
payable and other accrued expenses as of the date of this Agreement, the Company and its 
Subsidiaries have no liabilities, claims or obligations (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, 
unliquidated or otherwise, whether or not known to the Company or Principals or any directors, 
officers or employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries, whether due to become payable and 
regardless of when or by whom asserted) or any unrealized or anticipated losses fiom any unrealized 
or anticipated losses of a contractual nature. 

2.09 No Changes. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.09, since December 3 1 , 2003, there 
has not been, occurred or arisen any of the following with respect to the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries: 

(a) material transaction by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries except in the ordinary 
course of business consistent with past practices; 

(b) amendments or changes to the organizational documents of the Company or any of 
I its Subsidiaries; 

(c) capital expenditure or capital expenditure commitment exceeding $5,000 individually 
or $20,000 in the aggregate; 

(d) payment, discharge or satisfaction, in any amount in excess of $5,OOO in any one case, 
or $20,000 in the aggregate, of any claim, liability or obligation (absdute, accrued, asserted or 
unasserted, contingent or otherwise), other than payments, discharges or satisfactions made or given 
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices; 

(e )  destruction of, damage to or loss of any material assets or material business or loss 
of any material customer (whether or not covered by insurance); 

(f) claim of wrongful discharge or other unlawfd labor practice or action; 

(g) material change in accounting methods or practices (including any change in 
depreciation or amortization policies or rates by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries) other than 
as required by GAAP; 

(h) change in any election in respect of Taxes (as defined below), adoption or change in 
any accounting method in respect of Taxes, agreement or settlement of any claim or assessment in 
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respect of Taxes, or extension or waiver of the limitation period applicable to any claim or 
assessment in respect of Taxes; 

revaluation by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of any oftheir respective assets; 

6)  declaration, setting aside or payment of a dividend or other distribution (whether in 
cash, stock or property) in respect of any share of capital stock, or any split, combination or 
reclassification in respect of any share of capital stock, or any issuance or authorization of any 
issuance of any other securities in respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for any share of capital 
stock, or any direct or indirect repurchase or redemption of any share of capital stock (or options or 
other rights convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable therefor), other than a dividend of 200,000 
shares of the Company Common Stock to the holders of the Company Preferred Stock; 

(k) increase in the salary or other compensation (cash, equity or otherwise) payable by 
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any oficers, directors, employees or advisors, or the 
declaration, or c o d t m e n t  or obligation of any kind for the payment by the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries of a severance payment, termination payment, bonus or other additional salary or 
compensation (cash, equity or otherwise) to  any such person; 

(1) sale, lease or other disposition of any of the material assets or material properties or 
any creation of any security interest in such material assets or material properties; 

(m) loan by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any person or entity, incurring by 
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of any indebtedness, guaranteeing of any indebtedness (in 
each case, except in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, including, 
without limitation, travel and related expenses advanced to employees), issuance or saIe of any debt 
securities or guaranteeing of any debt securities of others, except for advances to employees for 
travel and business expenses in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices; 

(n) waiver or release of any material or valuable right or claim of the Company or any 
of its Subsidiaries, including any write-off or other compromise of any account receivable of the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; 

(0) the commencement, settlement, notice or threat of any lawsuit or proceeding or other 
investigation against the Company or any Subsidiary or its affairs, or any reasonable basis for any 
of the foregoing; 

a 

Cp) notice to the Company, any Subsidiary or their respective directors, oficers or 
managers or advisors of any claim of ownership by any person other than the Company of the 
intellectual property owned by or developed or created by the Company or of infringement by the 
Company of any other person’s intelIectua1 property; 
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(q) issuance or sale, or contract to issue or sell, by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries 
of any capital stock, or any securities, warrants, options or rights to purchase any of the foregoing; 

(r) agreement or modification to any agreement pursuant to which any other party was 
granted marketing, distribution, development or similar rights of any type or scope with respect to 
any products or technology of the Company or its Subsidiaries; 

(s) hiring or termination of any employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; 

(t) event or condition of any character that has had or is reasonably likely to have a 
Material Adverse Effect; or 

(u) agreement by the Company, any Subsidiary, or any officer, manager or employee 
thereof on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary to do any of the things described in the 
preceding clauses (a) through (t) (other than negotiations with Parent and its representatives 
regarding the transactions contemplated by this Agreement). 

2. IO Tax Matters. 

(a) Definition of Taxes. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term ‘‘TaxY7 or, 
collectively, ‘LTaxe~7’ shall mean: (i) any and all federal, state, local and foreign taxes, assessments 
and other governmental charges, duties, impositions and liabilities, including taxes based upon or 
measured by gross receipts, income, profits, capital gains, capital stock, sales, use and occupation, 
and value added, ad valorem, transfer, franchise, withholding, payroll, recapture, employment, 
stamp, excise and property taxes, together with all interest, penalties and additions imposed with 
respect to such amounts (whether payable directly OT by withholding, and whether or not requiring 
the filing of a Return (defined below)); (ii) any liability for the payment of any amounts of the type 
described in clause (i) above as aresult of being a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined 
or unitary group for any period; and (iii) any liability for the payment of any amounts of the type 
described in clauses (i) or (ii) above as a result of any express or implied obligation to indemnify any 
other person or as a result of any obligations under any agreements or arrangements with any other 
person with respect to such mounts and including any liability for taxes of a predecessor entity. 

(b) Taxes. All Taxes which are due and payable by the Company or its Subsidiaries and 
any interest or penalties thereon having been paid in full. All federal, state and other tax returns of 
the Cornpmy and its Subsidiaries required by law to be filed have been timely filed, and Seller and 
its Subsidiaries have paid or accrued on the balance sheets included in the Financials (including taxes 
on properties, income, franchises, licenses, sales and payroIls) which have become due pursuant to 
such returns or pursuant to any assessment. All such tax returns have been prepared in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations and are true and accurate in all material respects. The 
amounts set up as provisions for Taxes (including provision for deferred income taxes) on the 
Financials are sufficient for the payment of all unpaid federal, state, county and local taxes accrued 
for or applicable to all periods (or portions thereof) ending on or before the Effective Date. There 
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are no tax liens on any of the property of the Company or its Subsidiaries except those with respect 
to taxes not yet due and payable. There are no pending tax examinations nor has the Company or 
its Subsidiaries received a revenue agent's report asserting a tax deficiency. The Company nor its 
Subsidiaries do not expect any taxing authority to claim or assess any amount of additional taxes 
against it. No claim has ever been made by a taxing authority in a jurisdiction where the Company 
or its Subsidiaries does not file tax returns that the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may be 
subject to taxes assessed by such jurisdiction. 

1 

, . I  . .  

Copies of Seller's last three federal, state and local income tax returns are included as 
Schedule 2.10(b). No waivers of any statute of limitations relating to the payment of taxes have 
been given by the Company or its Subsidiaries and no waivers therefor have been requested by the 
Internal Revenue Service from the Company or its Subsidiaries. No extensions have been obtained 
to file any tax return which has not heretofore been filed. The Company and its Subsidiaries have 
withheld from each payment made to employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries the amount 
of all taxes (including, but not limited to, federal, state and local income taxes, Federal Insurance 
Contribution Act taxes and Unemployment Tax Act taxes) required to be withheld therefrom and 
all amounts customarily withheld therefiom, and have set aside all other employee contributions or 
payments customarily set aside with respect to such wages and have paid or will pay the same to, or 
have deposited or will deposit such payment with, the proper tax receiving officers or other 
appropriate authorities. Other than the E9 1 1 Fees shown in the Financials under the caption "Other 
Fees and Taxes Payable," all Taxes and other amounts required to be collected and paid to a third 
party as required by law from customers' payments have been timely withheld and paid by the 
Company and its Subsidiaries. 

2.11 Restrictions on Business Activities. There is no agreement (noncompete or 
otherwise), commitment, judgment, injunction, order or decree to which the Company or any 
Subsidiary is a party or otherwise binding upon the Company or any Subsidiary, which has or may 
reasonably be expected to have the effect of prohibiting or impairing in any material respect any 
business practice, any acquisition of property, the conduct of business as currently conducted or 
otherwise materially limiting the freedom of the Company or any Subsidiary to engage in any line 
of business or to compete with any person. 

2 12 Title of Properties; Absence of Liens and Encumbrances; Condition of Equipment. 

(a) The Company and each Subsidiary has good and valid title to, or, in the case of leased 
properties and assets, valid leasehold interests in, all of its properties and assets, real, personal and 
mixed, used or held for use in its business, free and clear of any Liens, except: (i) as reflected in the 
Financids; (ii) Liens for Taxes not yet due and payable; and (iii) such imperfections of title and 
encumbrances, if any, which do not detract materially from the value of, or interfere materially with 
the present use of, the property subject thereto or affected thereby. 

(b) Schedule 2.12(b) contains an accurate and complete list and description of all real 
property owned by the Company and its Subsidiaries or in which the Company and its Subsidiaries 

i 
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has a leasehold or other interest or which is used by the Company and its Subsidiaries in connection 
with the operation of its business, together with a description of each lease, sublease, license, or any 
other instrument under which the Company and its Subsidiaries claims or holds such leasehold or 
other interest or right to the use thereof or pursuant to which the Company and its Subsidiaries has 
assigned, sublet or granted any rights therein, identifjmg the parties thereto, the rental or other 
payment terms, expiration date and cancellation and renewal terms thereof, and all machinery, tools, 
equipment, motor vehicles, rolling stock and other tangible personal property (other than inventory 
and supplies), owned, leased or used by the Company or its Subsidiaries except for items having a 
value of less than $2,000 which do not, in the aggregate, have a total value of more than $10,000, 
setting forth with respect to all such listed property a summary description of all leases, liens, claims, 
encumbrances, charges, restrictions, covenants and conditions relating thereto, identifymg the parties 
thereto, the rental or other payment terns, expiration date and cancellation and renewal terms 
thereof. 

(c)  The Company or its Subsidiaries has not granted to any third party any right or license 
to use the Company’s customer lists, customer contact information, customer correspondence or 
customer licensing and purchasing histories relating to its current and former customers. 

2.13 Agreements, Contracts and Commitments. 

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 2.13(a), neither the Company nor any of its 
Subsidiaries is presently party to or bound by: 

(i) any employment, consulting or sales agreement with any employee, consultant 
or salesperson of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; 

(3) any agreement or plan relating to employee benefits or compensation, 
including without limitation any option plan or purchase plan with respect to Equity Interests of the 
Company or any Subsidiary, any of the benefits of which will be increased, or the vesting of benefits 
of which will be accelerated, by the occurrence of any of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement or the value of any of the benefits of which will be calculated on the basis of any of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; 

. 

(iii) any fidelity or surety bond or completion bond; 

(iv) any lease of personal property having an annual rental rate in excess of $2,000 
individually or $20,000 in the aggregate; 

(v) any agreement, contract or commitment relating to capital expenditures and 
involving hture payments in excess of $5,000 individualIy or $20,000 in the aggregate; 
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(vi) any agreement, contract or commitment relating to the disposition or 
acquisition of assets or any interest in any business enterprise outside the ordinary course of the 
Company’s business; 

(vi;) any payables, mortgages, indentures, guarantees, loans or credit agreements, 
security agreements or other agreements or instruments relating to the borrowing of money or 
extension of credit or evidencing any debt or any payable, debt or agreement which is secured by any 
assets of the Company or its Subsidiaries; 

(viii) any purchase order or contract for the purchase of materials or services 
involving in excess of $2,000 individually or $20,000 in the aggregate; 

any construction contracts; 

(x) any dealer, distribution, joint marketing or development agreement ox 
agreements relating to territorial arrangements, sales representation, operating or consulting 
agreements; 

(xi) any remarketer, reseller or other agreement for use or distribution of the 
Company’s products, technology or services; 

(xii) any supplier or third party provider agreements; 

(xiii) any joint venture, partnership or other management agreements; 

(xiv) 

(xv) 

any advertising, marketing, telemarketing or promotional agreements; 

any tax sharing agreement with any other party; 

(xvi) any non-compete or other agreements restricting the business in any way; 

(xvii) any independent agent or independent contractor agreements; 

(xviii) any agreements for the discount of the services or products offered by the 
Company or its Subsidiaries; 

(xix) any agreements pursuant to which the Company or its Subsidiaries is obligated 
to indemnifjl any party; 

(xx) any agreements with any current or former oacer, director, employee, 
consultant or equity holder or any partnership, corporation, joint venture or other entity in which any 
such person has an interest; 
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(mi) any irrevocable right of use or similar agreements; 

(xxji) any agreement providing for the purchase of telecommunications minutes, 
services or traffic; or 

(xxiii) any other agreement, contract or commitment that involves $2,000 
individually or $20,000 in the aggregate or more and is not cancelable without penalty within thirty 
(30) calendar days. 

(b) The Company and each Subsidiary is in compliance with and has breached, violated 
or defaulted under, or received notice that it has breached, violated or defaulted under, any of the 
terns or conditions of any agreement, contract, lease, license or commitment to which it is a party 
or by which it is bound (collectively, the “Contracts”), nor does the Company have knowledge of 
any event that would constitute such a material breach, violation or default with the lapse of time, 
giving of notice or both. Each Contract is in full force and effect and is not subject to any material 
default thereunder, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, is any party obligated to the Company 
or any Subsidiary pursuant thereto subject to any material default thereunder. 

(c )  The Company has obtained, or will obtain prior to the Effective Time, all necessary 
consents, waivers and approvals of parties to any Contract as are required thereunder In connection 
with the Merger or for such Contracts to remain in effect without modification, limitation or 
alteration after the Effective Date. Following the Effective Date, the Company and each Subsidiary 
will be permitted to exercise all of its rights under the Contracts without the payment of any 
additional amounts or consideration other than amounts or consideration which the Company or any 
Subsidiary would otherwise be required to pay had the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
not occurred. 

2.14 Interested Partv Transactions. No officer, director, employee, shareholder, manager 
or member of the Company or any Subsidiary (nor any ancestor, sibling, descendant or spouse of any 
such person, or trust, partnership or corporation in which any such person has or has had an interest) 
has or has had, directly or indirectly: (i) an interest in any entity which fwaished or sold, or W s h e s  
or sells, services, products or technology that the Company or any Subsidiary firrnishes or sells; (ii) 
any interest in any entity that purchases from or sells or furnishes to the Company or any Subsidiary, 
any goods or services; or (iii) a beneficial interest in any Contract to which the Company or any 
Subsidiary is a party; provided, however, that ownership of no more than 1% of the outstanding 
voting stock of a publicly traded corporation shall not be deemed to be an “interest in any entity” for 
purposes of this Section 2.14. 

2.1 5 Government a1 Authorization. 

(a) Each consent, license, permit, grant, certificate, approval or other authorization (i) 
pursuant to which each of the Company and its Subsidiaries currently operates or holds any interest 
in any of their properties, or (ii) which is required for the operation of its business as currently 
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conducted or the holding of any such interest has been issued or granted and is listed on Schedule 
2.15 (collectively, the “the Company Authorizations”). The Company and its Subsidiaries are 
operating in compliance with all Company Authorizations. Each Company Authorization has been 
lawfully and validly issued and no proceeding or investigation is currently pending or threatened, 
and the Company or its Subsidiaries has received no notice of any investigation, revocation, 
cancellation or modification with respect to any Company Authorization and knows of no basis 
therefor. The Company and its Subsidiaries have timely filed all reports, data and other information 
required to be filed with any governmental entity or as required to maintain the Company 
Authorizations. The Company Authorizations are in full force and effect, and, subject to obtaining 
the PSC Approvals (as defined in Section 2.6) shall remain in hll force and effect without 
modification after the Effective Time. 

2.16 Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.16, there is no action, suit, claim or 
proceeding of any nature pending threatened against the Company or my Subsidiary or any Principal 
or their respective properties or any person or entity whose liability the Company or any Subsidiary 
or any Principal may have retained or assumed, either contractually or by operation of law, nor, to 
the Knowledge of the Company or Principals, is there any reasonabIe basis therefor. There is no 
investigation or other proceeding pending or threatened against the Company or any Subsidiary or 
any Principal, any of their respective properties or any person or entity whose liability the Company 
or any Subsidiary or any Principal may have retained or assumed, either contractually or by operation 
of law, by or before any Governmental Entity, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company or Principals, 
is there any reasonable basis therefor. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.16, no Governmental Entity 
has at any time challenged or questioned the legal right of the Company or any Subsidiary to conduct 
their respective operations as presently or previously conducted. 

2.17 Accounts Receivable. All receivables of the Company or any Subsidiary (including 
accounts receivable, loans receivable and advances) which are reflected in the Balance Sheet, and 
dl such receivables which will have arisen since the date thereof, shall have arisen only from bona 
fide transactions in the ordinary course of the business of the Company or any Subsidiary and shall 
be (or have been) fully collected when due, or in the case of each account receivable within 90 days 
after it arose, without resort to litigation and without offset or counterclaim, in the aggregate face 
amounts thereof except to the extent of the normal allowance for doubtful accounts with respect to 
accounts receivable computed as a percentage of sales consistent with the Company’s and the 
Subsidiaries’ prior practices as reflected OA the March 3 1,2004 Financials. 

2.1 8 Assets Necessary to Business. The Company and its Subsidiaries presently have and 
at Closing will have title to all property and assets, real, personal and mixed, tangible and intangible, 
and all leases, licenses and other agreements, necessary to permit Acquisition Sub to carry on the 
business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, as cunently conducted. 

2.1 9 Minute Books. The minutes of the Company and its Subsidiaries made available to 
counsel for Parent are the only minutes of the Company and the Subsidiaries and contain 
substantially accurate summaries of all material meetings of the board of directors (or committees 
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thereof), the board of managers (or committees thereof), the shareholders (or cumrnittees thereof), 
the members (or committees thereof) of the Company and each Subsidiary, as applicable, and each 
action by written consent since the inception of each such entity. 

1 

2.20 Environmental Matters. 

(a) Hazardous Material. None of the Company or any Subsidiary has: (i) operated any 
underground storage tanks at any property that the Company or any Subsidiary has at any time 
owned, operated, occupied or leased; or (ii) illegally released any amount of any substance that has 
been designated by any Governmental Entity or by applicable federal, state or local law to be 
radioactive, toxic, hazardous or otherwise a danger to health or the environment, including without 
limitation PCBs, asbestos, petroleum, and urea-formaldehyde and all substances listed as hazardous 
substances pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability 
Act of 1980, as amended, or defined as a hazardous waste pursuant to the United States Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, and the regulations promulgated pursuant to 
said laws (a “Hazardous Material”). To the Knowledge of the Company, no Hazardous Materials 
are present in, on or under any property, including the land and the improvements, ground water and 
surface water thereof, that the Company or any Subsidiary has at any time owned, operated, occupied 
or leased. 

(b) Hazardous Materials Activities. Neither the Company or any Subsidiary has 
transported, stored, used, manufactured, disposed of, released or exposed its employees or others to 
Hazardous Materials in violation of any law in effect on or before the Effective Time, nor has the 
Company or any Subsidiary disposed of, transported, sold, or manufactured any product containing 
a Hazardous Material (any or all of the foregoing being collectively referred to herein as “Hazardous 
Materials Activities”) in violation of any rule, regulation, treaty or statute promulgated by any 
Governmental Entity in effect prior to or as of the date hereof to prohibit, regulate or control 
Hazardous Materials or any Hazardous Material Activity. 

(c) Permits. The Company and each ofits Subsidiaries currently holds all environmental 
approvals, permits, licenses, cIearances and consents (the “Environmental Permits”) necessary for 
the conduct of Hazardous Material Activities by them, respectively, and other businesses of the 
Company or any Subsidiary as such activities and businesses are currently being conducted. 

(d) Environmental Liabilities. No action, proceeding, revocation proceeding, amendment 
procedure, writ, injunction or claim is pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened 
concerning any Environmental Permit, Hazardous Material or any Hazardous Materials Activity of 
the Company or my Subsidiary. The Company has no Knowledge of any fact or circumstance that 
is reasonably likely to involve the Company or any Subsidiary in any environmental litigation or 
impose upon the Company or any Subsidiary any environmental liability. 
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2.21 Brokers’ and Finders’ Fees. The Company or its Subsidiaries has not incurred, nor 
will it incur, directly or indirectly, any liability for brokerage or finders’ fees or agents’ commissions 
or any similar charges in connection with this Agreement or any transaction contemplated hereby. 

2.22 Employee Benefit Plans and Compensation. 

(a) Definitions. For all purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the 
following respective meanings: 

(i) “Affiliate” shall mean any other person or entity under common control with 
the Company or Parent, as applicable, within the meaning of Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (0) of the 
Code, and the regulations issued thereunder. 

(ii) “COBRA” shall mean the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
of 1985, as amended. 

(iii) ‘%he Company Employee Plan” shall mean any plan, program, policy, practice, 
contract, agreement or other material arrangement providing for compensation, severance, 
termination pay, deferred compensation, performance awards, stock or stock related awards, fringe 
benefits or other employee benefits or remuneration of any kind, whether written, unwritten or 
otherwise, funded or udbnded, including without limitation, each “employee benefit plan,” within 
the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA which is or has been maintained, contributed to, or required 
to be contributed to, by the Company or any Affiliate for the benefit of any Employee, or with 
respect to which the Company or any AEIiate has or may have any liability or obligation. 

(iv) “DOL” shall mean the United States Department of Labor. 

(v) 
of the Company or any Affiliate. 

“Employee” shall mean any current or former employee, consultant or director 

(vi) “EmPlovment Ameement” shall mean each management, employment, 
severance, consulting, relocation, repatriation, expatriation, visas, work permit or other agreement, 
or contract between the Company or any Affiliate and any Employee. 

as amended. 
(vii) “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 

(viii) “FMLA” shall mean the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended. 

‘?RS” shall mean the United States Internal Revenue Service. 

(x) ‘‘Pension Plan” shall mean each the Company EmpIoyee Plan, which is an 
“employee pension benefit plan,” within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA. 
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(b) Schedule. Schedule 2.22(b) contains an accurate and complete list of each the 
Company Employee Plan and each Employment Agreement. The Company has no plan or 
commitment to establish any new the Company Employee Plan or Employment Agreement, to 
modify any the Company Employee Plan or Employment Agreement (except to the extent required 
by law), or to enter into any the Company Employee Plan or Employee Agreement. 

(c) Documents. The Company has provided to Parent correct and complete copies of: 
(i> all docwnents embodying each the Company Employee Plan and each Employment Agreement 
including (without limitation) all amendments thereto and all related trust documents, administrative 
service agreements, group annuity contracts, group insurance cuntracts, and policies pertaining to 
fiduciary liability insurance covering the fiduciaries for each Plan; (ii) the most recent annual 
actuarial valuations, if any, prepared for each the Company Employee Plan; (iii) the three (3) most 
recent annual reports (Form Series 5500 and all schedules and financial statements attached thereto), 
if any, required under ERISA or the Code in connection with each the Company Employee Plan; (iv) 
if the Company Employee Plan is funded, the most recent annual and periodic accounting of the 
Company Employee Plan assets; (v) the most recent summary plan description together with the 
summa.ry(ies) of material modifications thereto, if any, required under ERISA with respect to each 
the Company Employee Plan; (vi) all IRS determination, opinion, notification and advisory letters, 
and all applications and correspondence to or fkom the IRS or the DOL with respect to any such 
application or letter; (vii) all communications material to any Empioyee or Employees relating to any 
the Company Employee Plan and any proposed the Company Employee Plans, in each case, relating 
to any amendments, terminations, establishments, increases or decreases in benefits, acceleration of 
payments or vesting schedules or other events which would result in any material liability to the 
Company; (viii) all correspondence to or from any governmental agency relating to any the Company 
Employee Plan; (ix) all COBRA forms and related notices (or such forms and notices as required 
under comparable law); (x) the three (3) most recent plan years discrimination tests for each the 
Company Employee Plan; and (xi) all registration statements, annual reports (Fonn 1 I-K and all 
attachments thereto) and prospectuses prepared in connection with each the Company Employee 
Plan. 

(d) Employee Plan Compliance. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.22(d), (i) the 
Company has performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it under, 
is not in material default or violation of, and has no knowledge of any material default or violation 
by any other party to each the Company Employee Plan, and each the Company Employee Plan has 
been established and maintained in all material respects in accordance with its terms and in 
compliance with dl applicable laws, statutes, orders, rules and regulations, including but not limited 
to ERISA or the Code; (ii) each the Company Employee Plan intended to qualify under Section 
401(a) of the Code and each trust intended to qualify under Section 50l(a) of the Code has either 
received a favorable determination, opinion, notification or advisory letter from the IRS with respect 
to each such Company Employee Plan as to its qualified status under the Code, including all 
amendments to the Code effected by the Tax Reform Act of I986 and subsequent legislation, or has 
remaining a period of time under applicable Treasury regulations or IRS pronouncements in which 
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to apply for such a letter and make any amendments necessary to obtain a favorable determination 
as to the qualified status of each such Company Employee Plan; (iii) no “prohibited transaction,” 
within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code or Sections 406 and 407 of EFUSA, and not 
otherwise exempt under Section 4975 of the Code or Section 408 of ERISA (or any administrative 
class exemption issued thereunder), has occurred with respect to any the Company Employee Plan; 
(iv) there are no actions, suits or claims pending, or, to the Knowledge ofthe Company, threatened 
or reasonably anticipated (other than routine claims for benefits) against any the Company Employee 
Plan or against the assets of any the Company Employee Plan; (v) each the Company Employee Plan 
(other than any stock option plan) can be amended, terminated or otherwise discontinued after the 
Effective Time, without material liability to the Parent, the Surviving Corporation, the Company or 
any of its MiIiates (other than ordinary administration expenses); (vi) there are no audits, inquiries 
or proceedings pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company or any Affiliates, threatened by the 
IRS or DOL with respect to any the Company Employee Plan; and (vii) neither the Company nor my 
Affxliate is subject to any penalty or tax with respect to any the Company Employee Plan under 
Section 502(i) of ENSA or Sections 4975 through 4980 of the Code. 

(e) No Pension Plans, Neither the Company nor my Affiliate has ever maintained, 
established, sponsored, participated in, or contributed to, any (i) Pension Plans subject to Title IV 
of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code; (ii) “multiemployer plan” within the meaning of Section 
(3)(37) of ERISA; or (iii) multiemployer plan, or to any plan described in Section 4 13 of the Code. 

(f) No Post-Employment Obligations. No the Company Employee Plan provides, or 
reflects or represents any liability to provide, retiree life insurance, retiree health or other retiree 
employee welfare benefits to any person for any reason, except as may be required by COBRA or 
other applicable statute, and the Company has never represented, promised or contracted (whether 
in oral or written form) to any Employee (either individually or to Employees as a group) or any 
other person that such Employee(s) or other person would be provided with retiree life insurance, 
retiree health or other retiree employee welfare benefit, except to the extent required by statute. 

(g) Health Care Compliance. Neither the Company nor any Miliate has, prior to the 
Effective Time and in any material respect, violated any of the health case continuation requirements 
of COBRA, the requirements of FMLA, the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, the requirements of the Women’s Health and Cancer Rights Act of 
1998, the requirements of the Newborns’ and Mothers’ Health Protection Act of 1996, or any 
amendment to each such act, or any similar provisions of state law applicable to its Employees. 

Effect of Transaction. 

(i) Execution of this Agreement and the consummation uf the transactions 
Contemplated hereby will not constitute an event under any the Company Employee Plan, 
Employment Agreement, trust or loan that will or may result in any payment (whether of severance 
pay or otherwise), acceleration, forgiveness of indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase in 
benefits or obligation to fund benefits with respect to any Employee. 
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(ii) No payment or benefit which will or may be made by the Company or its 
Affiliates with respect to any Employee or any other “disqualified individual” (as defined in Code 
Section 280G and the regulations thereunder) will be characterized as a “parachute payment,”within 
the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code. 

fi) Employment Matters. The Company and each Subsidiary: (i) is in compliance with 
all applicable foreign, federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations respecting employment, 
employment practices, terns and conditions of employment and wages and hours, in each case, with 
respect to EmpIoyees; (ii) has withheld and reported a11 amounts required by law or by agreement 
to be withheld and reported with respect to wages, salaries and other payments to Employees; (iii) 
is not liable for any arrears of wages or any taxes or any penalty for failure to comply with any of the 
foregoing; and (iv) is not liable for any payment to any trust or other fund governed by or maintained 
by or on behalf of any governmental authority, with respect to unemployment compensation benefits, 
social security or other benefits or obligations for Employees (other than routine payments to be 
made in the normal course of business and consistent with past practice). There are no pending or, 
to the knowledge of the Company or Principals, threatened or reasonably anticipated claims or 
actions against the Company or any Subsidiary under any worker’s compensation policy or long-term 
disability policy. 

6) Labor. No work stoppage or labor strike against the Company or any Subsidiary is 
pending, or, to the knowledge of the Company or Principals, threatened or reasonably anticipated. 
To the knowledge of the Company or Principals, there are neither any activities nor proceedings of 
any labor union to organize any Employees, nor have there ever been. There are no actions, suits, 
claims, labor disputes or grievances pending, or, to the knowledge of the Company or Principals, 
threatened or reasonably anticipated relating to any labor, safety or discrimination matters involving 
any Employee, including without limitation charges of unfair labor practices or discrimination 
complaints. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates has engaged in any unfair labor practices 
within the meaning of the National Labor Relations Act. Neither the Company nor any of its 
Subsidiaries is presently, or has been in the past, a party to, or bound by, my collective bargaining 
agreement or union contract with respect to Employees and no collective bargaining agreement is 
being negotiated by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 

(k) Employees. Schedule 2.22(k) contains a true and complete list of the names and 
current salary rates and bonus commitments to all present employees of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries and Schedule 2.22(k) or other Schedules attached as part of Section 2.22 contains a list 
of all contracts, agreements, Company Employee Plans, arrangements, commitments and 
understanding (fomal and idomal) pertaining to terns of employment, compensation, bonuses, 
profit sharing, stock purchases, stock repurchases, stock options, commissions, incentives, loans or 
loan guarantees, severance pay or benefits, change in control payments, we of the Companfs or its 
Subsidiaries’ property and related matters of the Company or its Subsidiaries with any current or 
forrner officer, director, employee or consultant, and true and complete copies of all such contracts, 
agreements, plans, arrangements and understandings have been delivered to Parent heretofore. 
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(1) Except for the Principals, the Company will not have any responsibility for continuing 
any person in the employ (or retaining any person as a consultant) of the Surviving Corporation fiom 
and after the Effective Time or have any liability for any severance payments to or similar 
arrangements with any such person who shall cease to be an employee or consultant of the Company 
at or prior to the Effective Time. 

.(m) No facts or circumstances are known to exist that could provide a reasonable basis 
for a claim of wrongful termination or employment discrimination by any current or former 
employee of the Company against the Company. 

2.23 Compliance with Laws: Relations with Governmental Entities. The Company and 
each Subsidiary has complied in all respects with, is not in violation of, and has not received any 
notices of violation with respect to, any foreign, federal, state or local statute, law or regulation. 
Neither the Company nor any Principal or Subsidiary, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, any 
of the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ officers, directors, employees or agents (or shareholders, 
distributors, representatives or other persons acting on the express, implied or apparent autboiity of 
the Company or any Subsidiary) have paid, given or received or have offered or promised to pay, 
give or receive, any bribe or other unlawful payment of money or other thing of value, any unlawful 
discount, or any other unlawful inducement, to or from any person or Governmental Entity in the 
United States or elsewhere in connection with or in hrtherance of the business of the Company or 
its Subsidiaries (including any offer, payment or promise to pay money or other thing of value (a) 
to any foreign official, political party (or official thereof) or candidate for political ofice for the 
purposes of influencing any act, decision or omission in order to assist the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries in obtaining business for or with, or directing business to, any person or entity, or (b) 
to any person or entity, while knowing that all or a portion of such money or other thing of value will 
be offered, given or promised to any such official or party for such purposes). To the knowledge of 
the the Company, the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries is not in any manner dependent 
upon the making or receipt of such payments, discounts or other inducements. Neither the Company 
nor any Principal or Subsidiary has otherwise taken any action that would cause the Company or any 
Subsidiary to be in violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or any 
applicable Laws of similar effect. 

2.24 Merger Tax Matters. The Company and each Frincipd represents that each of them 
and the Company Shareholders understands that he or she must rely solely on his or her advisors and 
not on any statements or representations by Parent, or its agents, with respect to Tax consequences 
of the Merger and that the Company is relying on its own advisors as to such matters. No tax 
opinions are being required under Article V of this Agreement. 

2.25 Intellectual Propem. Schedule 2.25 contains a true, correct and complete listing of 
all Intellectual Property owned or licensed by or registered in the name of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries and used or held for use in operations of the Business, all of which are transferable to 
Buyer by the sole act and deed of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and no consent on the part of 
any other person is necessary to effectuate the transfer to Buyer of such Intellectual Property. The 
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Company and the Subsidiaries pays no royalty to anyone with respect to the Intellectual Property and 
has the right to bring action for the ifingement thereof the Company and its Subsidiaries owns or 
possesses all rights to use all such Intellectual Property necessary to or useful for the conduct of the 
Business. The Company and the Subsidiaries have not received any notice to the effect that my 
service rendered by the Company and its Subsidiaries relating to the Business may infringe on any 
Intellectual Property right or other legally protectable right of another, nor does the Company and 
its Subsidiaries otherwise have any knowledge of any such infringement. 

2.26 Customer Contracts. The contracts, agreements, understandings and commitments 
set forth and described in Schedule 2.26 (the "Customer Contracts") are all of the customer 
contracts, agreements, commitments or understandings (both written and oral) relating to the 
business and operations thereof to which the Company or its Subsidiaries is a party. Separately 
described in Schedule 2.26 are all Customer Contracts of the Company and its Subsidiaries that have 
generated $2,000 or more in revenue in any month since January 1,2003 ("Significant Customer 
Contracts9'). 

The Company has not entered into any binding agreement with respect to any Customer 
Contract that could adversely affect the Company or its Subsidiaries' ability to enforce its rights 
under such Customer Contract. The Company has delivered true and complete copies of all written 
Customer Contracts (and all amendments and modifications thereto) to Parent prior to the execution 
of this Agreement, and each Customer Contract represents the entire agreement between the 
Company and its Subsidiaries and any other party to such Customer Contract. 

Since 120 days prior to the date of this Agreement, (i) no customer (or group of related 
customers) purchasing in the aggregate $25,000 in products and services over the past twelve (1  2) 
months-has terminated its relationship with the Company or its Subsidiaries, and (ii) the Company 
or its Subsidiaries has not received any written or oral communication fiom any customer (or group 
of related customers) purchasing in the aggregate $3,000 in products and services over the past 
twelve (1 2) months to the effect that such customer (or group of related customers) is experiencing 
financial diEculties which reasonably could be expected to affect adversely full and timely payment 
by such customer for services rendered by the Company or its Subsidiaries. 

2.27 Relationships with Supliers. The Company or its Subsidiaries does not know of any 
written or oral communication, fact, event or action which exists or has occurred within 120 days 
prior to the date of th is  Agreement which would indicate that any current supplier to the Company 
or its Subsidiaries of items or services essential to the conduct of the business of the Company and 
its Subsidiaries may terminate or materially reduce its business with the Company or its Subsidiaries. 

2.28 Investment Representation: Legends. 

(a) The Company understands that because the Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock 
Warrants to be issued pursuant to the terms of this Agreement have not been registered under the 
Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"), the Parent Common Stock and Parent 
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Stock Warrants are "restricted securities" as the term is defined in Rule 144 promulgated by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") under the Securities Act and the Company 
shareholders cannot transfer any of the Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants unless such 
shares are subsequently registered under the Securities Act or in a transfer that, in the opinion of 
legal counsel to Parent, is exempt fiom such registration. 

(b) Each Company shareholder has been advised that the Parent Common Stock and 
Parent Stock Warrants issued hereunder have not been and are not being registered under the 
Securities Act or under the Blue Sky laws of any jurisdiction, and that Parent in issuing such shares 
is relying upon, m o n g  other things, the representations and warranties of the Company and 
Principals contained in this Section in concluding that such issuance is a "private offering" and does 
not require compliance with the registration provisions of the Securities Act. 

2.29 Stockholder Matters. Set forth on Schedule 2.29 is a list of all holders of the 
Company's capital stock as of the date hereof and Schedule 2.29 identifies each holder of the 
Company's capital stock that is an accredited investor as defined in Rule 50 I (a) under the Securities 
Act of 1933, as mended. 

2.30 Banking and Insurance. 

(a) Schedule 2.30(a) contains a true and complete list of the names and locations of all 
financial institutions at which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries maintains a checking account, 
deposit account, securities account, safety deposit box or other deposit or safekeeping arrangement, 
the number or other identification of all such accounts and arrangements and the names of all persons 
authorized to draw against any funds therein. 

(b) Schedule 2.30(b) contains atrue and complete list of all insurance policies and bonds 
and self insurance arrangements currently in force that cover or purport to cover risks or losses to 
or associated with the Company's business, operations, premises, properties, assets, employees, 
agents and directors and sets forth, with respect to each such policy, bond and self insurance 
arrangement, a description of the insured Ioss coverage, the expiration date and time of coverage, 
the dollar limitations of coverage, a general description of each deductible feature and principal 
exclusion and the premiums paid and to be paid prior to expiration. The Company has no obligation, 
liability or other commitment relating to any contract of insurance containing a provision for 
retrospective rating or adjustment of the Company's premium obligation. No facts or circumstances 
exist that would cause the Company to be unable to renew its existing insurance coverage as and 
when the same shall expire other than possible increases in premiums that do not result from any act 
or omission of the Company. 

2.3 1 Representations Complete. None of the representations or warranties made by the 
Company or any Principal in this Agreement, or to be furnished in or in connection with documents 
mailed or delivered to the Company Shareholders for use in soliciting their consent to this 
Agreement and the Merger, contains or, with respect to documents to be mailed to the Company 
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Shareholders, wiIl when mailed contain, any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or, with 
respect to documents to be mailed to the Company Shareholders, will when mailed omit, to state any 
material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. No representations and warranties by 
the Company and Principals in this Agreement and no statement in this Agreement or any document 
or certificate furnished or to be furnished to Parent or Acquisition Sub pursuant hereto contains or 
will contain any untrue statement or omits or will omit to state a fact necessary in order to make the 
statements contained therein not misleading. The Company and Principals have disclosed to 
Acquisition Sub all facts known to any of them material to the assets, liabilities, business, operation 
and property of the Company or its Subsidiaries. There are no facts known to the Company or 
Principals not yet disdosed which would adversely affect the Company's business, financial 
condition or future operations of the Company's and the Subsidiaries' business. All facts of material 
importance to the assets and to the business have been fully and truthhlly disclosed to Parent and 
Acquisition Sub in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE III 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND ACQUISITION SUB 

Parent and Acquisition Sub represent and warrant to the Company that on the date hereof and 
as of the Effective Date as though made at the Effective Time as follows: 

3 .O 1 Organization and Standing. Parent is a corporation duly organized, validly existing 
and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada. Acquisition Sub is a corporation duly 
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Mississippi. Each of 
Parent and Acquisition Sub has the full and unrestricted corporate power and authority to carry on 
its business as currently conducted. Each of Parent and Acquisition Sub has the h l l  and unrestricted 
corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, the Related Agreements and 
each other document required hereunder and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and 
thereby. Parent has the full and unrestricted corporate power and authority to issue the Parent 
Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants hereunder and to cany out the transactions to be carried 
out by it as contemplated by this Agreement and all other Related Agreements. 

3.02 Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by each of Parent and 
Acquisition Sub of this Agreement and each other Buyer Document, the fblfillment of and 
compliance with the respective terms and provisions hereof and thereof, and the consummation by 
each of Parent and Acquisition Sub of the transactions conternplated hereby and thereby have been 
duly authorized by their respective Board of Directors and subject to the approval of the shareholders 
of the Parent as sole shareholder of the Acquisition Sub (a) will not conflict with, or violate any term 
or provision of (i) any law having applicability to each of Parent and Acquisition Sub, the effect of 
which would have an adverse material effect on the business of Parent or Acquisition Sub, or (ii) any 
provision of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of Parent or Acquisition Sub; (b) will not 
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conflict with, or result in any material breach of, or constitute a default (or an event which with 
notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, any material agreement to which 
Parent or Acquisition Sub is a parfy or by which it is bound; or (c)  will not result in or require the 
creation or imposition of or result in the acceleration of any indebtedness, or of any encumbrance 
of any nature upon, or with respect to, Parent or Acquisition Sub. No other corporate action on the 
part of Parent or Acquisition Sub is necessary for Parent or Acquisition Sub to enter into this 
Agreement and all other Related Agreements and to consummate the transactions contemplated 
hereby and thereby, other than the approval of the Parent as soIe shareholder of the Acquisition Sub. 
The issuance by Parent of the Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants hereunder and the 
performance by Parent or Acquisition Sub of the terms and provisions of this Agreement and each 
other Related Agreements required to be performed by it have been duly authorized by all necessary 
corporate action of Parent (which authorization has not been modified or rescinded and is in full 
force and effect) other than the approval of the Parent as sole shareholder of the Acquisition Sub. 

3.03 Binding Obligation. This Agreement and each other agreement to be executed by 
Parent or Acquisition Sub hereunder constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Parent or 
Acquisition Sub, as applicable, enforceable against the Parent or Acquisition Sub, as applicable, in 
accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to the Jaws of general 
application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and rules of law governing 
specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies. 

3.04 Issuance of Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants. All of the Parent 
Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants to be issued pursuant to this Agreement have been duly 
authorized by Parent and, when issued in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, shall be 
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. 

345 Litigation. There are no actions, suits, claims, arbitrations, proceedings or 
investigations pending, threatened or reasonably anticipated against, or involving Parent or 
Acquisition Sub or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any other Buyer Document, 
at law or in equity, or before or by any arbitrator or governmental authority, domestic or foreign, 
which could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Parent or Acquisition 
Sub. Neither Parent nor Acquisition Sub is operating under, subject to or in default with respect to 
any order, award, writ, injunction, decree or judgment of any arbitrator or govemental authority 
relating to Parent or Acquisition Sub or their respective employees. 

3.06 Securities and ExchanEe Commission Filings. Parent and Acquisition Sub has 
fiunished the Company and the PrincipaIs with a true arid complete copy of each frnal annual, 
quarterly and current report and each final prospectus filed by Parent with the SEC since January I, 
2002. No such filing with the SEC by Parent contained to Parent's knowledge, as of the time of such 
filing, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances 
misleading. 

under which they were made, not 
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ARTICLE IV 

COVENANTS OF PARTES PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE TIME 

4.0 1 Preparation of Proxv Statement. 

(a) Immediately after the execution of this Agreement, the Company shall prepare, with 
the cooperation of Parent, a Proxy Statement for the Company SharehoIders to approve this 
Agreement, the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The Proxy Statement 
shall include a disclosure document for the offer and issuance of the shares of Parent Common Stock 
and Parent Stock Warrants to be received by the holders of Company Common Stock and Company 
Preferred Stock in the Merger. Parent and the Company shall each use commercially reasonable 
efforts to cause the Proxy Statement to comply with applicable federal and state securities laws 
requirements. Each of Parent and the Company agrees to provide promptly to the other such 
information concerning its business and financial statements and affairs as, in the reasonable 
judgment of the providing party or its counsel, may be required or appropriate for inclusion in the 
Proxy Statement, or in any amendments or supplements thereto, and to cause its counsel, accountants 
and auditors to cooperate with the other’s counsel, accountants and auditors in the preparation of the 
Proxy Statement. The Company will promptly advise Parent, and Parent will promptly advise the 
Company, in writing if at any time prior to the Effective Date either the Company or Parent shall 
obtain Knowledge of any facts that might make it necessary or appropriate to amend or supplement 
the Proxy Statement in order to make the statements contained or incorporated by reference therein 
not misleading or to comply with applicable law. The Proxy Statement shall contain the 
recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company that the Company Shareholders approve 
the Merger and this Agreement and the conclusion of the Board of Directors that the terms and 
conditions of the Merger are fair and reasonable to the Company Shareholders, unless the 
Company’s Board of Directors shall have determined in good faith that the failure to do so would 
violate the Board of Directors’ fiduciary duties to the Company Shareholders under applicable law. 
Anythrng to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the Company shall not include in the 
Proxy Statement any information with respect to Parent or its affiliates or associates, the form and 
content of which information shall not have been approved by Parent prior to such inclusion. 

4.02 Restrictions on Transfer; Legends. The Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock 
Warrants to be issued in the Merger shall be characterized as “restricted securities” for purposes of 
Rule 144 under the Securities Act, and each certificate representing any of such shares shall bear a 
legend identical or similar in effect to the following legend (together with any other legend or 
legends required by applicable state securities laws or otherwise): 

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVENOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED THE “ACT”), OR UNDER ANY APPLICABLE 
STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE 
TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED W E S S  AND UNTIL 
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REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT AND SUCH LAWS OR IN COMPLIANCE WITH AN 
EXEMPTION FROM SUCH REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS. 

4.03 Access to Information. 

(a) The Company shall afford Parent and its accountants, counsel and other 
representatives, reasonable access during the period prior to the Effective Date and during normal 
business hours upon reasonable advance notice to (i) a11 of the Company’s (including the 
Subsidiaries) properties, books, contracts, commitments and records; (ii) all other information 
concerning the business, properties and personnel (subject to restrictions imposed by applicable law) 
of the Company as Parent may reasonably request; and (iii) all employees ofthe Company (including 
the Subsidiaries) as identified by Parent. The Company agrees to provide to Parent and its 
accountants, counsel and other representatives copies of internal financial statements (including Tax 
returns and supporting documentation) promptly upon request. 

(b) No infomation or knowledge obtained in any investigation pursuant to this Section 
4.03 shall affect or be deemed to modify: any representation or warranty contained herein, the 
conditions to the obligations of the parties to consummate the Merger in accordance with the terms 
and provisions hereof, or the indemnification obligations of the Company and the Principals. 

(c) All information furnished by one party to another pwsuant hereto shall be treated as 
the sole property of the party hmishing the information until consummation of the Merger 
contemplated hereby and, if such Merger shall not occur, the party receiving the information shall 
retrieve, if necessary, and return to the party which furnished such information all documents or 
other materials containing, reflecting or refemng to such information, shall use its best efforts to 
keep confidential all of such information, and shall not directly or indirectly use such information 
for any competitive or other commercial purpose, Xthe Merger is not consummated, the obligation 
to keep such information confidential shall continue for two (2) years from the date the proposed 
Merger is abandoned and shall not apply to (i) any information which (a) the party receiving the 
information can establish by convincing evidence was already in its possession prior to the disclosure 
thereof by the party furnishing the information, (b) was then generally known to the public or set 
forth in public records, (c) became known to the public through no fault of the party receiving the 
information, or (d) was disclosed to the party receiving the information by a third party not bound 
by an obligation of confidentiality, or (ii) disclosures in accordance with an order of a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

4.04 Public Disclosure. The parties hereto agree that prior to the Effective Time, none of 
them will make or engage in any press release, publicity or other public disclosure of the matters 
which are the subject of this Agreement without the prior written consent of Parent and the 
Company, unless such party believes in good faith upon consultation with counsel that such press 
release, publicity or other public disclosure is required by law or legal process, in which event such 
party will give Parent and the Company as much advance notice thereof as is practicable under the 
circumstances and will give good faith consideration to any comments made with respect thereto by 
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the other parties hereto prior to the time when such press release, publicity or other public disclosure 
is made. 

4.05 Conduct Business in Ordinarv Course. The Company and its Subsidiaries shall, 
through the Closing Date, use its best efforts to preserve its business and the assets and maintain its 
existing contracts and licenses and to preserve for Acquisition Sub’s present relationships with 
customers, employees, lessors and any other persons having business relations with the Company 
and its Subsidiaries. Except as contemplated by this Agreement or as reasonably required to carry 
out its obligations hereunder, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall, through the Closing Date, 
maintain and service the business and the assets only in the ordinary course of business and, in 
addition, shall not (except to the extent that Parent has consented in advance in writing thereto: (i) 
enter into any agreement in connection with the business or assets that may not be terminated on less 
than thirty (30) days’ notice or that may reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect 
on the business or assets, (ii) make any capital purchases or commitments relating to the Assets that 
exceed, individually or in the aggregate, $10,000; (iii) place, or allow to be placed, an Encumbrance 
on any of the assets, (iv) sell, assign, lease or otherwise transfer or dispose of any interest in any asset 
(other than in the ordinary course of business), (v) commit any act or omit to do any act, or engage 
in any activity or transaction or incur any obligation (by conduct or otherwise), that (individually or 
in the aggregate) reasonably could be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the business 
or assets; (vi) except for actions taken or not taken in compliance with Section 3.2, do or omit to do 
any act (or permit such action or omission) which reasonably could be expected to cause a breach 
of any contract or Governmental Authorizations, or (vi;) take any action or fail to take any action that 
would reasonably be expected to cause any of the representations, warranties or covenants contained 
herein to be untrue or incorrect or incapable of being performed or satisfied on the Closing Date. 
Through the Closing Date, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall not (except to the extent that 
Parent has consented in advance in writing thereto): (i) provide service or agree to provide service 
to any customer at rates that are different than those that were in effect for such customer (or would 
have been in effect for any new customer) as of January I , 2004, (ii) offer any promotions or special 
incentives or arrangements to customers that were riot being offered to aII customers at January 1 , 
2004, including, but not limited to, any promotions or special incentives or arrangements with 
respect to pricing or usage, or (iii) amend or modify any Customer Contract. Prior to and through the 
day following the Closing Date, the Company and its Subsidiaries shall maintain in full force and 
effect all of its existing casualty, liability, and other insurance in amounts not less than those in effect 
on the date hereof, except for changes in such insurance that are made in the Ordinary Course of 
Business. 

4.06 Consents and Approvals. The Company shall use its best efforts to obtain, prior to 
the Closing, all waivers, consents and approvals, including those as provided in Schedule 5.02@), 
that are required in order to effect the Merger so as to preserve all rights of and benefits of the 
Company thereunder for the Surviving Corporation. Parent and Acquisition Sub shall use its best 
efforts to assist the Company in the Company’s efforts to obtain such waivers, consents and 
approvals. In addition, the Company and Parent and Acquisition Sub shall use their best efforts to 
obtain all other waivers, consents and approvals of all Governmental Authorities including the PSC 
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Approvals (as defined in Section 2.06) that are required in order for them to consummate the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or to perform the other obligations ofthe Company and 
Parent and Acquisition Sub hereunder. The Company and Parent and Acquisition Sub shall: (i) 
cooperate in the filing of all forms, notifications, reports and Wonnation, if any, required or 
reasonably deemed advisable pursuant to applicable statutes, rules, regulations or orders of any 
Governmental Authority or supra-governmental authority in connection with the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement; and (ii) use their respective best efforts to cause any applicable 
waiting periods thereunder to expire and any objections to the transactions contemplated hereby to 
be withdrawn before the Effective Date, All expenses incurred in obtaining the waivers, consents 
and approvals described in this Section 4.06 shall be paid by the Company. 

4.07 Financial Statements, The Company shall provide Parent with unaudited statements 
of assets and liabilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and statements of revenues and 
expenses reflecting the results of operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries for each month 
beginning with April 2004 within twenty (20) days of the end of each such month. All of the 
foregoing fmancial statements shall comply with the requirements concerning financial statements 
set forth in Section 2.10. 

4 .O 8 Notification of Certain Matters. 

(a) The Company and each of the Principals, as the case may be, shall give prompt 
written notice to Parent of: (i) the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event, the occurrence or non- 
occurrence of which is likely to cause any representation or warranty of the Company or any of the 
Principals, respectively and as the case may be, contained in this Agreement to be untrue or 
inaccurate in any material respect at or prior to the Effective Date; and (ii) any failure of the 
Company or any of the Principals, as the case may be, to comply with or satisfy any covenant, 
condition or agreement to be compIied with or satisfied by it hereunder; provided, however, that the 
delivery of any notice pursuant to this Section 4.0S(a) shall not constitute an acknowledgment or 
admission of a breach of this Agreement. No disclosure by the Company or any of the Principals 
pursuant to this Section 4.08(a) shall be deemed to have cured any breach of any representation or 
warranty made in this Agreement for purposes of determining whether or not the conditions set forth 
in Article V have been satisfied, or be deemed to have cured any such breach of a representation or 
warranty in this Agreement and to have been disclosed as of the date of this Agreement for purposes 
of Article VI hereof. 

(b) The Parent shall give prompt written notice to the Company of: (i) the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of any event, the occurrence or non-occurrence of which is likely to cause any 
representation or warranty of the Parent contained in this Agreement to be untrue or inaccurate in 
any material respect at or prior to the Effective Time; and (ii) any failure of the Parent to comply 
with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or satisfied by it hereunder; 
provided, however, that the delivery of any notice pursuant to this Section 4.08(b) shall not constitute 
an acknowledgment or admission of a breach of this Agreement. No disclosure by the Company or 
any of the Principals pursuant to this Section 4.08(b) shall be deemed to have cured any breach of 
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any representation or warranty made in this Agreement for purposes of determining whether or not 
the conditions set forth in Article VI have been satisfied, or be deemed to have cured any such breach 
of a representation or warranty in this Agreement and to have been disclosed as of the date of this 
Agreement for purposes of Article VI hereof. 

4.09 Additional Documents and Further Assurances. Each party hereto, at the request of 
another party hereto, shall execute and deliver such other instruments and do and perform such other 
acts and things as may be necessary or desirable for effecting completely the consummation of the 
Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby. 

4.10 Federal and State Securities Exemptions. The parties agree to use commercially 
reasonable efforts to ensure that the issuance of the Merger Shares will be exempt from registration 
under the Securities Act by reason of Section 4(2) and/or Regulation D thereof (the “Private 
Placement Exemption”). 

4.1 1 Shareholder List. As of a date which is two (2) calendar days prior to the Effective 
Date, the Company shall provide Parent and its counsel with a statement certified by the principal 
executive officer of the Company and Principals setting forth any changes which would have been 
required to be set forth on Schedule 2.03 or Schedule 2.29 as if such had been made and 
certification that there are no outstanding options or other rights to any equity interest in the 
Company (the “Updated Capitalization Certificate”). 

4.12 Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation. 

(a) As a material inducement to Parent to enter into and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, and in order to preserve and protect the trade secrets and proprietary, confidential 
information of Parent and the Surviving Corporation after the Closing, for a period of the later of (i) 
three (3) years foIlowing the Effective Date or (ii) subject to the terms of the Principals Employment 
Agreements, two (2) years following the date that the employment by the Surviving Corporation (or 
an affiliate thereof) of both Principals ends (the ‘Woncompetition Period”), neither Wade Spooner 
nor Ted Parsons will, directly or indirectly, either for themselves or for any partnership, limited 
liability company, individual, corporation, joint venture or any other entity “participate in” {as 
defined below) any business (including, without limitation, any division, group or franchise of a 
larger organization) which engages in the “Telecommunications Business” in the States of 
Mississippi, Alabama, Georgia, Tennessee, Florida, Kentucky, Louisiana, North Carolina or South 
Carolina (the “Resbicted Area”). For purposes of this Agreement, C6TeIecommunications Business” 
shall mean the business of providing any type of telecommunication services or internet access 
services to any person or customer within the Restricted Area, including, without limitation, local, 
long distance, broadband, dial up data services, wireless, DSL, Voice-over-Internet Protocol (VoP) 
and any other service or product being offered or provided by the Parent or Acquisition Sub or any 
of its affiliates. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “participate in” shall indude, without 
limitation, having any direct or indirect interest in any corporation, partnership, limited liability 
company, joint venture or other entity, whether as a sole proprietor, owner, shareholder, partner, 
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member, manager, joint venturer, creditor or otherwise, or rendering any direct or indirect service 
or assistance to any individual corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture and 
other business entity (whether as a director, officer, manager, supervisor, employee, agent, consultant 
or otherwise). Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 4.12 shall prohibit either Wade 
Spooner or Ted Parsons from owning not more than five percent (5%) of the debt or equity securities 
of a publicly traded corporation which may compete with Parent. 

(b) During the Noncompetition Period, and in order to preserve and protect the trade 
secrets and proprietary, confidential information of Parent and the Surviving Corporation after the 
Effective Date, neither Wade Spooner nor Ted Parsons shall (i) induce or attempt to induce any 
employee of Parent or the Surviving Corporation to leave the employ of Parent or the Surviving 
Corporation, or in any way interfere with the relationship between Parent and any employee thereof, 
(ii) hire directly or through another entity any individual employed by Parent or the Surviving 
Corporation who was previously employed by the Company, or (iii) induce or attempt to induce any 
customer, supplier, licensee, distributor or other business relation of Parent or the Surviving 
Corporation to cease doing business with Parent or the Surviving Corporation, or in any way 
interfere with the relationship between any such customer, supplier, licensee, distributor or business 
relation and Parent or the Surviving corporation (including, without limitation, making any negative 
statements or communications concerning Parent or the Surviving Corporation). 

(c)  If, at the time o f  enforcement of this Section 4.12, a court shall hold that the duration, 
scope or area restrictions stated herein are unreasonable under circumstances then existing, the 
parties hereto agree that the maximum duration, scope or area reasonable under such circumstances 
shall be substituted for the stated duration, scope or area and that the court shall be allowed to revise 
the restrictions contained herein to cover the maximum period, scope and area permitted by law. 
Each of Wade Spooner and Ted Parsons agrees that the restrictions contained in this Section 4.12 
are reasonable. 

(d) I f  at any time during the Noncompetition Period Wade Spooner or Ted Parsons 
desires to participate in an activity that he or she believes might be prohibited by this Section 4.12, 
such person may request in writing (a “Clarification Request”) a determination by Parent as to 
whether such proposed activity would violate this Section 4.12. Parent shall respond in writing to 
such Clarification Request (a “Clarification Res~onse”) within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof 
from the requesting person. 

4.13 Ap~roval of Shareholders. The Company will (i) take all steps necessary to call, give 
notice of, convene and hold a special meeting of its shareholders as soon as practicable for the 
purpose of approving and adopting this Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and 
for such other purposes as may be necessary or desirable, (ii) recommend to its shareholders the 
approvaf of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and such other matters as may 
be submitted to its shareholders in connection with this Agreement, and (iii) cooperate and consult 
with Parent and Acquisition Sub with respect to each of the foregoing matters. The Principals agree 
to vote all of their Company Common Stock or Company Preferred Stock in favor of the Merger. 
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4.14 No Shop. Until such time, if any, as this Agreement is tenninated pursuant to Article 
Vll, neither the Company or any Subsidiary or any of the Principals will and each of their 
representatives will not directly or indirectly solicit, initiate, or encourage my inquiries or proposals 
from, discuss or negotiate with, provide any non-public idonnation to, or consider the merits of any 
unsolicited inquiries or proposals from, any person (other than Parent) relating to any transaction 
involving the sale of the business or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any of the 
capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any merger, consolidation, business 
combination, or similar transaction involving the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 

ARTICLE V 

CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER 

5.01 Conditions to Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The respective 
obligations of the Company and Parent to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction at or 
prior to the Effective Date of the following conditions: 

(a) Shareholder Approval. This Agreement and the Merger shall be approved and 
adopted (i) by the Company Shareholders by the requisite vote under applicable law and the 
Company's Articles of Incorporation, (ii) by the shareholders of Acquisition Sub by the requisite 
vote under applicable law and the Acquisition Sub's Certificate of Incorporation, and (iii) by the 
shareholders of the Parent by the requisite vote under applicable law m d  the Parent's Certificate of 
Incorporation. 

(b) No Order. No Governmental Entity shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced 
or entered any statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, injunction or other order (whether 
temporary, preliminary or pemment) which is in effect and which has the effect of making the 
Merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting consummation of the Merger. ' 

(c) No Iniunctions or Restraints: Illegality. No temporary restraining order, preliminary 
or permanent injunction or other order issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other legal 
restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Merger shall be in effect, nor shall any 
proceeding brought by an administrative agency or cornmipion or other governmental authority or 
instrumentality, domestic or foreign, seeking any of the foregoing be pending. 

(d) Articles of Merger. The Articles of Merger shall have been filed with the Secretary 
of State of the State of Mississippi. 

5.02 Conditions to the Obligations of Parent and Acquisition Sub. The obligation of 
Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the 
Effective Time of each of the following conditions, my of which may be waived, in writing, 
exclusively by Parent: 

975953.6i14024.19141 35 



(a) Representations, Warranties and Covenants. 

(i) The representations and warranties of the Company and the Principals in this 
Agreement (other than the representations and warranties of the Company and the Principals as of 
a specified date, which will be true and correct as of such date) shall be true and correct on and as 
of: (A) the date of this Agreement and (B) the Effective Time as though such representations and 
wananties were made on and as of the Effective Time (it being understood that, for purposes 
determining the accuracy of each such representation and warranty pursuant to clauses (A) and (E%), 
any update of or modification to the Disclosure Schedule made or purported to have been made after 
the date of this Agreement shall be disregarded). 

(ii) Each of the Company and the Principals shall have performed and complied 
with all covenants and obligations under this Agreement required to be performed and complied with 
by such parties as of the Effective Time. 

(b) Third Partv Consents. -Parent shall have been furnished with evidence satisfactory 
to it that the Company has obtained all consents, waivers, approvals, and assignments listed in 
Schedule 5 . 0 2 0  

(c) No Material Adverse Change. There shall not have occurred any event or condition 
of any character since the date of this Agreement that has had or is reasonably likely to have a 
material adverse effect on the Company or its business, assets or prospects. 

(d) Companv Shareholder Approval. No holder of capital stock of the Company shall 
have exercised or given notice of their intent to exercise appraisal rights in accordance with 
Mississippi Law. 

(e)  Certificate of the Companv and the Principals. Parent shall have received a 
certificate, validly executed by each ofthe Principals and the principal executive officer of the 
Company for and on its behalf, to the effect that, as of the Closing: 

(i) all representations and warranties made by the Company and the Principals 
in this Agreement (other than the representations and warranties of the Company and the Principals 
as of a specified date, which will be true and correct as of such date) were true and correct on and 
as of: (A) the date of this Agreement and @) the Effective Date as though such representations and 
warranties were made on and as of the Effective Time; 

(ii) all covenants and obligations under this Agreement to be performed by the 
Company or the Principals on or before the Closing have been so performed; and 

(iii) the conditions to the obligations of Parent and Acquisition Sub set forth in 
Section 6.2 have been satisfied (unless otherwise waived in accordance with the terms hereof). 
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(f) Certificate of Secretary of the Company. Parent shall have received a certificate, 
validly executed by the Secretary of the Company, certifymg as to (i) the correct fonn and 
effectiveness of the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Company, including all 
amendments thereto; and (ii) the valid adoption of resolutions of the board of directors of the 
Company and the Company Shareholders approving this Agreement and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

(g) Certificate of Good Standing. Parent shaIl have received certificates of good standing 
of the Company from the Secretary of State of the State of Mississippi, the Secretary of State of the 
States of Alabama, Louisiana, Florida and Georgia and any other jurisdiction where the Company 
is required to qualify to do business, each dated within ten (1 0) business days prior to the Closing. 

(h) Workinn Capital Requirement. The Company and its Subsidiaries "Working Capital" 
(as defined herein) as of the Management Date shall not be less than $170,000 ("Working Capital 
Requirement"), as shown on a consolidated balance sheet and Profit and Loss Statement and 
combining worksheet (prepared in accordance with GAAP and consistent with the March 3 1,2004 
Financials) as of the Management Date ("Management Date Financials"). "Working Capital" shall 
mean the current assets less the current liabilities as determined in accordance with GAAP provided 
the current liabilities shall be reduced by an amount equal to the sum of the following: (i) the 
amounts due over the 12 months following the date of calculation for the fullowing: the Note 
Payable to Wade Spooner; the Note Payable to David Wender; the Note Payable to Steven 
McKinney; amounts due under the Settlement with the Mississippi PSC; amounts due under the 
Settlement with BIPCO; amounts due under the Amerifirst debt; plus (ii) amounts owed for e91 1 
fees (inchding penalties and interest), plus (iii) the disputed charges with Bell South less $60,000. 
In the event that the Working Capital Requirement is not met, the Parent and Acquisition Sub may 
nevertheless elect to close and reduce the Parent Stock Consideration by an amount equal to the 
difference between the Working Capital Requirement and the actual Working Capital. 

(i) Special Liabilities. The sum of the Special Liabilities (as defined below) as of the 
Management Date shall not exceed $1,028,750 as shown on the Management Date Financials. 
Special Liabilities shall mean the amount due for the following: Note Payable - Taqua; Due to 
MSPC; Note Payable to BIPCO; Note Payable - Amerifirst; Note Payable to Paul Ryan; Note 
Payable to Wade Spooner; Note Payable to David Wender; Note Payable to Steven McKinney, 
amounts owed for e91 1 fees (including any penalties or interest), any debt or amounts due to 
AmSouth Bank and any other debt for borrowed money or purchase or lease of assets. In the event 
that the swn of the Special Liabilities exceeds $1,028,750 as of the Management Date, the Parent 
and Acquisition Sub may nevertheless elect to close and reduce the Parent Stock Consideration by 
an amount equal to the mount by which the sum of the Special Liabilities exceeds $1,028,750. 

(j) Shareholder List. Parent shall have received fiom the principal executive offxcer of 
the Company the Updated Capitalization Certificate. 
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(k) Emplovment Aaeements. Acquisition Sub shall have received from each Principal 
an executed Employment Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibits C and 
D. 

(1) Releases. Each officer and director of the Company shall have executed and 
delivered a Release in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

(m) Amendments to Certain Documents. The Parent shall have received a duly executed 
amendment or restated note on terns satisfactory to the Parent of the debt of the Company due to 
the following people: 

$200,000 Note to Wade Spooner dated March 3 1 , 2001 (”Spooner Note”). 

(n) Escrow Agreement. The Principals and Escrow Agent shall have entered into the 
Escrow Agreement in the form of Exhibit B hereto. 

(0) hevocable Proxy from Principals. Each of the Principals shall have entered into an 
Irrevocable Proxy in form reasonably satisfactory to Parent in which each Principal agrees to 
irrevocably appoint Guy Nissenson or such other party designated by Parent as proxy to vote the 
Principal’s Parent Common Stock or any Parent Common Stock issued to or acquired hereafter by 
the Principal whether from the exercise of any of the Parent Stock Warrants or any other stock 
options or warrants granted hereafter or otherwise until such time as the Principal sells all of his 
Parent Common Stock. 

@) Governmental Approvals. The Public Service Commission (”PSC”) of the States of 
Mississippi, Florida, Alabama, Louisiana and Georgia shall have issued such waivers, approvals, 
orders or consents approving the Merger; provided, however, that the Parent may elect to proceed 
with the Merger and waive the consent requirements from the PSC for any state other than 
Mississippi and Louisiana (“PSC Approvals”), and in any event the Parent agrees to close and waive 
the required consents f h m  the PSC in Georgia, Alabama and Florida in the event that the parties are 
unable, using their best efforts, to obtain the consent by December 3 I, 2004. 

(q) ManarrementlOperating Agreement. On or before July 1,2004, the Company shall 
have entered into a Management/Operating Agreement with the Parent or Acquisition Sub in f o m  
reasonably satisfactory to Parent appointing the Parent or Acquisition Sub as Manager of operations 
with compensation equal to the gross revenues and providing for the Manager to be responsible for 
all normal operating expenses other than the Special Liabilities, provided the Parent shall agree to 
make loans to the Company guaranteed by the Principals for the payments required to be made for 
the Special Liabilities during the Management Tern. 

5.03 Conditions to Obligations of the Company and the Principals. The obligations of the 
Company and the Principals to consummate and effect this Agreement and the transactions 
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contemplated hereby shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of each of 
the following conditions, any of which may be waived, in writing, exclusively by the Company: 

(a) Representations, Warranties and Covenants. 

(i) The representations and warranties of Parent and Acquisition Sub in this 
Agreement (other than the representations and warranties of Parent as of a specified date, which will 
be true and correct as of such date) shall be true and correct on and as of: (A) the date of this 
Agreement and (B) the Effective Time as though such representations and warranties were made on 
and as of the Effective Time (it being understood that, for purposes determining the accuracy of each 
such representation and warranty pursuant to clauses (A) and (€I), any update of or modification to 
the Parent Disclosure Schedule made or purported to have been made after the date of this 
Agreement shall be disregarded). 

(ii) Each o f  Parent and Merger Sub shall have performed and complied with all 
covenants and obligations of this Agreement required to be perfimned and complied with by it as 
of the Effective Time. 

(b) Certificate of Parent. The Company shall have received a certificate executed on 
behalf of Parent by the Chief Executive Officer to the effect that, as of the Closing: 

(i) all representations and warranties made by the Parent and Merger Sub in this 
Agreement (other than the representations and warranties of the Parent and Merger Sub as of a 
specified date, which will be true and correct as of such date) were true and correct on and as of: (A) 
the date of this Agreement and (B) the Effective Time as though such representations and warranties 
were made on and as of the Effective Time; 

(ii) all covenants and obligations under this Agreement to be perfarmed by Parent 
and Merger Sub on or before the Closing have been so performed; and 

(iii) the conditions to the obligations ofthe Company and the Principals set forth 
in Section 6.3 have been satisfied (unless otherwise waived in accordance with the terms hereof). 

(c) No Material Adverse Change. There shall not have occurred any event or condition 
of any character since the date of this Agreement that has had or is reasonably likely to have a Parent 
Material Adverse Effect. 

(d) Principals Emdoyment Aereements. Each of the Principals shall have received from 
Acquisition Sub an executed Employment Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibits C and D and such agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
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ARTICLE VI 
, 

SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; INDEMNIFICATION 

6.0 1 Survival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants. 

(a) The representations and warranties of the Company and each of the Principals 
contained in this Agreement, or in any certificate or other instrument delivered pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall remain in effect until, and will expire upon the third year following the Closing 
Date (the “Termination Date”), except for the representations and warranties set forth in Section 2.1 0 
(Tax Matters) which shall survive the Tennination Date until the expiration of the applicable statute 
of Iimitations. The representations and warranties of the Parent and the Acquisition Sub contained 
in this Agreement, or in any certificate or other instrument deliveredpursuant to this Agreement will 
expire upon the Effective Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing: 

(i) the Termination Date shall not apply to claims based upon intentional fraud; 
and 

(ii) the representation, warranty, covenant or obligation that is the subject matter 
of a timely submitted Claim Notice (as defined in Section 6.01 (c)) shall not so expire with respect 
to such Claim Notice or any subsequent Claim Notice that is reasonably related to the subject matter 
of such Claim Notice, but rather shall remain in full force and effect until such time as each and 
every claim that is based upon, or that reasonably relates to, any breach or alleged breach of such 
representation, warranty, covenant or obligation and that is reasonably related to the subject matter 
of such Claim Notice or any such subsequent Claim Notice has been hI ly  and finally resolved, either 
by means of a written settlement agreement executed by the Principals and the Acquisition Sub or 
by means of a final, non-appealable judgment issued by a court o f  competent jurisdiction. 

(b) The representations, warranties, covenants and obligations of the Company and each 
of the Principals shall not be limited or otherwise affected by or as a result of any information 
furnished to, or any investigation made by or any knowledge of, any of the Parent Indemnified 
Parties or any of their representatives. No disclosure in any Schedule referred to in Article Il will 
be deemed adequate to disclose an exception to a representation or warranty made in this Agreement 
unless the applicable disclosure schedule identifies the exception with particularity and describes the 
relevant facts in reasonable detail. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the mere listing 
(or inclusion of a copy) of a document or other item will not be deemed adequate to disclose an 
exception to a representation or warranty made in this Agreement (unless the representation or 
warranty regards the existence of the document or other item itself). 

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, a “Claim Notice’’ relating to a particular 
representation, warranty, covenant or obligation shall be deemed to have been given if the Parent or 
Acquisition Sub, acting in good faith, delivers within the time periods provided in Section 7.1 (a) to 
the Principals and the Escrow Agent a written notice stating that such Inde&fied Party believes that 
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there is or has been a possible breach of such representation, warranty, covenant or obligation and 
containing (i) it brief description ofthe circumstances supporting s u c h h d e b f i e d  Party’s beliefthat 
there is or has been such a possible breach; and (ii) a non-binding, preliminary estimate of the 
aggregate dollar mount of the actual and potential damages that have arisen and may arise as a 
direct or indirect result of such possible breach. For purposes of this Agreement, “Parent 
hdemnified Parties” shall mean the following persons and entities: (a) Parent; (b) Parent’s current 
and hture affiliates (including the Surviving Corporation); (e) the respective officers, directors, 
employees and agents of the persons and entities referred to in clauses “(a)” and “(b)” above; and 
(d) the respective successors and assigns of the persons and entities referred to in clauses “(a)” and 
“(b)” above; provided, however, that none of Wade Spooner or Ted Parsons or any of the Company 
Shareholders shall be deemed to be a Parent Indemnified Party. 

6.02 Indemnification by the Principals;. Escrow Fund. 

(a) The Principals, jointly and severally, agree that from and after the Effective Date, the 
Principals shall indemnify and hold the Parent Indemnified Parties harmless against all claims, 
losses, liabilities, damages, lawsuits, administrative proceedings, investigations, audits, demands, 
assessments, adjustments, judgments, settlement payments, penalties, fines, interest, deficiencies, 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of investigation and defense 
(individually a “Loss” and coIlectively “Losses”) incurred by the Parent Indemnified Parties directly 
or indirectly as a result ofi 

(i) any inaccuracy or breach of a representation or warranty of the Company or 
any Principal contained in: (A) this Agreement both as of the date of this Agreement and as of the 
Effective Time as if made on and as of the Effective Time; (B) any of the agreements executed in 
connection with this Agreement; or ( C )  or in any certificate, instrument or other document delivered 
by the Company or any Principal pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; or 

(ii) any failure by the Company or any of the Principals to perfom or comply with 
any covenant contained in this Agreement or in any of the agreements executed in connection with 
this Agreement. 

(iii) the amount by which the Bell South Disputed Liability exceeds $60,000 
notwithstanding the fact that the amount shown on the Financials is greater. 

(iv> 
exceeds $250,000. 

the mount by which the e91 1 Liability, including any interest or penalties, 

(b) (i) As security for the indemnity provided to the Parent Indemnified Parties in 
this Article VI and by virtue of this Agreement and the Articles of Merger, the Principals agree that 
an amount of the Parent Company Stock and Parent Stock Warrants to which they are entitled at the 
EBective Date of the Merger equal to fifty percent (50%) of the Aggregate Merger Consideration 
(the “Escrow Shares”) shall be deposited with the Escrow Agent and held in the name of the Escrow 
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Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement and the Principals direct the Parent to deposit the Escrow 
Shares (plus any additional shares as may be issued in respect of any stock split, stock dividend or 
recapitalization effected by Parent after the Effective Time with respect to the Escrow Shares) with 
the Escrow Agent, without any act of the Principals, such deposit to constitute an escrow fund (the 
“Escrow Fund”). Each Principal shall be required to contribute the Principal’s Pro Rata Portion (as 
defined herein) of the Escrow Shares with the escrow to be fimded in the same proportions of Parent 
Company Stock to Parent Stock Warrant that each Principal received in connection. with the Merger. 
It is understood and agreed that the portion of the Aggregate Merger Consideration deposited into 
the Escrow Fund by each of the Principals shall be issued and outstanding on the books of Parent, 
and the Principals shall be the owners thereof, but registered in the Escrow Agent’s name until the 
Escrow Agreement is terminated. 

Any cash dividends paid on Parent Common Stock in the Escrow Fund shall be deposited 
with the Escrow Agent and become part of the Escrow Fund. Each Principal shall have voting rights 
with respect to the shares of Parent Common Stock contributed to the Escrow Fund on behalf of such 
Principal (and on any voting securities added to the Escrow Fund in respect of such shares of Parent 
Common Stock) so long as such shares of Parent Common Stock or other voting securities are held 
in the Escrow Fund. The Escrow Fund shall be in existence immediately following the Effective 
Time and shall terminate at 500 pm.,  Central Time, on the third year from the Effective Date, unless 
sooner terminated due to the distribution of the Escrow Fund at an earlier date or unless the 
termination date is extended due to pending ClaimsNotice(s) for indemnification in accordance With 
this Section 6.03. For purposes of satisfying the indemnification obligations of this Section 6.02, 
the shares of Parent Common Stock and Parent Stock Warrants in the Escrow Fund shall be valued 
as of (i> the date that the Parent Indemnified Party sends notice to release a portion of the Escrow 
Fund in satisfaction of a Loss as determined in accordance with this Article VI or (ii) the date that 
the Principals request a release of a portion of the Escrow Fund in accordance with Section 6.02@); 
provided if there is a counter-notice to the requested release from the Escrow given disputing the 
requested release from the Escrow, then the date for valuation shall be suspended until such time as 
the Escrow Agent is requested to make payment upon a joint instruction or the date of a final non- 
appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction is entered as to the disputed release. The Parent 
Common Stock shall be valued at the closing trading price for the ten trading days immediately 
preceding the valuation date and the Parent Stock Warrants shall be valued at the price at which they 
were valued and issued on the Effective Date in connection with the Merger. The Escrow Agent 
shall satisfy any indemnification obligations first with the Parent Common Stock and then with the 
Parent Stock Wmants. The Escrow Fund shall be governed by the terns of this Agreement and the 
Escrow Agreement. The Parent Indemnified Parties’ right to recover any property held pursuant to 
the Escrow Agreement shall be in addition to and not in limitation of any other rights or remedies 
of the Parent Indemnified Parties at law or in equity. 

”Principal’s Pro Rata Portion” shall mean, with respect to each Principal, an amount equal 
to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the number of shares of the Parent Common Stock which 
the Principal is entitled to receive in connection with the Merger by (y) the total number of shares 
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. *  of the Parent Common Stock that both Principals are entitled to receive in connection with the 
. I  Merger. 

(ii) The percentage set forth below of each Principal’s Pro Rata Share of the 
Escrow Fund shall be released upon the happening of the following events provided that at the date 
of the required release that there remains suficient Escrow Funds to cover the maximum amount 
of any pending Claims Notice(s) as provided in this Article VI: (1) one-third (10) shall be released 
within 60 days after the end of the fust full 12 month period following the Effective Date (”Post 
Close Year 1” and each succeeding 12 month period is hereinafter referred to as Post Close Year 2, 
etc.) if the Surviving Corporation’s stand alone profit and loss statement prepared in accordance with 
GAAP shows (x) a positive ”Net Profit” and (y) ”Revenues” equal to or greater than Four Million 
Dollars ($4,000,000), (2) One-third (113) shall be released within 60 days after the end of Post Close 
Year 2, provided that the Surviving Corporation’s stand alone profit and loss statement as of the end 
of Post Close Year 2 shows (x) a positive “Net Income” and “Revenues” of equal to or greater than 
Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000), and (3) the remainder of the Escrow Funds (less an amount equal 
in value to the maximum amount claimed to satisfy any Pending Claims Notices) shall be released 
on the third anniversary date of the Effective Date. Any calculation of “Net Profit“ shall exclude any 
extraordinary charges or non-recuning items as required under GAAP. I f  there are any Pending 
Claims outstanding at the third anniversary of the Effective Date, the Escrow Agreement shall 
continue until final resolution of any such Pending Claims in accordance with this Article VI. 

(iii) In the event a Parent Indemnified Party elects to satisfy a Loss from the 

such Principal’s Pro Rata Portion of such Loss and each Principal’s Escrowed Shares in an amount 
equal to the Principal’s Pro Rata Share of such Loss shall be subject to release to the Parent 
Indemnified Party to satisfy such Principal’s Pro Rata Share of the Loss. 

\ Escrow Fund, the Parent Indemnified Party agrees that each Principal shall only be responsible for 
I 

(c) For purposes ofquantifymg the amount owing to any Parent Indemnified Party under 
this Section 7.2 resulting from a Loss or Losses caused by a breach of any representation or warranty 
given in Article II hereof, the term material adverse effect or other materiality qualification or my 
similar qualification contained or incorporated directly or indirectly in such representation or 
warranty shall be disregarded. 

(d) For purposes of this Agreement and without limitation, a breach of the representations 
and warranties induded in Sections 2.01, 2.02 and 2.03 hereof will be deemed a “willhl 
misrepresent at i on.” 

( e )  Limitation on Indemnification. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to 
the contrary, after the Effective Time, no Parent Indemnified Party shall be entitled to 
indemnification until such Parent Indemnified Parties suffer Losses in excess of $25,000 in the 
aggregate (the “Basket A m o ~ n f ~ ) ,  in which case the Parent Indemnified Parties shall be entitled to 
recover all Losses including the Basket Amount; provided, however, any amounts required to be paid 
resulting from any failure by the Company or any of the Principals to perform or comply with any 

ir 
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covenant contained in this Agreement or any Related Agreement shall not be subject to such Basket 
Amount; and provided further, however, that m y  mounts required to be paid by the Parent or the 
Surviving Corporation as a result ofthe Company’s breach of, or any inaccuracy contained in, 
Section 2.21 herein shall not be subject to such Basket Amount. 

6.03 Indemnification Procedures. All claims for indemnification under Section 6.02 shall 
be asserted and resolved as follows: 

(a) Third-party Claims. In the event any Parent Indemnified Party becomes aware of a 
third-party claim that such Parent Indemnified Party believes may result in a demand under Section 
6.02, such Parent Indemnified Party shall notify the Principals of such claim, and the Principals shall 
be entitled, at its expense, to participate in, but not to determine or conduct, the defense of such 
claim. The Parent Indemnified Party shall have the right in its sole discretion to conduct the defense 
of and settle any such claim; provided, however, that except with the written consent of the 
Principals, no settlement of any such claim with third-party claimants shall alone be determinative 
of the amount of Losses relating to such matter. In the event that the Principals has consented to any 
such settlement, neither of the Principals shall have the power or authority to object to the amount 
of any claim by my Parent Indemnified Party (either against the Escrow Fund or the Spooner Note) 
with respect to such settlement. 

(b) Non-Third Party Claims. In the event a Parent Indemnified Party has a claim 
hereunder that does not involve a claim being asserted against or sought to be collected by a third 
party, the Parent hdemnified Party shall with reasonable promptness send a Claim Notice with 
respect to such claim to the Principals and the Escrow Agent (if applicable). If both the Principals 
do not notify the Parent Indemnified Party within ten (1 0) calendar days from the date of receipt of 
such Claim Notice that indemnifying party disputes such claim, the amount of such claim shall be 
conclusively deemed a liability of the indemnifying party hereunder. h case the Principals shall 
object in writing to any claim ma& in accordance with this Section 6.03(b), the Parent Indemnified 
Party shall have fifteen (1 5 )  calendar days to respond in a written statement to the objection of the 
Principals. If after such fifteen (1 5 )  calendar day period there remains a dispute as to any claim, the 
parties shall attempt in good faith for s i x t y  (60) calendar days to agree upon the rights of the 
respective parties with respect to each of such claims. Ifthe parties should so agree, a memorandum 
setting forth such agreement shall be prepared and signed by all parties. If the parties do not so 
agree, and a claim has been made against the Escrow Fund, the Escrow Agent shall refiain fiom 
disbursing any portion of the Escrow Fund until resolution of such dispute in the fonn of (i) a final 
written decision of an arbitrator or (ii) a final non-appealable order of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

(c)  The Parent Indemnified Party’s failure to give reasonably prompt notice to the 
Shareholder Representative of any actual, threatened or possible claim or demand which may give 
rise to a right of indemnification hereunder shall not relieve any indemnifying party of any liability 
which the indemnifying party may have to the  Parent Indemnified Party unless the failure to give 
such notice materially and adversely prejudiced the indemnifying party. 
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6.04 Right of Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision herein including, without 
limitation, Section 6.02(b), the Parent shall have the right to offset Wade Spooner's Pro-Rata Share 
of a Loss from the amounts payable under the Spooner Note for any Losses incurred by any Parent 
Indemnified Party; provided, the Parent delivers a Claim Notice to the appropriate parties in 
accordance within the time periods provided in Section 6.03 and may exercise such r ights  of offset 
without fust having to exercise its rights against the Escrow Fund. 

6.05 No Contribution. Each Principal waives, and acknowledges and agrees that it shall 
not have and shall not exercise or assert (or attempt to exercise or assert), any right of contribution, 
right of indemnity or other right or remedy against the Surviving Corporation in connection with any 
indemnification or other rights any Indemnified Party may have under or in connection with this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI3 

TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND WAIVER 

7.01 Ternination. Except as provided in Section 7.02 hereof, this Agreement may be 
terminated and the Merger abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time: 

by mutual agreement of the Company and Parent; 

(b) by Parent or the Company if the Effective Time has not occurred by December 3 1, 
2004; provided, however, that the right to terminate th is Agreement under t h i s  Section 7.0 1 (b) shall 
not be available to any party whose action or failure to act has been a principal cause of the failure 
of the Merger to occur on or before such date and such action or failure to act constitutes a breach 
of this Agreement. 

Where action is taken to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7.01, it shall be 
sufficient for such action to be authorized by the Board of Directors of the party taking such action. 

7.02 Effect of Termination. 

(a) In the event of termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 7-01 hereof, this 
Agreement shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability or obligation on the part of 
Parent, Acquisition Sub, the Company, the Principds, or their respective officers, directors or 
shareholders; provided, however, that each party shall remain liable for any breaches of this 
Agreement prior to its termination and the Break-Up Fee as set forth in 7.02(b) hereof for any such 
breach; and provided further, however, that, the provisions of Sections 4.03(c), 4.04,7.03 and Article 
VIIl hereof and this Section 7.02 shall remain in full force and effect and survive any termination 
of this Agreement. 
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(b) Break-Up Fee. In the event that the actions or failure to act of either the Company 
and Principals, on the one hand, or the Parent and Acquisition Sub, on the other hand (the 
"Breaching Party"), is a principal cause of the failure of the Merger to occur, including the failure 
to use best efforts to obtain PSC approvals, unless the Parent has waived with respect to any state 
other than Mississippi, then in the event the Non-Breaching Party elects to terminate pursuant to 
Section 7.01(b), the Breaching Party, jointly and severally, shall pay the Non-Breaching Party a 
Break-Up Fee equal to $500,000, payable immediately. 

7.03 Expenses; Termination Fees. 

(a) Except as set forth in Section 7.03@), all fees and expenses incurred in connection 
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (i) by the Company and 
the Principals shall be paid by the Company and the Principals and (ii) by the Parent and Acquisition 
Sub shall be paid by the Parent, whether or not the Merger is consummated, provided however that 
the Company agrees to reimburse the Parent for one-half of the cost for any tax analysis or 
preparation ofthe Proxy Statement as contemplated by Section 4.01 and the amount to be reimbursed 
shall be included as a liability on the Management Date Financials. 

(b) Parent, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, agree that in the event 
either party terminates this Agreement prior to the Effective Time for any reason other than those 
allowable under Section 7.01, then the terminating party shall pay to the other party the amount of 
actual fees and expenses incurred by such party in connection with this transaction. 

7.04 Amendment. This Agreement may be mended by the parties at any time by 
execution of an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto. 

7.05 Extension: Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time, Parent and Acquisition 
Sub, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, may, to the extent legally allowed, (i) 
extend the time for the performance of any ofthe obligations of the other party hereto; (ii) waive any 
inaccuracies in the representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any 
document delivered pursuant hereto; and (iii) waive compliance with any of the agreements or 
conditions for the benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto 
to any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on 
behalf of such party. 

ARTICLE Vm 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

8.01 Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial messenger or courier service, or 
mailed by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) or sent via facsimile (with 
acknowledgment of complete transmission) to the parties at the following addresses (or at such other 
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address for a party as shall be specified by like notice); provided, however, that notices sent by mail 
will not be deemed given until received: 

if to Parent or Acquisition Sub, to: 

XFone, Inc. 
Britannia House 
960 High Road 
London, N 129RY 
United Kingdom 
Attention: Guy Nissenson 
Telephone: +44 208-446-9494 
Facsimile: t44 208-446-701 0 
Email : guy @xfone.com 

with a copy to: 

The Oberon Group, LLC 
79 Madison Ave., 6* Fluor 
New Y ork, NY 100 1 6 
Attention: Adam Breslawsky 
Telephone: 2 12-3 86-7052 
Facsimile: 2 12-447-72 12 
Email: adam@oberongroup .corn 

Watkins Ludlam Winter & Stennis, P.A. 
633 North State Street (39202) 
P. 0. Box 427 
Jackson, MS 392050427 
Attention: Gina M. Jacobs 
Telephone: 60 1-949-4705 
Facsimile: 601 -949-4804 
Ernail ; gj aco bs@w at kindud lam. corn 

if to the Company or the Principals, to: 

WS Telecom, Inc. 
2506 Lakeland Drive, Suite 100 
Flowood, MS 39232 
Attention: Wade Spooner, President 

Ted Parsons, Executive V.P. 
60 1-664- 1 008 
60 1 -664- 1 190 

Telephone: 
Facsimile: 
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Email: wspooner@expetel.com 
+ parsons@expetel .corn 

8.02 Internretation. The words “include,” “includes” and “including” when used herein 
shall be deemed in each case to be followed by the words “without limitation,” References to 
“property” includes both intangible and tangible property. References to “assets” includes both 
intangible and tangible: assets. The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are 
for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

8.03 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original and all of which, when taken together, shall be considered one 
and the same agreement. 

8.04 Entire Ameement: Assignment. This Agreement and the documents and instruments 
and other agreements among the parties hereto referenced herein: (i) constitute the entire agreement 
among the parties with respect io the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and 
understandings both written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof; 
and (ii) shall not be assigned by operation of law or otherwise. 

8.05 No Third P m  Beneficiaries. This Agreement, the schedules and exhibits hereto and 
the documents and ins-ents and other agreements among the parties hereto referenced herein are 
not intended to confer upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies 
hereunder. 

8.06 Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or the application 
thereof, becomes or is deckired by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect and the 
application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those with respect to which it 
is deemed void will be interpreted so as reasonably to effect the intent of the parties hereto within 
the boundaries of applicable law. The parties further agree to replace such void or unenforceable 
provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision that will achieve, to the extent 
practicable within applicable law, the economic, business and other purposes of such void or 
unenforceable provision. 

8.07 Other Remedies. Except as otherwise provided herein, any and all remedies herein 
expressly conferred upon a party will be deemed cumulative with and not exclusive of any other 
remedy conferred hereby, or by Iaw or equity upon such party, and the exercise by a party of any one 
remedy wiIl not preclude the exercise of any other remedy. 

8.08 Governing Law: Dispute Resolution. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi, regardless ofthe laws that might 
otherwise govern under applicable principles of conflicts of laws thereof EACH PARTY €€EREBY 
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IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, 
A JURY T W  FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN 
CONNECTION HEREWITH OR ARISJNG OUT OF THlS AGREEMENT OR ANY 
TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

8.09 Rules of Construction. The parties hereto agree that they have been represented by 
counsel duing the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and, therefor, waive the application 
of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an agreement 
or other document will be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document. 

8.1 0 Attorneys' Fees. Eany action or other proceeding relating to the enforcement of any 
provision of this Agreement is brought by any party hereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and disbursements (in addition to any other relief to which 
the prevailing party may be entitled). 

8.1 1 Princbal's Post Closing Sale Restrictions. Wade Spooner agrees that the total shares 
of common stock of the Parent sold by him in any one month period shall not exceed 3.5% of the 
average monthly trading volume of the Parent Common Stock. Ted Parsons agrees that the total 
shares of common stock of the Parent sold by him in any one month period shall not exceed 1.5% 
of the average monthly trading volume of the Parent Common Stock. Wade Spooner and Ted 
Parsons agree that this Parent Common Stock sales restriction shall apply to any Parent Common 
Stock, whether owned as a result of the Merger or thereafter acquired for as long as either owns any 
Parent Common Stock and that this provision shall survive the consummation of the Merger. 

/ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parent, Acquisition Sub, the Company, each ofthe Principals and 
the Shareholder Representative have caused this Agreement to be signed, all as of the date first 
written above. 

XFONE, INC. 

By: 1 Name: Title: President Guy Nissenson and CEO 

PRINCIPALS XFONE USA, INC. 

- 
Title: President 

Ted Parsons, Individually 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

Form of Articles of Merger 
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. I 111lll1111111111 Ill11 Ill1 111111 Ill1 1ll1llllll1111 
OFFICE OF THE 1MISSISS1PPI SECRETARY OF STATE 

Articles of Merger or Share Exchange 
Profit G orpor a tion 

P.0.  BOX 136, JACKSON, MS 39205-0136 (601) 359-1333 

The undersigned corporation pursuant to Section 794-1 1.05, as amended, hereby executes the 
following document and sets forth: 

1. Name of Corporation 1 

WS Telecorn, Inc. 

2. Name of Corporation 2 

XFone USA, Inc. 

3. Name of Corporation 3 

4. The future effective date is 
(Complete if applicable) 

5. The plan of merger or share exchange. (Attach page) 

6. Mark appropriate box. 

(a) Shareholder approval of the plan of merger or share exchange was not required. I 
OR 

(b) If approval of the sharehoIders of one or more corporations party to the merger or IXI share exchange was required 

(i) the designation, number of outstanding shares, and number of votes entitled to 
be cast by each class entitled to vote separately on the plan as to each 
corporation were 

Name of Corporation Designation No. of outstanding 

IWS Teaecom, 1nc.I 
1 1 

WS Telecom, Inc. 

0 Common 

Preferred 

Common 

No. of votes 
entitled to be cast 

Rev. 01/96 
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i llllll111ll1lllllllll111111ll11 Ill1 111111 Ill1 Ill1 
OFFICE OF T€ZE MISSISSIPPI SECRETARY OF STATE 

Articles of Merger or Share Exchange 
Profit Corporation 

P.O. BOX 136, JACKSON, MS 39205-0136 (601) 359-1333 

AND EITEER 
a. the total number of votes cast for and against the plan by each class entitled to vote 
separately on the plan was 

Name of Corporation Class Total no. of votes 
cast FOR the PIan 

Total no. of votes cast 
AGAINST the Plan 

OR 
b. the total number of undisputed votes cast for the plan separately by each class was 

Name of Corporation 

WS Telecom, Inc. 

XFone USA, Inc. I 

Class 

Common 

Preferred 

Common 

Total no. of undisputed 
votes cast FOR the Plan 

and the number of votes cast for the plan by each class was suEcient for approval by that class. 

Name of Corporation 1 

WS Telecom, Inc. 
~~ ~ 

By: Signature (Please keep writing within blocks) 

~ ~~~ ~~~ 

Printed Name 
Wade Spooner 

; 
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Printed Name 

‘~llll11 i Ill11 11111 Ill11 Ill1 11lll1 Ill1 llll11 Ill1 Ill1 

President 
Title 

Guy Nissenson 

OFFICE OF THE MISSISSIPPI SECRETARY OF STATE 

Articles of Merger or Share Exchange 
Profit Corporation 

P.O. BOX 136, JACKSON, MS 39205-0136 (601) 359-1333 

- 

Name of Corporation 2 

P o n e  USA, h c .  

By: Signature (Please keep writing within blocks) 

NOTE 
I .  If shareholder approval is required, the plan must be approved by each voting group entitled to vote 

on the plan by a majority of all votes entitled to be cast by that voting group unless the Act or the 
articles of incorporation provide for a greater or lessor vote, but not less than a majority of all votes 
cast at a meeting. 

2. The articles cannot be filed unless the corporation(s) has (have) paid all fees and taxes (and 
delinquencies) imposed by law. 

3. The articles must be similarly executed by each corporation that is a party to the merger. 
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Attachment to Articles of Merger for WS Telecom, h c .  ("WS Telecom") with and into XFone USA, 
Inc. ("XFone USA") 

Section 79-4- 1 1.06 of the Mississippi Business Corporation Act ("MBCA") no longer requires the 
Plan of Merger to be attached. Section 79-4-1 l.M(a)(Z) does require notification of any 
amendments to the surviving corporation's articles of incorporation. In accordance with Section 79- 
4-1 1-06 of the MBCA, please be advised that upon the filing of the Articles of Merger and in 
accordance with the MBCA, WS Telecom is merged with and into XFone USA. FoIlowing the 
merger, the separate corporate existence of WS Telecom shall cease and XFone USA shall continue 
as the surviving corporation (the "Surviving Corporation") and shall succeed to all the rights and 
obligations of WS Telecom in accordance with the MBCA. The articles of incorporation of XFone 
USA, as in effect immediately prior to the merger, shall be the articles of incorporation of the 
Surviving Corporation until thereafter changed or amended as provided therein or by applicable law. 
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EXHIBIT "Bll 

Form of Escrow Agreement 
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ESCROW AGREEMENT 

This Escrow Agreement, dated as of , 2004 (the "Closing Date"), among 
XFone, hc., a Nevada corporation, and XFone USA, Inc., a Mississippi corporation (collectively 
"Buyer"), Wade Spooner, an individual resident of Mississippi ("Spooner"), and Ted Parsons, an 
individual resident of Mississippi ("Parsons" and collectively with Spooner, "Principals" or each as 
"Principal"), and , a [national banking association] [bank organized under the laws of 

1, as escrow agent (''Escrow Agent"). 

This is the Escrow Agreement referred to in the Agreement and Plan of Merger Agreement 
dated ? 2004 (the "Merger Agreement") among Buyer, WS Telecom, Inc. (the 
"Company") and the Principals. Capitalized terns used in this agreement without definition shall 
have the respective meanings given to them in the Merger Agreement. 

In order to provide Buyer security for certain rights of indemnification that the Buyer 
possesses under the Merger Agreement in the event of a breach of the representations, warranties or 
agreements by the Company or the Principals thereunder, or otherwise pursuant to the terrns of the 
Merger Agreement, the Principals and the Buyer have agreed that the number of shares of XFone, 
h c .  Common Stock (the "XFone Common Stock") and the number of XFone, Inc. Stock Warrants 
("XFone Stock Wmantstt) as set forth in Exhibit "A", which constitutes part of the purchase price 
under the Merger Agreement, shall be deposited with the Escrow Agent by the Principals and Buyer 
to be held and handled by Escrow Agent in accordance with the terns and conditions herein set 
forth. 

The n o n e ,  Inc. Common Stock is currently traded under the symbol XFNE:OB and the 
Buyer shall notify the Escrow Agent of any change in the market on which the stock is listed or the 
symbol under which it is traded. 

The parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

I. ESTABLISHMENT OF ESCROW 

(a) Deposit ofXFone Common Stock and XFone Stock Warrants. The Principals hereby 
deposit in escrow the number of shares of s o n e  Common Stock and XFone Common Stock 
Warrants set out opposite their names on Exhibit "A" attached to this Agreement ("Escrow Shares"), 
registered in the name of the Escrow Agent or its nominee. As used herein, the "Pro-Rata Share" 
refers to a fraction of which the numerator is the number of Escrow Shares deposited by and which 
remain for such Principal and the denominator is the total number of Escrow Shares deposited by 
and which remain for both Principals. 

(b) Escrow Fund. The Escrow Shares, all dividends and distributions thereon, and all 
income and property resulting therefrom ("Escrow Fund") shall be held by the Escrow Agent for the 
benefit of the PrincipaIs and Buyer on the terns set out herein. 
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(c)  Voting Rights of Shares in Escrow. All voting rights with respect to the XFone 
Common Stock composing a part of the Escrow Fund may be exercised by the Principal who 
deposited such XFone Common Stock in escrow, and the Escrow Agent shall from time to time 
execute and deliver to each Principal such proxies, consents, or other documents as may be necessary 
to enable each Principal to exercise such rights with respect to any XFone Common Stock deposited 
by such Principal which remains a part of the Escrow Fund. 

(d) Distributions on Escrow Fund. All dividends and other distributions (whether in 
cash, securities, or other property) paid or made on the Escrow Fund shall be deemed to have been 
paid or made to the Principals, in accordance with their respective Pro-Rata Share in the Escrow 
Fund, for income tax purposes, but shall be received by the Escrow Agent and constitute part of the 
Escrow Fund. 

(e) Taxes and Charges on Escrow Fund. The Principals, d t h  respect to their respective 
Fro-Rata Share of the Escrow Fund, shall maintain the Escrow Fund free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances and shall, promptly upon request by the Escrow Agent, pay and discharge all taxes, 
assessments, and governmental charges imposed on or with respect to the Escrow Fund. 

(0 Acceptance of Escrow. Escrow Agent hereby agrees to act as escrow agent and to 
hold, safeguard and disburse the Escrow Fund pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof. 

(g) Notice of Claim. Buyer shall be entitled to recover under this Escrow Agreement in 
respect of any Loss (as defined in Section 6.2 of the Merger Agreement) and may give notice in 
writing in the form attached hereto as Appendix A ("Pending Claims Notice") to the Escrow Agent 
and the Principals of any claim on which a Loss may be based, which Pending Claims Notice shall 
include a brief description of the nature of the claim, the identity of the party by whom it is being 
asserted, and an estimate of the amount of loss that may be sustained by Buyer (the "Estimated 
LOSS"). 

2. DISTRBUTIONS FROM ESCROW FUND 

(a) Buyer Request. If Buyer (or either of them) submits a notice and request to the 
Principals and Escrow Agent in substantially the form attached as Appendix B stating that a Loss 
(as defmed in the Merger Agreement) has been determined in accordance with Section 6.2 of the 
Merger Agreement and specifying the doll? amount of the Loss and the property from the Escrow 
Fund to be released to the Buyer in satisfaction of the Loss (including specifying the number of 
shares of the =one Common Stock and the XFone Stock Warrants of each Principal to be released 
to the Buyer or its designee from the Escrow Fund), then on the 15* business day folIowing such 
notice, Escrow Agent shall release the number of shares of the XFone Common Stock and XFone 
Stock Warrants as directed in said notice, unless the Escrow Agent has received a Counter-Notice 
(as defined herein) from any Principal that it disputes the requested release from the Escrow Fund 
for the Loss. 
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(b) Request by Principals. I f  the Principals give a notice in substantially the form 
attached as Appendix C to the Escrow Agent and Buyer stating that they are entitled to a distribution 
from their respective Pro-Rata Share of the Escrow Fund as required under Section 6.2(b)(ii) of the 
Merger Agreement specifying the number of n o n e  Common Stock and XFone Stock Warrants to 
be distributed to each Principal, then on the 15* business day following such notice, the Escrow 
Agent shall release the XFone Common Stock and XFone Stock Warrants pursuant to the directions 
given by the Principals in the notice, unless the Escrow Agent shall have received from Buyer a 
Counter-Notice (as defined herein) that it disputes the requested release from the Escrow Fund 
requested by the Principals. 

(c)  If a counter-notice ("Counter-Notice") is given with respect to a request for 
distributions from the Escrow Fund, then the Escrow Agent shall make a distribution from the 
Escrow Fund only in accordance with (i) joint written instructions of Buyer and the Principals or (ii) 
a final non-appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction. Any court order shall be 
accompanied by legal opinion by counsel for the presenting party satisfactory to the Escrow Agent 
tu the effect that the order is find and non-appealable. Escrow Agent shall act on such court order 
and legal opinion without further question. 

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Escrow 
Agent shall make distributions from the Escrow Fund in accordance with the joint written 
instructions of Buyer and Principals. 

3. DURATION AND TEF34INATION OF ESCROW 

(a) On the third anniversary date of this Agreement, the Escrow Agent shall retain an 
amount of the Escrow Fund (taken on a pro-rata basis fiom each Principal's portion of the Escrow 
Fund) equal to the aggregate dollar value of the Estimated Losses for all outstanding Pending Claims 
Notices and the remainder of each Principal's portion of the Escrow Fund shall be disbursed to each 
Principal. For these purposes, thevalue of the Parent Common Stock and the Parent Stock Warrants 
shall be determined in accordance with Exhibit "A." 

(b) The Escrow Agreement shall continue in fill force and effect until the first to occur 
of the close of business on the last day during which there is any Escrow Fund remaining with the 
Escrow Agent or December 3 1,2020, at which time this Escrow shall terminate and any Escrow 
Fund remaining shall be interpIed with the registry' or custody of any court of competent jurisdiction 
and thereupon the Escrow Agent shall be discharged of all M e r  duties under this Agreement. 

4. DUTIES OF ESCROW AGENT 

(a) Escrow Agent shall not be under any duty to give the Escrow Fund held by it 
hereunder any greater degree of care than it gives its own similar property and shall not be required 
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to invest any funds held hereunder except as directed in this Agreement. Uninvested funds held 
hereunder shall not earn or accrue interest. 

(b) Escrow Agent shall not be liable, except for its own gross negligence or willful 
misconduct and, except with respect to claims based upon such gross negligence or willfir1 
misconduct that are successfully asserted against Escrow Agent, the others hereto shall jointly and 
severally indemnify and hold harmless Escrow Agent (and any successor Escrow Agent) from and 
against any and all losses, liabilities, claims, actions, damages and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and disbursements, arising out of and in connection with this Agreement. 

(e) Escrow Agent shall be entitled to reIy upon any order, judgment, certification, 
demand, notice, instrument or other writing delivered to it hereunder without being required to 
determine the authenticity or the correctness of any fact stated therein or the propriety or validity of 
the service thereof. Escrow Agent may act in reliance upon any instrument or signature believed by 
it to be genuine and may assume that the person purporting to give receipt or advice or make m y  
statement or execute any-document in connection with the provisions hereof has been duly 
authorized to do so. Escrow Agent may conclusively presume that the undersigned representative 
of any party hereto which is an entity other than a natural person has full power and authority to 
instruct Escrow Agent on behalf of that party uniess written notice to the contrary is delivered to 
Escrow Agent. 

(d) Escrow Agent may act pursuant to the advice of counsel with respect to any matter 
relating to this Agreement and shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith 
in accordance with such advice. 

( e )  Escrow Agent does not have any interest in the Escrow Fund deposited hereunder but 
is serving as escrow holder only and having only possession thereof. Any payments of income fiom 
this Escrow Fund shall be subject to withholding regulations then in force with respect to United 
States taxes. The parties hereto will provide Escrow Agent with appropriate Internal Revenue 
Service Forms W-9 for tax identification number certification, or non-resident alien certifications. 
This Section 5(e) and Section 5(b) shall survive notwithstanding any ternination of this Agreement 
or the resignation of Escrow Agent. 

( f )  Escrow Agent makes no representation as to the validity, value, genuineness or the 
collectibility of any security or other document or instrument held by or delivered to it. 

(g) Escrow Agent (and any successor Escrow Agent) may at any time resign as such by 
delivering the Escrow Fund to any successor Escrow Agent jointly designated by the other parties 
hereto in writing, or to any court of competent jurisdiction, whereupon Escrow Agent shall be 
discharged of and from any and all further obligations arising in connection with this Agreement. 
The resignation of Escrow Agent wilI take effect on the earlier of (a) the appointment of a successor 
(including a court of competent jurisdiction) or (b) the day which is 30 days after the date of delivery 
of its written notice of resignation to the other parties hereto. If at that time Escrow Agent has not 
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received a designation of if successor Escrow Agent, Escrow Agent’s sole responsibility after that 
time shall be to retain and safeguard the Escrow Fund until receipt of a designation of successor 
Escrow Agent or a joint Written disposition instruction by the other parties hereto or a final non- 
appealable order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(h) h the event of any disagreement between the other parties hereto resulting in adverse 
claims or demands being made in connection with the Escrow Fund or in the event that Escrow 
Agent is in doubt as to what action it should take hereunder, Escrow Agent shall be entitled to retain 
the Escrow Fund until Escrow Agent shall have received (i) a final non-appealable order of a court 
of competent jurisdiction directing delivew of the Escrow Fund or (ii) awritten agreement executed 
by the other parties hereto directing delivery of the Escrow Fund, in which event Escrow Agent shall 
disburse the Escrow Fund in accordance with such order or agreement. Any court order shall be 
accompanied by a legal opinion by counsel for the presenting party satisfactory to Escrow Agent to 
the effect that the order is final and non-appealable. Escrow Agent shalI act on such court order and 
legal opinion without further question. 

(i) Buyers and Principals shall pay Escrow Agent compensation (as payment in full) for 
the services to be rendered by Escrow Agent hereunder in the mount  of $ at the time of 
execution of this Agreement and $ annualIy thereafter and agree to reimburse 
Escrow Agent for all reasonable expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by Escrow 
Agent in performance of its duties hereunder (including reasonable fees, expenses and disbursements 
of its counsel). Any such compensation and reimbursement to which Escrow Agent is entitled shall 
be borne 50% by Buyer, 44.3% by Spooner and 5.7% by Parsons. Any fees or expenses of Escrow 
Agent or its counsel that are not paid as provided for herein may be taken from any property held by 
Escrow Agent hereunder. 

0) No printed or other matter in m y  language (including, without limitation, 
prospectuses, notices, reports and promotional materid) that mentions Escrow Agent’s name or the 
rights, powers, or duties of Escrow Agent shall be issued by the other parties hereto or on such 
parties’ behalf unless Escrow Agent shall fEst have given its specific written consent thereto. 

5. LIMITED RESPONS’PBILITY 

This Agreement expressly sets forth all the duties of Escrow Agent with respect to my and 
all matters pertinent hereto. No implied duties or obligations shall be read into this agreement against 
Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent shall not be bound by the provisions of any agreement among the other 
parties hereto except this Agreement. 

6. OWNERSHIP FOR TAX PURPOSES 

Principals agree that, for purposes of federal and other taxes based on income, Spooner and 
Parsons will be treated as the owner of their pro-rata share of the Escrow Fund, respectively, and that 
Spocmer and Parsons will report all income, if any, that is earned on, or derived fkom, the Escrow 
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Fund as their income, in such proportions, in the taxable year or years in which such income is 
properly includible and pay any taxes attributable thereto. 

7. NOTICES 

All notices, consents, waivers and other communications under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) delivered by hand (with written 
confirmation of receipt), (b) sent by telecopier (with written confirmation of receipt) provided that 
a copy is maiIed by registered mail, return receipt requested, or (c) when received by the addressee, 
if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case to the 
appropriate addresses and telecopier numbers set forth below (or to such other addresses and 
telecopier numbers as a party may designate by notice to the other parties): 

IF TO PRINCIPALS, TO: 

Telephone: 
Facsimile: 

Telephone: 
Facsimile : 

IF TO BUYER, TO: 

XFone, Inc. 
Britannia House 
960 High Road 
London, N 129RY 
United Kingdom 
Attention: Guy Nissenson 
Telephone: +44 208-446-9494 
Facsimile: +44 208-446-70 10 
Email: guy@xfone.com 
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with a copy to: 

The Oberon Group, LLC 
79 Madison Ave., 6* Floor 
New York, NY 1 00 16 
Attention: Adam BresZawsky 
Telephone: 2 12-3 86-7052 
Facsimile: 2 12-447-72 12 
Email: ' adam@oberongroup.com 

Watkins Ludlam Winter & Stemis, P-A. 
633 North State Street (39202) 
P. 0. Box 427 
Jackson, MS 39205-0427 
Attention: Gina M. Jacobs 
Telephone: 601-949-4705 
Facsimile: 601 -949-4804 
Email: gj acobs@watkinsludlam.com 

8. JURISDICTION; SERVICE OF PROCESS 

Any action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any right arising 
out of, this Agreement may be brought against any of the parties in the courts of the State of 
Mississippi or, if it has or can acquire jurisdiction, in the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of Mississippi, and each of the parties consents to the jurisdiction of such courts 
(and of the appropriate appellate courts) in any such action or proceeding and waives any objection 
to venue laid therein. Process in any action or proceeding referred to in the preceding sentence may 
be served on any party anywhere in the world. 

9. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed 
to be .an original and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the 
same. 

10. SECTION HEADINGS 

The headings of sections in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and will not 
affect its construction or interpretation. 
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11. WAJYER 

The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement are cumulative and not alternative, 
Neither the failure nor any delay by any party in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this 
Agreement or the documents referred to in this Agreement will operate as a waiver of such right, 
power, or privilege, and no single or partial exercise of any such right, power, or privilege will 
preclude any other or fkther exercise of such right, power, or privilege or the exercise of any other 
right, power, or privilege. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, (a) no claim or right 
arising out of this Agreement or the documents referred to in this Agreement can be discharged by 
one partyy in whole or in part, by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless in writing 
signed by the other party; (b) no waiver that may be given by a party will be applicable except in the 
specific instance for which it is given; and (c) no notice to  or demand on one party will be deemed 
to be a waiver of any obligation of such party or of the right of the party giving such notice or 
demand to take further action without notice or demand as provided in th is  Agreement or the 
documents referred to in this Agreement. 

12. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION 

This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements among the parties with respect to its subject 
matter and constitutes (along with the documents referred to in this Agreement) a complete and 
exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties with respect to its subject 
matter. This Agreement may not be amended except by a written agreement executed by the Buyer, 
the Principals and the Escrow Agent. 

13. GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi, without regard to 
conflicts of law principles. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the 
date first written above. 

BUYERS: 

S o n e ,  Inc. 

By: 

PRINCIPALS: 

Wade Spooner, ZndividuaHy 
- ~- 

Title: 
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=one USA, Inc. 

By: 
TitJe: 

ESCROW AGENT: 

978127.2/14024.19141 

Ted Parsons, Individually 

By: 
Title ; 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

XFone Common Stock XFone Stock Warrants 

Wade Spooner 
Ted Parsons 

V aZ uation 

Parent Stock Warrants - $ per warrant 

Parent Common Stock - the average of the closing price for the ten (1 0) trading days immediately 
preceding the date of valuation. 
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APPENDIX A 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

PENDING CLAIM NOTICE 

, or its successor ("Escrow Agent") 

XFone, Inc. andor XFone USA, Inc. ("XFone") 
Wad e S pooner ("Principal " ) 
Ted Parsons ("Principal") 

Please be advised that, pursuant to Section 1(g) of the Escrow Agreement dated 
,2004 by and among the undersigned, the Escrow Agent, and the Principals, each of 

you are hereby notified that, Buyer believes that the Buyer has or may suffer a Loss pursuant to the 
Drovisions of Article 6.2 of the Merger Agreement dated as of ,2004 ("Merger A 

Agreement") by virtue of 

n o n e  estimates that the Loss is $ ("Estimated Loss"). 

Signed this day of ? 2 L  

XFONE, INC.mone USA, Inc. 

By: 

Title: 
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To: 

APPENDIX €3 

BUYER DEPOSITION NOTICE REDUEST 

, or its successor ("Escrow Agent") 
Wade Spooner ("Principal") 
Ted Parsons ("Principal") 

From: XFone, Inc./XFone USA, Inc. (rIXFone") 

Date: 

Re: Escrow Agreement Dated ,2004 Arnong the Above-referenced Parties 
("Escrow Agreement ") , 

Please be advised that PUTSUXI~ to Section 2(a) of the Escrow Agreement you are hereby 
notified that it Loss (as defined in the Merger Agreement dated ,2004) has been 
determined and you are hereby instructed to deliver to n o n e ,  Inc. the following XFone Common 
Stock and XFone Stock Warrants endorsed fur transfer to n o n e  from the Escrow Fund. 

I 

(1) total shares XFone Common Stock as follows: 

(a) shares of Wade Spoonerrs XFone Common Stock deposited in the 
Escrow Fund. 

shares of Ted Parsons' XFone Common Stock deposited in the 
Escrow Fund. 

(b) 

(2) shares XFone Stock Warrants as follows: 

(a> XFone Stock Warrants from Wade Spooner's XFone Stock 
Warrants deposited in the Escrow Fund. 

XFone Stock Warrants from Ted Parsons' n o n e  Stock Warrants 
deposited in the Escrow Fund. 

CO) 

(3) Cash Dividends $ 

Check One: 

_c__ This is the Loss as determined for Pending Claims Notice dated 
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I 
This notice also constitutes a Pending Claims Notice and the Loss arises out of the foIIowing: 

Sincerely , 

XFone, Inc./XFone USA, hc. 

By: 
Title: 

13 



i 
APPENDIX C 

PRINCIPALS DEPOSITION NOTICE REOUEST 

To: , or its successor ("Escrow Agent") 
n o n e ,  Inc./XFone USA, hc .  ("XFone") 

From: Wade Spooner ("Principal") 
Ted Parsons ("Principal") 

Date: 

Re: Escrow Agreement Dated ,2004 Among the Above-referenced Parties 
("Escrow Agreement 'I) 

Please be advised that pursuant to Section 2(b) of the Escrow Agreement you are hereby 
notified that each Principal is entitled to a distribution as set forth below from the Escrow Fund 
pursuant to Section 6.2(b)(ii) of the Merger Agreement dated ,2004, and you are 
hereby requested to deliver to each Principal the following XFone Common Stock and Parent Stock 
Warrants endorsed as follows for transfer from the Escrow Fund: 

To Wade Spooner: 
\ 
1 

To Ted Parsons: 

shares of XFone Common Stock Wade Spooner deposited in the Escrow 
Fund. 

XFone Stock Warrants fkom Wade Spooner's XFone Stock Warrants 
deposited in the Escrow Fund. 

shares of XFone Common Stock Ted Parsons deposited in the Escrow Fund. 

XFone Stock Warrants from Ted Parsons' XFone Stock Warrants he 
deposited in the Escrow Fund. 

Sincerely, 

Wade Spooner 

978127314024.19141 

Ted Parsons 

14 



EXHIBIT "C" 

Form of Spooner Employment Agreement 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement") is made as of ,2004 
by XFone USA, hc., a Mississippi corporation (the "Employer"), and Wade Spooner, an individual 
(the "Executive"). 

RECITALS 

The Executive is currently the Chairman, CEO, President and a principal shareholder of WS 
Telecom, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries eXpeTel Communications, Inc. and Gulf Coast 
Utilities, Inc. (colIectively the "Company'l). Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement, the Company is being merged with and into the Employer pursuant to and in accordance 
with that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger dated , 2004 among the 
Company, the Employer, XFone, h c .  (the "Parent") and the Executive and Ted Parsons (the "Merger 
Agreement"). The Executive's continued employment with the Employer after the merger and the 
Employee's execution of this Agreement is a condition to the consummation of the merger pursuant 
to the Merger Agreement by the Employer and the Parent. The Employer agrees to employ the 
Executive, and the Executive wishes to accept such continued employment, upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

The parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings specified or 
referred to in this Section I .  

"Am-eernent"--this Employment Agreement, as amended from time to time. 

"Aggregate Transaction Consideration" shall mean the total amount of cash and the fair 
market value as calculated for purposes of the transaction of all other property paid in connection 
with the transaction, but not including any mounts paid in connection with employment, consulting 
or similar agreements entered into in connection with the transaction. 

"Basic Compensation"--Salary and Benefits. 

"Benefits"--as defined in Section 3.1 (b). 

"Board of DirectorsVhe board of directors of the Employer. 
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"Confidential Information" means any and all of the following with respect to the 
Employer, its Parent, the Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their afiliates: 

(a) trade secrets concerning the business and affairs of the Employer, its Parent, the 
Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates, product specifications, data, 
know-how, formulae, compositions, processes, designs, sketches, photographs, graphs, drawings, 
samples, inventions and ideas, past, current, and planned research and development, current and 
planned manufacturing or distribution methods and processes, customer lists, current and anticipated 
customer requirements, price lists, market studies, business plans, computer software and programs 
(including object code and source code), computer software and database technologies, systems, 
structures, and architectures (and related formulae, compositions, processes, improvements, devices, 
know-how, inventions, discoveries, concepts, ideas, designs, methods and information, any other 
confidential or proprietary information or data), and any other infomation, however documented, 
that is a trade secret within the meaning of any applicable federal or state laws; and 

(b) information concerning the business 'and affairs of the Employer, its Parent, the 
Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates (which includes but is not limited 
to historical financial statements, financial projections and budgets, historical and projected sales, 
capital spending budgets and plans, the names and backgrounds of key personnel, personnel training 
and techniques and materials, interconnect agreements, supply sources, marketing, production or 
merchandising systems or plans), however documented; and 

(c) notes, analysis, compilations, studies, summaries, and other material prepared by or 
for the Employer, its Parent, the Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates 
containing or based, in whole or in part, on any information included in the foregoing. 

"Effective Date"--the date stated in the first paragraph of the Agreement. 

"Executive Invention" --my idea, invention, technique, modification, process, or 
improvement (whether patentable or not), any industrial design (whether registerable or not), any 
mask work, however fixed or encoded, that is suitable to be fixed, embedded or programmed in a 
semiconductor product (whether recordable or not), and any work of authorship (whether or not 
copyright protection may be obtained for it) created, conceived, or developed by the Executive, either 
solely or in conjunction with others, during the Employment Period with Employer or its 
predecessor, the Company, or a period that includes a portion of the Employment Period, that relates 
in any way to, or is useful in any manner in, the business then being conducted or proposed to be 
conducted by the Employer, and any such item created by the Executive, either solely or in 
conjunction with others, following termination of the Executive's employment with the Employer, 
that is based upon or uses Confidential Information. 

"Excess Profit" shall mean, with respect to any Employment Year, the Pre-Tax Income for 
such Employment Year minus five percent (5%) of the Net Sales Revenue for such Employment 
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Year (excluding Net Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on or after the Effective 
Date). 

"Employment Period"--the term of the Executive's employment under this Agreement, and 
as used herein the term "Employment Year" means each twelve month period occurring during the 
employment period and "Employment Year 1 " shall mean the first twelve months of employment 
from the Effective Date and "Employment Year 2" shall mean the 12 month period following 
Employment Year 1 and "Employment Year 3" shall mean the 12 month period following 
Employment Year 2. 

"Fiscal Year"--the Employer's fiscal year, as it exists on the Effective Date or as changed 
from time to time. 

"For cause"--as defined in Section 6.2. 

V o r  good reason"--as defined in Section 6.3. 

"Incentive Compensation"--as defined in Section 3.2. 

"Net Sales Revenue" shall mean the gross sales revenue for the Employer reduced by any 
account receivable for such sales revenue which is more than 150 days old. 

"Parent Common Stock" shall mean shares of the common stock of Parent. 

"Person"--any individual, corporation (including any nan-profit corporation), general or 
limited partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, trust, association, organization, 
or governmental body. 

"Post-Emplovment Period"--as defined in Section 8.2. 

"Pre-Tax Income" shall mean the Employer's income from ordinary business operations 
(which will not include capital gains and other extraordinary income or gains and will not be reduced 
by extraordinary losses), less expenses, and other charges (except such expenses, and charges 
attributable to capital gains and other extraordinary income or gains excluded from the d e f ~ t i o n  of 
"pre-tax income"), all as reflected on the Employer's books, and will be calculated without taking 
the payment o f  such Incentive Compensation into account for any purpose. The "he-tax Income" 
wiIl be determined by the certified public accounting firm regularly engaged by the Employer, and 
such determination will be binding on the Employer and the Executive. 

"Proprietary Items"--as defined in Section 7.2(a)(iv). 

''Salarv"--as defined in Section 3 .l (a). 
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2. EMPLOYMENT TERMS AND DUTIES 

2.1 EMPLOYMENT 

The Employer hereby employs the Executive, and the Executive hereby accepts employment 
by the Employer, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

2.2 TERM 

Subject to the provisions of Section 6, the term of the Executive's employment under this 
Agreement will be three years, beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the third anniversary 
of the Effective Date. 

2.3 DUTIES 

The Executive will have such duties as are assigned or delegated to the Executive by the 
Board of Directors or Chairman of the Board, and will initially serve as President and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Employer. The Executive will devote his entire business time, attention, 
skill, and energy exclusively to the business of the Employer, will use his best efforts to promote the 
success of the Employer's business, and will cooperate fully with the Board of Directors in the 
advancement of the best interests of the Employer. If the Executive is elected as a director of the 
Employer or as a director or oEcer of any of its affiliates, the Executive will fulfill his duties as such 
director or officer without additional compensation. 

3. COMPENSATION 

3.1 BASIC COMPENSATION 

(a) Salarv. The Executive will be paid an annual saIary 0€$192,000.00 for Employment 
Year 1; $197,760.00 for Employment Year 2 and $203,693.00 for Employment Year 3 (the 
"Salary"), which will be payable in equal periodic installments according to the Employer's 
customary payroll practices, but no less frequently than monthly, and shall be subject to all 
applicable withholding and other applicable taxes as required by law. 

(b) Benefits. The Executive will, during the Employment Period, be permitted to 
participate in such life insurance, hospitalization, major medical, and other Executive benefit plans 
of the Employer that may be in effect from time to time, to the extent the Executive is eligible under 
the terms of those plans (collectively, the "Benefits"). 

3.2 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION 

The Executive shall be eligible to e m  additional incentive compensation ("Incentive 
Compensation") as set forth below: 
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(a) Employment Year 1. Subject to hlfilling the requirements as set forth below, the 
Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 1 Incentive 
Compensation equal to the greater of the following: 

(i) $100,000 if during Employment Year 1, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and afier the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $2,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve 
month period prior to the Effective Date there is at least $150,000 of Pre-Tax 
Income for Employment Year I ; 

(ii) $200,000 if during Employment Year 1, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $4,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve 
month period prior to the Effective Date there is at least $400,000 of Pre-Tax 
Income for Employment Year 1; 

(E)  An amount equal to one-third (1/3) of the Excess Profit for Employment Year 
1 if during Employment Year 1 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) of the Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve month period 
prior to the Effective Date. 

(b) Employment Year 2. Subject to fulfillment of the requirements as set forth below, 
the Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 2 Incentive 
Compensation equal to the greater of the following: 

(i) $200,00 if during Employment Year 2, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net, 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and afier the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $4,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for 
Employment Year 1 there is at least $400,000 of Pre-Tax Income for 
Employment Year 2; 

(ii) An amount equal to one-third (1/3) of the Excess Profit for Employment Year 
2 if during Employment Year 2 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
attributable to acquisitions occumng on and after the Effective Date) ofthe Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for Employment Year 1. 

(c) Employment Year 3. Subject to fblfillment of the requirements as set forth below, 
the Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 3 Incentive 
Compensation equal to the following: 

(i) An amount equal to one-third (1 /3) of the Excess Profit for Employment Year 
3 if during Employment Year 3 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
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attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) ofthe Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for Employment Year 2. 

Any Incentive Compensation paid pursuant to this Section 3.2 shall be subject to all 
withholdings and other applicable taxes as required by law. 

3.3 PARENT STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION 

(a) On the first business day of Employment Year 1 , the Executive shall be granted and 
issued options for 600,000 shares o f  restricted Parent Common Stock (1 00,000 of which shall be 
attributable to Employment Year 1,200,000 of which shall be attributable to Employment Year 2, 
and 300,000 of which shall be attributable to Employment Year 3) (the "Options"). The Options 
shall vest as follows: Options for 100,000 shxes of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 3 years from 
the grant date, options for 200,000 shares of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 4 years from the grant 
date and options for 300,000 shares of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 5 years from the grant date. 
The stock options shall provide for a five ( 5 )  year term fiom the vesting date, a strike price that is 
10% above the closing price of the Parent Common Stock on the date of issue of the Options. 

3.4 ACQUISITION BONUS 

For any acquisition of an existing business made by Employer during the Employment 
Period, then the Executive shall receive upon closing of the acquisition warrants for restricted Parent 
Common Stock with a value equal to 1.333% of the Aggregate Transaction Consideration of the 
acquisition. The value of the warrants shall be calculated one day prior to the closing of the 
acquisition assuming a 90% volatility of the underlying Parent Common Stock pursuant to the Black 
Scholes option - pricing model and shall vest six months from the date of issue. The warrants shall 
be convertible on a one-to-one basis into common stock with a term of five years, a strike price that 
is 10% above the closing price of the Parent Common Stock one day prior to the closing date of the 
acquisition. 

4. FACILITIES AND EXPENSES 

The Employer will furnish the Executive office space, equipment, supplies, and such other 
facilities and personnel as the Employer deems necessary or appropriate for the performance of the 
Executive's duties under this Agreement. 

5 .  VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS 

The Executive will be entitled to three weeks' paid vacation each Employment Year in 
accordance with the vacation policies of the Employer in effect for its executive officers fiom time 
to time. Vacation must be taken by the Executive at such time or times as approved by the Chairman 
of the Board or Chief Executive Officer. The Executive will also be entitled to the paid holidays set 
forth in the Employer's policies. Up to five vacation days during any Employment Year that are not 

978 100.3/14024.19141 6 DraR 5/28/04 ( 4 2 2  PM) 



used by the Executive during such Employment Year may be used in any subsequent Employment 
Year. 

6.  

6.1 

TERMINATION 

EVENTS OF TERMINATION 

The Employment Period, the Executive's Basic Compensation, Incentive Compensation, any 
Parent Stock Options which have not vested, and Parent Stock Warrants which have not vested and 
my and all otheI- rights of the Executive under this Agreement or otherwise as an Executive of the 
Employer will terminate (except as otherwise provided in this Section 6): 

upon the death ofthe Executive; 

@) for cause (as defined in Section 6.2), immediately upon notice from the Employer to 
the Executive, or at such later time as such notice may specify; or 

(c) for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3) upon not less than thirty days' prior notice 
from the Executive to the Employer. 

(d) upon termination of employment by Executive for any reason other than for good 
reason (as defined in Section 6.3). 

6.2 DEFINITION OF "FOR CAUSE" 

For purposes of Section 6.1, the phrase "for cause" means: (a) the Executive's breach of this 
Agreement which remains uncorrected for 30 days following notice from the Employer; (b) the 
Executive's failure to adhere to any written Employer policy if the Executive has been given a 
reasonable opportunity to comply with such policy or cure his failure to comply (which reasonable 
opportunity must be granted during the ten-day period preceding termination of this Agreement); 
(c)  the appropriation (or attempted appropriation) of a material business opportunity of the 
Employer, including attempting to secure or securing any personal profit in connection with any 
transaction entered into on behalf of the Employer; (d) the misappropriation (or attempted 
misappropriation) of any of the Employer's funds or property; or (e) the conviction of, the 
indictment for (or its procedural equivalent), or the entering of a guilty plea or plea of no contest with 
respect to, a felony, the equivalent thereof, or any other crime with respect to which imprisonment 
is a possible punishment. 

6.3 DEFINITION OF "FOR GOOD REASON" 

For purposes of Section 6.1, the phrase "for good reason" means any of the following: (a) The 
Employer's material breach of this Agreement which is not cured within 30 days from the date of 
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notice from the Executive; or (b) the requirement by the Employer that the Executive be based 
anywhere other than in the State of Mississippi without the Executive's consent. 

6.4 TERMINATION PAY 

Effective upon the termination of th is  Agreement, the Employer will be obligated to pay the 
Executive (or, in the event of his death, his designated beneficiary as defined below) only such 
compensation as is provided in this Section 6.4, and in lieu of all other amounts and in settlement 
and complete release of all claims the Executive may have against the Employer. For purposes of 
this Section 6.4, the Executive's designated beneficiary will be such individual beneficiary or trust, 
located at such address, as the Executive may designate by notice to the Employer from time to time 
or, if the Executive fails to give notice to the Employer of such a beneficiary, the Executive's estate. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Employer will have no duty, in any circumstances, to 
attempt to open an estate on behalf of the Executive, to determine whether any beneficiary 
designated by the Executive is alive or to ascertain the address of any such beneficiary, to determine 
the existence of any trust, to determine whether any person or entity purporting to act as the 
Executive's personal representative (or the trustee of a trust established by the Executive) is duly 
authorized to act in that capacity, or to locate or attempt to locate any beneficiary, personal 
representative, or trustee. 

(a) Termination by the Executive €or Good Reason. If the Executive terminates this 
Agreement for good reason, the Employer will pay the Executive the Executive's Salary for the 
remainder of the t e r n  of this Agreement (the "Remainder Tern'') as and when such salary would 
otherwise become due and payable. The Executive shall have the right to retain any Parent Stock 
Warrants previously granted pursuant to Section 3.4 and such Parent Stock Warrants shall 
immediately vest, but the Executive shall not have the right to any future Parent Stock Warrants as 
provided in Section 3.4 or any Incentive Compensation as provided in Section 3.2 for the 
Employment Year during which such termination occurs or any subsequent Employment Year. The 
Executive shall have the right to retain the options attributable as provided in Section 3.3 hereof for 
the Employment Year during which such termination occurs and any prior year and such options 
shall vest immediately, but the Employee shall not be entitled to retain the options attributable to any 
Employment Year subsequent to the Employment Year during which such termination occurred and 
such options shall expire. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if the Executive obtains other 
employment prior to the end of the Remainder Term, he must promptly give notice thereof to the 
Employer, and the Salary payments under this Agreement for any period after the Executive obtains 
other employment will be reduced by the amount of the cash compensation received and to be 
received by the Executive from the Executive's other employment for services performed during such 
period. 

(b) Termination by the Employer for Cause or Termination by Executive without Good 
Reason. If the Employer terminates this Agreement for cause or the Executive terminates his 
employment for any reason other than for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3), the Executive will 
be entitled to receive his Salary only through the date such termination is effective, and will not be 
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entitled to any Incentive Compensation, Parent Stock Options or Parent Stock Warrants for the 
Employment Year during which such termination occurs or any subsequent Employment Year and 
any Parent Stock Options granted to the Executive pursuant to Section 3.3 that have not vested and 
any Parent Stock Warrants granted to the Executive whether or not vested pursuant to Section 3.4 
shall be cancelled. 

(c) Termination upon Death. If this Agreement is tenninated because of the Executive's 
death, the Executive will be entitled to receive his Salary through the end of the calendar month in 
which his death OCCUTS, but will not be entitled to receive any Incentive Compensation, Parent Stock 
Options pursuant to Section 3.3 or Parent Stock Warrants pursuant to Section 3.4 for the 
Employment Year during which his death occurs or any subsequent Employment Year and my 
Parent Stock Options granted to the Executive pursuant to Section 3.3 that have not vested and any 
Parent Stock Warrants granted to the Executive whether or not vested pursuant to Sections 3.4 hereof 
shall be cancelled. 

(d) Benefits. The Executive's accrual of, or participation in plans providing for, the 
Benefits will cease at the effective date of the termination of this Agreement, and the Executive will 
be entitled to accrued Benefits pursuant to such plans only as provided in such plans. The Executive 
will only receive, as part of his ternination pay pursuant to this Section 6, any payment or other 
compensation for any vacation, holiday, sick leave, or other leave unused on the date the notice of 
termination is given under this Agreement if the termination is due to the death of Executive or 
termination by the Executive for Good Reason per Section 6.3. 

6.5 TERMINATION DAMAGES PAYABLE BY EXECUTIVE 

The Executive and the Employer agree that it is impossible to determine with any reasonable 
accuracy the mount  of the prospective damages to the Employer if the Executive's employment is 
terminated for any reason other than death or for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3) by the 
Executive (such termination referred to in this paragraph as "Executive Termination Without 
Cause"). In the event of any Executive Termination Without Cause, the Executive agrees to pay as 
liquidated damages to the Employer an mount  equal as follows: 

(a) Ifthe Executive Termination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 1, then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an amount equal to $ly329,O00.0O. 

@) If the Executive Ternination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 2, then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an mount equal to $886,000.00. 

(c )  If the Executive Termination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 3, then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an mount equal to $443,000.00. 
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7. NON-DISCLOSUE COVENANT; EXECUTIVE INVENTIONS; NON- 
COMPETE 

7.1 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BY THE EXECUTIVE 

The Executive acknowledges that (a) during the Employment Period and his prior 
employment period with the Employe'r's predecessor, the Company, and as a part of his employment 
with the Employer and its predecessor, the Company, the Executive was and will continue to be 
afforded access to Confidential Information; (b) public disclosure of such Confidential Information 
could have an adverse effect on the Employer and its business; (c) because the Executive possesses 
substantial technical expertise and skill with respect to the Employer's business, the Employer desires 
to obtain exclusive ownership of each Executive Invention, and the Employer will be at a substantial 
competitive disadvantage if it fails to acquire exclusive ownership of each Executive Invention; 
(d) the Parent and Employer have each required that the Executive make the covenants in this 
Section 7 as a condition to the merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement; and (e) the provisions of 
this Section 7 are reasonable and necessary to prevent the improper use or disclosure of Confidential 
Idormation and to provide the Employer With exclusive ownership of all Executive Inventions. 

7.2 AGREEMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

In consideration of the compensation and benefits to be paid or provided to the Executive by 
the Employer under this Agreement, the Executive covenants (in addition to but not in lieu of the 
covenants given under that certain Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation and Work-For-Hire Agreement 
dated 6/11/02 which the Executive agrees shall continue in favor of the Employer) as follows: 

(a) Confidentialitv. 

(i) During and following ~e Employment Period, the Executive will hold in 
confidence the Confidential Information and will not disclose it to any person except 
with the specific prior written consent of the Employer or except as otherwise 
expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement. 

(ii) Any trade secrets ofthe Employer will be entitled to all of the protections and 
benefits under any applicable federal or state trade secret law and any other 
applicable law. If any information that the Employer deems to be a trade secret is 
found by a court of competent jurisdiction not to be a trade secret for purposes of this 
Agreement, such information will, nevertheless, be considered Confidential 
Information for purposes of this Agreement. The Executive hereby waives any 
requirement that the Employer submit proof of the economic value of any trade secret 
or post a bond or other security. 
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(iii) None of the foregoing obligations and restrictions applies to any part of the 
Confidential Information that the Executive demonstrates was or became generally 
available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Executive. 

(iv) The Executive will not remove from the Employer's premises (except to the 
extent such removal is for purposes of the performance of the Executive's duties at 
home or while traveling, or except as otherwise specifically authorized by the 
Employer) any document, record, notebook, plan, model, component, device, or 
computer software or code, whether embodied in a disk or in any other form 
(collectively, the "Proprietary Items"). The Executive recognizes that, as between the 
Employer and the Executive, all of the Proprietary Items, whether or not developed 
by the Executive, are the exclusive property of the Employer. Upon ternination of 
this Agreement by either party, or upon the request of the Employer during the 
Employment Period, the Executive will return to the Employer all of the Proprietary 
Items in the Executive's possession or subject to the Executive's control, and the 
Executive shall not retain any copies, abstracts, sketches, or other physical 
embodiment of any of the Proprietary Items. 

(b) Executive Inventions. Each Executive Invention will belong exclusively to the 
Employer. The Executive acknowledges that all of the Executive's writing, works of authorship, and 
other Executive Inventions are works made for hire and the property of the Employer, including any 
copyrights, patents, or other intellectual property r ights  pertaining thereto. If it is determined that any 
such works are not works made for hire, the Executive hereby assigns to the Employer all of the 
Executive's right, title, and interest, including all rights of copyright, patent, and other intellectual 
property rights, to or in such Executive Inventions. The Executive covenants that he will promptly: 

disclose to the Employer in writing any Executive Invention; 

(ii) assign to the Employer or to a party designated by the Employer, at the 
Employer's request and without additional compensation, all of the Executive's right 
to the Executive Invention for the United States and all foreign jurisdictions; 

(iii) execute and deliver to the Employer such applications, assignments, and other 
documents as the Employer may request in order to apply for and obtain patents or 
other registrations with respect to any Executive Invention in the United States and 
any foreign jurisdictions; 

sign all other papers necessary to carry out the above obligations; and 

(v) 
rights to any Executive Invention. 

give testimony and render any other assistance in support of the Employer's 
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7.3 DISPUTES OR CONTROVERSIES 

The Executive recognizes that should a dispute or controversy arising from or relating to this 
Agreement be submitted for adjudication to any court, arbitration panel, or other third party, the 
preservation of the secrecy of Confidential Information may be jeopardized. All pleadings, 
documents, testimony, and records relating to any such adjudication will be maintained in secrecy 
and will be available for inspection by the Employer, the Executive, and their respective attorneys 
and experts, who wil  agree, in advance and in writing, to receive and maintain all such information 
in secrecy, except as may be limited by them in writing. 

8. 

8.1 

NON-COMPETITION AND NON-INTERFERENCE 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BY THE EXECUTIVE 

The Executive acknowledges that: (a) the services to be performed by him under this 
Agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary, and intellectual character; (b) the 
Employer’s business is currently regional in scope and its products are marketed or may be marketed 
throughout the States of Mississippi, Alabama, Louisiana, Georgia, Tennessee, Florida, Kentucky, 
North Carolina or South Carolina (the ”Restricted Area”); (c) the Employer competes with other 
businesses that are or could be located in any part of the Restricted Area; (d) the Parent and 
Employer have each required that the Executive make the covenants set forth in this Section 8 as a 
condition to the merger under the Merger Agreement; and (e) the provisions of this Section 8 are 
reasonable and necessary to protect the Employer’s business. 

8.2 COVENANTS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

In consideration of the acknowledgments by the Executive, and in consideration of the 
compensation and benefits to be paid or provided to the Executive by the Employer, the Executive 
covenants that he will not, directly or indirectly: 

(a) during the Employment Period, except in the course of his employment hereunder, 
and during the Post-Employment Period, directly or indirectly, either for himself or for any 
partnership, limited liability company, individual, corporation, joint venture or any other entity or 
person “participate in” (as defined below) any business (including, without limitation, any division, 
group or franchise of a larger organization) which engages in the ”Telecommunications Business’’ 
in the Restricted Area. For purposes of this Agreement, ‘‘Telecommunications Business” shall mean 
the business of providing any type of telecommunication services or internet access services to any 
person or customer within the Restricted Area, including, without limitation, local, long distance, 
broadband, dial up data services, wireless, DSL, Voice-over-Internet Protocol (VoP) and any other 
service or product being offered or provided by the Employer or the Parent or any of their respective 
affiliates. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “participate in” shall include, without limitation, 
having any direct or indirect interest in any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint 
venture or other entity, whether as a sole proprietor, owner, shareholder, partner, member, manager, 
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joint venturer, creditor or otherwise, or rendering any direct or indirect service or assistance to any 
individual corporation, partnership, limited liability company, j oint venture and other business entity 
(whether as a director, officer, manager, supervisor, Executive, agent, consultant or otherwise). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 8.2(a) shall prohibit Executive from owning 
not more than five percent (5%) of the debt or equity securities of a publicly traded corporation 
which may compete with the Employer or the Parent. 

' 

(b) whether for the Executive's own account or fur the account of any other person, at any 
time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, solicit business of the same 
or similar type being carried on by the Employer or its Parent or any of their affiliates, from any 
person known by the Executive to be a customer of the Employer or its Parent or any of their 
affiliates, whether or not the Executive had personal contact with such person during and by reason 
of the Executive's employment with the Employer; 

(c) whether for the Executive's own account or the account of any other person (i) at any 
time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, solicit, employ, or otherwise 
engage as an Executive, independent contractor, or otherwise, any person who is or was an Executive 
of the Employer at any time during the Employment Period or in the period of employment with the 
Employer's predecessor or in any manner induce or attempt to induce any Executive of the Employer 
to terminate his employment with the Employer; or (ii) at any time during the Employment Period 
and for the Post-Employment Period, interfere with the Employer's relationship with any person, 
including any person who at any time during the Employment Period or the period of employment 
with the Employer's predecessor was an Executive, contractor, supplier, or customer of the Employer 
or its predecessor; or 

(d) at my time during or after the Employment Period, disparage the Employer or its 
Parent or any of their affiliates or any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, Executives, 
or agents. 

For purposes of this Section 8.2, the term "Post-Employment Period" means the two (2) year 
period beginning on the date of termination of the Executive's employment with the Employer. 

If any covenant in this Section 8.2 is held to be unreasonable, arbitrary, or against public 
policy, such covenant will be considered to be divisible with respect to scope, time, and geographic 
area, and such lesser scope, time, or geographic area, or all of them, as a court of competent 
jurisdiction may determine to be reasonable, not arbitrary, and not against public policy, will be 
effective, binding, and enforceable against the Executive. 

The period of time applicable to any covenant in this Section 8.2 will be extended by the 
duration of any violation by the Executive of such covenant. 

The Executive will, while the covenant under this Section 8.2 is in effect, give notice to the 
Employer, within ten days after accepting any other employment, of the identity of the Executive's 
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employer. The Employer may notify such employer that the Executive is bound by this Agreement 
and, at the Employer’s election, h i s h  such employer with a copy of this Agreement or relevant 
portions thereof. 

(e) If at any time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, 
Executive desires to participate in an activity that he believes might be prohibited by this Section 8.2, 
such person may request in writing (a “Clarification Request”) a determination by Employer as to 
whether such proposed activity would violate this Section 8.2. Employer shall respond in writing 
to such Clarification Request (a “Clarification Response”) within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof. 

9. 

9.1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

INJUNCTTNE RELIEF AND ADDITIONAL REMEDY 

The Executive acknowledges that the injury that would be suffered by the Employer as a 
result of a breach of the provisions of this Agreement (including any provision of Sections 7 and 8) 
would be irreparable and that an award of monetary damages to the Employer for such a breach 
would be an inadequate remedy. Consequently, the Employer will have the right, in addition to any 
other rights it may have, to obtain injunctive relief to restrain any breach or threatened breach or 
otherwise to specifically enforce any provision of this Agreement, and the Employer will not be 
obligated to post bond or other security in seeking such relief. Without limiting the Employer’s 
rights under this Section 9 or any other remedies of the Employer, if the Executive breaches any of 
the provisions of Section 7 or 8, the Employer will have the right to cease making any payments 
otherwise due to the Executive under this Agreement. 

9.2 COVENANTS OF SECTIONS 7 AND 8 AREESSENTIAL AND INDEPENDENT 
COVENANTS 

The covenants by the Executive in Sections 7 and 8 are essential elements of this Agreement, 
and without the Executive’s agreement to comply with such covenants, the Parent and Employer 
would not have consummated the merger under the Merger Agreement and the Employer would not 
have entered into this Agreement or empIoyed or continued the employment of the Executive. The 
Employer and the Executive have independently consulted their respective counsel and have been 
advised in all respects concerning the reasonableness and propriety of such covenants, with specific 
regard to the nature of the business conducted by the Employer. 

The Executive’s covenants in Sections 7 and 8 are independent covenants and the existence 
of any claim by the Executive against the Employer under this Agreement or otherwise, or against 
the Parent, will not excuse the Executive’s breach of any covenant in Section 7 or 8. 

If the Executive’s employment hereunder expires or is terminated, this Agreement will 
continue in full force and effect as is necessary or appropriate to enforce the covenants and 
agreements of the Executive in Sections 7 and 8. 
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9.3 REPRESENTATIONS AND W W N T I E S  BY THE EXECUTIVE 

(a) The Executive represents and warrants to the Employer that the execution and 
delivery by the Executive of this Agreement do not, and the performance by the Executive of the 
Executive's obligations hereunder will not, with or without the giving of notice or the passage of 
time, or both: (a) violate any judgment, writ, injunction, or order of any court, arbitrator, or 
govemmental agency applicable to the Executive; or (b) conflict with, result in the breach of any 
provisions of or the termination of, or constitute a default under, any agreement to which the 
Executive is a party or by which the Executive is or may be bound. 

(b) The Employer represents and warrants to the Executive that the execution and 
delivery by the Employer of this Agreement do not, and the performance by the Employer of the 
Employer's obligations hereunder will not, with or without the giving of notice or the passage of 
time, or both: (a) violate any judgment, writ, injunction, or order of any court, arbitrator, or 
governmental agency applicable to the Employer; or (b) conflict with, result in the breach of any 
provisions of or the termination of, or constitute a default under, any agreement to which the 
Employer is a party or by which the Employer is or may be bound. 

9.4 OBLIGATIONS CONTINGENT ON PERFORMANCE 

The obligations of the Employer hereunder, including its obligation to pay the compensation 
provided for herein, are contingent upon the Executive's performance of the Executive's obligations 
hereunder. 

9.5 WAIVER 

The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement are cumulative and not alternative. 
Neither the failwe nor any delay by either party in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this 
Agreement will operate as a waiver of such right, power, or privilege, and no single or partial 
exercise of any such right, power, or privilege will preclude any other or further exercise of such 
right, power, or privilege or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. To the maximum 
extent permitted by applicable law, (a) no claim or right arising out of this Agreement can be 
discharged by one party, in whole or in part, by a waiver or renunciation ofthe claim or right unless 
in writing signed by the other party; fb) no waiver that may be given by a party will be applicable 
except in the specific instance for which it is given; and (c) no notice to or demand on one party will 
be deemed to be a waiver of any obligation of such party or of the right of the party giving such 
notice or demand to take M e r  action without notice or demand as provided in this Agreement. 

9.6 BINDING EFFECT; DELEGATION OF DUTIES PROHTBITED 

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties hereto and 
their respective successors, assigns, heirs, and legal representatives, including any entity with which 
the Employer may merge or consolidate or to which all or substantially all o€ its assets may be 
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transferred. The duties and covenants of the Executive under this Agreement, being personal, may 
not be delegated. 

9.7 NOTICES 

All notices, consents, waivers, and other communications under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) delivered by hand (with written 
confirmation of receipt), (b) sent by facsimile (with written confirmation of receipt), provided that 
a copy is mailed by registered mail, return receipt requested, or (c) when received by the addressee, 
if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case to the 
appropriate addresses and facsimile numbers set forth below (or to such other addresses and 
facsimile numbers as a party may designate by notice to the other parties): 

If to Employer: 

XFone, Inc. 
Britannia House 
960 High Road 
London, N129RY 
United Kingdom 
Attention: Guy Nissenson 
Telephone: +44 208-446-9494 
Facsimile: +44 208-446-701 0 
Email: guy@xfone.com 

with a copy to: 

The Oberon Group, LLC 
79 Madison Ave., 6* Floor 
New York, NY 10016 
Attention: Adam Breslawsky 
Telephone: 212-386-7052 
Facsimile: 2 12-447-72 12 
Email: adam@oberongr oup. c om 

Watkins Ludlam Winter & Stemis, P.A. 
633 North State Street (39202) 
P. 0. Box 427 
Jackson, MS 39205-0427 
Attention: Gina M. Jacobs 
Telephone: 60 1-949-4705 
Facsimile: 60 I -949-4804 
Email: a acobs@watkinsludlam. corn 
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If to the Executive: 

Wade Spooner 
153 Bellepointe 
Madison, MS 3 9 1 10 
Telephone: 601-898-4722 (H) 
Facsimile: 509-27 1-774 1 
Email: wspooner@expeteI.com 

9.8 ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement, the Merger Agreement, and the documents executed in connection with the 
Merger Agreement, contain the entire agreement between the parties With respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the 
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be amended orally, 
but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto. 

9.9 GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi without regard to 
conflicts of laws principles. 

9.10 JWRISDICTTON 

Any action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based OR any right arising 
out of, this Agreement may be brought against either of the parties in the courts o€ the State of 
Mississippi, or, if it has or can acquire jurisdiction, in any of the United States District Courts in 
Mississippi, and each of the parties consents to the jurisdiction of suck courts (and of the appropriate 
appellate courts) in any such action or proceeding and waives any objection to venue laid therein. 
Process in any action or proceeding referred to in the preceding sentence may be served on either 
party anywhere in the world. 

9.1 1 SECTION HEADINGS, CONSTRUCTION 

The headings of Sections in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and will not 
affect its construction or interpretation. All references to "Section" or "Sections" refer to the 
corresponding Section or Sections of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All words used in 
this Agreement will be construed to be of such gender or number as the circumstances require. 
Unless otherwise expressly provided, the word "incIuding" does not limit the preceding words or 
terms. 

9.12 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unedorceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any 

978 100.511 4024.19 14 1 17 Draft 5/28/04 (4:22 PM) 



.- . provision of this Agreement held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will remain in full 
force and effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

9.13 COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed 
to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

9.14 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 

THEPARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE A JURY T W I N  ANYLITIGATION WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

9.15 IRREVOCABLE PROXY FROM EXECUTIVE 

As a condition to the employment of the Executive, the Executive shall have entered into an 
Irrevocable Proxy in form reasonably satisfactory to Parent in which the Executive agrees to 
irrevocably appoint Guy Nissenson or such other party designated by Parent as proxy to vote the 
Executive's Parent Common Stock or any Parent Common Stock issued to or acquired hereafter by 
the Executive whether from the exercise of any of the Parent Stock Wmants or any other stock 
options or warrants granted hereafter or otherwise until such time as the Executive sells such Parent 
Common Stock. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the 
date above first written above. I 

EMPLOYER: 

D o n e  USA, hc .  

EXECUTIVE: 

By: 
Guy Nissenson, President Wade Spooner, Individually 
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Form of Parsons Employment Agreement 
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (this "Agreement1') is made as of A 2004 
by XFone USA, Inc., a Mississippi corporation (the "Employer"), and Ted Parsons, an individual 
(the "Executive"). 

RECITALS 

The Executive is currently the Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer and a 
principal shareholder of WS Tekcom, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries eXpeTel 
Communications, Inc. and Gulf Coast Utilities, Inc. (collectively the "Company"). Concurrently 
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Company is being merged with and into the 
Employer pursuant to and in accordance with that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger dated 

,2004 among the Company, the Employer, s o n e ,  Inc. (the "Parent") and the 
Executive and Wade Spooner (the "Merger Agreement"). The Executive's continued employment 
with the Employer after the merger and the Employee's execution of this Agreement is a condition 
to the consummation of the merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement by the Employer and the 
Parent. The Employer agrees to employ the Executive, and the Executive wishes to accept such 
continued employment, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

The parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings specified or 
referred to in this Section 1. 

"Agreernent"--thk Employment Agreement, as amended from time to time. 

=regate Transaction Consideration" shall mean the total amount of cash and the fair 
market value as calculated for purposes of the transaction of all other property paid in connection 
with the transaction, but not including any amounts paid in connection with employment, consulting 
or similar agreements entered into in connection with the transaction. 

"Basic Compensationf'--Salary and Benefits. 

"Benefits"--as defined in Section 3.1 (b). 

"Board of Directors"--the board of directors of the Employer. 
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"Confidential Information" means any and all of the following with respect to the 
Employer, its Parent, the Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates: 

(a) trade secrets concerning the business and affairs of the Employer, its Parent, the 
Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates, product specifications, data, 
know-how, formulae, compositions, processes, designs, sketches, photographs, graphs, drawings, 
samples, inventions and ideas, past, current, and planned research and development, current and 
planned manufacturing or distribution methods and processes, customer lists, current and anticipated 
customer requirements, price lists, market studies, business plans, computer software and programs 
(including object code and source code), computer software and database technologies, systems, 
structures, and architectures (and related formulae, compositions, processes, improvements, devices, 
know-how, inventions, discoveries, concepts, ideas, designs, methods and Information, any other 
confidential or proprietary information or data), and any other information, however documented, 
that is a trade secret within the meaning of any applicable federal or state laws; and 

(b) information concerning the business and affairs of the Employer, its Parent, the 
Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their afiliates (which includes but is not limited 
to historical financial statements, financial projections and budgets, historical and projected sales, 
capital spending budgets and plans, the names and backgrounds of key personnel, personnel training 
and techniques and materials, interconnect agreements, supply sources, marketing, production or 
merchandising systems or plans), however documented; and 

(c) notes, analysis, compilations, studies, summaries, and other material prepared by or 
for the Employer, its Parent, the Company as predecessor to the Employer or any of their affiliates 
containing or based, in whole or in part, on any information included in the foregoing. 

"Effective Date"--the date stated in the first paragraph of the Agreement. 

"Executive Invention'kiny idea, invention, technique, modification, process, or 
improvement (whether patentable or not), any industrial design (whether registerable or not), any 
mask work, however fixed or encoded, that is suitable to be fixed, embedded or programmed in a 
semiconductor product (whether recordable or not), and any work of authorship (whether or not 
copyright protection may be obtained for it) created, conceived, or developed by the Executive, either 
solely or in conjunction with others, during the Employment Period with Employer or its 
predecessor, the Company, or a period that includes a portion of the Employment Period, that relates 
in any way to, or is useful in any manner in, the business then being conducted or proposed to be 
conducted by the Employer, and any such item created by the Executive, either solely or in 
conjunction with others, following termination of the Executive's employment with the Employer, 
that is based upon or uses Confidential Information. 

"Excess Profit" shall mean, with respect to any Employment Year, the Pre-Tax Income for 
such Employment Year minus five percent (5%) of the Net Sales Revenue for such Employment 
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Year (excluding Net Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on or after the Effective 
Date). 

"Emplovrnent Period"--the term of the Executive's employment under this Agreement, and 
as used herein the term "Employment Year" means each twelve month period occurring during the 
employment period and "Employment Year 1 " shall mean the first twelve months of employment 
from the Effective Date and "Employment Year 2" shall mean the 12 month period following 
Employment Year I and "Employment Year 3" shall mean the 12 month period following 
Employment Year 2. 

"Fiscal Year"--the Employer's fiscal year, as it exists on the Effective Date or as changed 
fiom time to time. 

"For cause"--as defined in Section 6.2. 

"For eood reason"--as defined in Section 6.3. 

"Incentive Compensation"--as defined in Section 3.2. 

"Net Sales Revenue" shall mean the gross sales revenue for the Employer reduced by any 
account receivable for such sales revenue which is more than 150 days old. 

"Parent Common Stock" shall mean shares of the cornmon stock of Parent. 

"Person"--any individual, corporation (including any non-profit corporation), general or 
limited partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, estate, trust, association, organization, 
or governmental body. 

"Post-Emplovment Period"--as defined in Section 8.2. 

"Pre-Tax Income" shall mean the Employer's income from ordinary business operations 
(which will not include capital gains and other extraordinary income or gains and will not be reduced 
by extraordinary Iosses), less expenses, and other charges (except such expenses, and charges 
attributable to capital gains and other extraordinary income or gains excluded from the deflmition of 
"pre-tax income"), all as reflected on the Employer's books, and will be calculated without taking 
the payment of such Incentive Compensation into account €or any purpose. The "Pre-tax Income" 
will be determined by the certified public accounting firm regularly engaged by the Employer, and 
such determination will be binding on the Employer and the Executive. 

"Proprietary Items"--as defined in Section 7.2(a)(iv). 

"Salary"--as defined in Section 3.1 (a). 
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2. 

2.1 

EMPLOYMENT TERMS AND DUTIES 

EMPLOYMENT 

The Employer hereby employs the Executive, and the Executive hereby accepts employment 
by the Employer, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

2.2 TERM 

Subject to the provisions of Section 6, the term of the Executive's employment under this 
Agreement will be three years, beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the third anniversary 
of the Effective Date. 

2.3 DUTIES 

The Executive will have such duties as are assigned or delegated to the Executive by the 
Board of Directors or Chairman of the Board, and will initially serve as Executive Vice President 
and Chief Marketing Officer of the Employer. The Executive will devote his entire business time, 
attention, skill, and energy exclusively to the business of the Employer, will use his best efforts to 
promote the success of the Employer's business, and will cooperate fully with the Board of Directors 
in the advancement of the best interests of the Employer. If the Executive is elected as a director 
of the Employer or as a director or officer of any of its affiliates, the Executive will fulfill his duties 
as such director or officer without additional compensation. 

3. 

3.1 

COMPENSATION 

BASIC COMPENSATION 

(a) Salary. The Executive will be paid an annual salary of $100,800.00 for Employment 
Year 1; $103,825.00 for Employment Year 2 and $106,940.00 for Employment Year 3 (the 
'Salary"), which will be payable in equal periodic installments according to the Employer's 
customary payroll practices, but no less frequently than monthly, and shall be subject to all 
applicable withholding and other applicable taxes as required by law. 

(b) Benefits. The Executive will, during the Employment Period, be permitted to 
participate in such life insurance, hospitalization, rnaj or medical, and other Executive benefit plans 
of the Employer that may be in eEect from time to time, to the extent the Executive is eligible under 
the terms of those plans (collectively, the "Benefits"). In addition, the Employer shall pay to the 
Employee a seven hundred dollar ($700.00) automobile allowance per month. 
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3 -2 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION 

The Executive shall be eligible to earn additional incentive compensation (“Incentive 
Compensation”) as set forth below: 

(a) Emplovment Year 1 .  Subject to fulfilling the requirements as set forth below, the 
Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 1 lncentive 
Compensation equal to the greater of the following: 

(i) $50,000 if during Employment Year 1, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $2,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve 
month period prior to the Effective Date there is at least $150,000 of Pre-Tax 
Income for Employment Year 1; 

(ii) $100,000 if during Employment Year 1, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $4,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve 
month period prior to the Effective Date there is at least $400,000 of Pre-Tax 
Income for Employment Year 1; 

(iii) An mount equal to one-sixth (V6)  of the Excess Profit for Employrnent Year 
1 if during Employment Year 1 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) of the Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for the twelve month period 
prior to the Effective Date. 

(b) Emplovment Year 2. Subject to fulfillment of the requirements as set forth below, 
the Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 2 Incentive 
Compensation equal to the greater of the following: 

(i) $lOO,OO if during Employment Year 2, Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net 
Sales Revenue attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) 
of the Employer exceed by $4,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for 
Employment Year 1 there is at least $400,000 of Pre-Tax Lncome for 
Employment Year 2; OR 

(ii) An amount equal to one-sixth (1/6) ofthe Excess Profit for Employment Year 
2 if during Employment Year 2 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) of the Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for Employment Year 1. 
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(c)  Emdowent  Year 3. Subject to fulfillment of the requirements as set forth below, 
the Employer shall pay the Executive within 90 days of the end of Employment Year 3 Incentive 
Cornpensation equal to the following: 

(i) An m o u n t  equal to one-sixth (1/6) ofthe Excess Profit for Employment Year 
3 if during Employment Year 3 the Net Sales Revenue (excluding Net Sales Revenue 
attributable to acquisitions occurring on and after the Effective Date) of the Employer 
exceed by $7,000,000 or more the Net Sales Revenue for Employment Year 2. 

Any Incentive Compensation paid pursuant to this Section 3.2 shall be subject to all 
withholdings and other applicable taxes as required by law. 

3.3 PARENT STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION 

On the first business day of Employment Year 1, the Executive shall be granted and issued 
options for 300,000 shares ofrestricted Parent Cornmon Stock (50,000 of which shall be attributable 
to Employment Year 1 , 100,000 of which shall be attributable to Employment Year 2, and 150,000 
of which shall be attributable to Employment Year 3) (the "Options"). The Options shall vest as 
follows: Options for 50,000 shares of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 3 years from the grant date, 
options for 100,000 shares of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 4 years from the grant date and 
options for 150,000 shares of restricted Parent Stock shall vest 5 years fiom the grant date. The 
stock options shall provide for a five (5) year term from the vesting date, a strike price that is 10% 
above the closing price of the Parent Common Stock on the date of issue of the Options. 

3 -4 ACQUISITION BONUS 

For any acquisition of an existing business made by Employer during the Employment 
Period, then the Executive shall receive upon closing of the acquisition warrants for restricted Parent 
Common Stock with a value equal to 0.666% of the Aggregate Transaction Consideration of the 
acquisition. The value of the warrants shall be calculated one day prior to the closing of the 
acquisition assuming a 90% volatility of the underlying Parent Common Stock pursuant to the Black 
Scholes option - pricing model and shall vest six months from the date of issue. The warrants shall 
be convertible on a one-to-one basis into common stock with a term of five years, a strike price that 
is 10% above the closing price o f  the Parent Common Stock one day prior to the closing date of the 
acquisition. 

4. FACILITIES AND EXPENSES 

The Employer will furnish the Executive office space, equipment, supplies, and such other 
facilities and personnel as the Employer deems necessary or appropriate for the performance of the 
Executive's duties under this Agreement. 
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5. VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS 

The Executive will be entitled to three weeks' paid vacation each Employment Year in 
accordance with the vacation policies of the Employer in effect far its executive officers from time 
to time. Vacation must be taken by the Executive at such time or times as approved by the Chairman 
of the Board or Chief Executive Officer. The Executive will also be entitled to the paid holidays set 
forth in the Employer's policies. Up to five vacation days during any Employment Year that are not 
used by the Executive during such Employment Year may be used in any subsequent Employment 
Year. 

6 .  TERMINATION 

6.1 EVENTS OF TERMINATION 

The Employment Period, the Executive's Basic Compensation, Incentive Compensation, any 
Parent Stock Options which have not vested, and Parent Stock Warrants which have not vested and. 
any and all other rights of the Executive under this Agreement or otherwise as an Executive of the 
Employer will terminate (except as otherwise provided in this Section 6): 

(a) upon the death of the Executive; 

(b) for cause (as defined in Section 6.2), immediately upon notice from the Employer to 
s the Executive, or at such later time as such notice may specify; or 

(c) for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3) upon not less than thirty days' prior notice 
from the Executive to the Employer. 

(d) upon termination of employment by Executive for any reason other than for good 
reason (as defined in Section 6.3). 

6.2 DEFINITION OF "FOR CAUSE" 

For purposes of Section 6.1 , the phrase "for cause'' means: (a) the Executive's breach of this 
Agreement which remains uncorrected €or 30 days following notice from the Employer; (b> the 
Executive's failure to adhere to any written Employer policy if the Executive has been given a 
reasonable opportunity to comply with such policy or cure his failure to comply (which reasonable 
opportunity must be granted during the ten-day period preceding termination of this Agreement); 
(c) the appropriation (or attempted appropriation) of a material business opportunity of the 
Employer, including attempting to secure or securing any personal profit in connection with any 
transaction entered into on behalf of the Employer; (d) the misappropriation (or attempted 
misappropriation) of any of the Employer's funds or property; or (e) the conviction of, the 
indictment for (or its procedural equivalent), or the entering of a guiIty plea or plea of no contest with 
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respect to, a felony, the equivalent thereof, or any other crime with respect to which imprisonment 
is a possible punishment. 

6.3 DEFINITION OF "FOR GOOD REASON" 

For purposes of Section 6. I ,  the phrase "for good reason" means any ofthe following: (a) The 
Employer's material breach of this Agreement which is not cured within 30 days fiom the date of 
notice from the Executive; or (b) the requirement by the Employer that the Executive be based 
anywhere other than in the State of Mississippi without the Executive's consent. 

6.4 TERMINATION PAY 

Effective upon the termination of this Agreement, the Employer will be obligated to pay the 
Executive (or, in the event of his death, his designated beneficiary as defined below) only such 
compensation as is provided in this Section 6.4, and in lieu of all other amounts and in settlement 
and complete release of all claims the Executive may have against the ErnpIoyer. For purposes of 
this Section 6.4, the Executive's designated beneficiary will be such individual beneficiary or trust, 
located at such address, as the Executive may designate by notice to the Employer from time to time 
or, if the Executive fails to give notice to the Employer of such a beneficiary, the Executive's estate. 
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Employer will have no duty, in any circumstances, to 
attempt to open an estate on behalf of the Executive, to determine whether any beneficiary 
designated by the Executive is alive or to ascertain the address of any such beneficiary, to determine 
the existence of any trust, to determine whether any person or entity purporting to act as the 
Executive's personal representative (or the trustee of a trust established by the Executive) is duly 
authorized to act in that capacity, or to locate or attempt to locate any beneficiary, personal 
representative, or trustee. 

(a) Termination by the Executive for Good Reason. If the Executive terminates this 
Agreement for good reason, the Employer will pay the Executive the Executive's Salary for the 
remainder of the term of this Agreement (the "Remainder Term") as and when such salary would 
otherwise become due and payable. The Executive shall have the right to retain any Parent Stock 
Warrants previously granted pursuant to Section 3.4 and such Parent Stock Warrants shall 
immediately vest, but the Executive shall not have the right to any fbture Parent Stock Warrants as 
provided in Section 3.4 or any Incentive Compensation as provided in Section 3.2 for the 
Employment Year during which such termination occurs or any subsequent Employment Year. The 
Executive shall have the right to retain the options attributable as provided in Section 3.3 hereof for 
the EmpIoyment Year during which such termination occurs and any prior year and such options 
shall vest immediately, but the EmpIoyee shall not be entitled to retain the options attributable to any 
Employment Year subsequent to the Employment Year during which such termination occurred and 
such options shall expire. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if the Executive obtains other 
employment prior to the end of the Remainder Term, he must promptly give notice thereof to the 
Employer, and the Salary payments under this Agreement for any period after the Executive obtains 
other employment will be reduced by the amount of the cash compensation received and to be 

979033.2/14024.1914 1 8 Draft 5/28/04 (423  PM) 



received by the Executive from the Executive’s other employment for services performed during such 
period. 

(b) Termination by the Employer for Cause or Termination by Executive without Good 
Reason. If the Employer terminates this Agreement for cause or the Executive terminates his 
employment for any reason other than for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3), the Executive will 
be entitled to receive his Salary only through the date such ternination is effective, and will not be 
entitled to any Incentive Compensation, Parent Stock Options or Parent Stock Warrants for the 
Employment Year during which such termination occurs or any subsequent Employment Year and 
any Parent Stock Options granted to the Executive pursuant to Section 3.3 that have not vested and 
any Parent Stock Warrants granted to the Executive whether or not vested pursuant to Section 3.4 
shall be cancelled. 

( c )  Termination upon Death. If this Agreement is terminated because of the Executive’s 
death, the Executive will be entitled to receive his Salary through the end of the calendar month in 
which his death occurs, but will not be entitled to receive any Incentive Compensation, Parent Stock 
Options pursuant to Section 3.3 or Parent Stock Warrants pursuant to Section 3.4 for the 
Employment Year during which his death occurs or any subsequent Employment Year and any 
Parent Stock Options granted to the Executive pursuant to Section 3.3 that have not vested and any 
Parent Stock Warrants granted to the Executive whether or not vested pursuant to Section 3.4 hereof 
shall be cancelled. 

(d) Benefits. The Executive’s accrual of, or participation in plans providing for, the 
Benefits will cease at the effective date of the termination of this Agreement, and the Executive will 
be entitled to accrued Benefits pursuant to such plans only as provided in such plans. The Executive 
will only receive, as part of his termination pay pursuant to this Section 6, any payment or other 
compensation for any vacation, holiday, sick leave, or other leave unused on the date the notice of 
termination is given under this Agreement if the ternination is due to the death of Executive or 
termination by the Executive for Good Reason per Section 6.3. 

6.5 TERMINATION DAMAGES PAYABLE BY EXECUTIVE 

The Executive and the Employer agree that it is impossible to determine with any reasonable 
accuracy the amount of the prospective damages to the Employer if the Executive’s employment is 
terminated for any reason other than death or for good reason (as defined in Section 6.3) by the 
Executive (such termination referred to in this paragraph as “Executive Termination Without 
Cause”). In the event of any Executive Termination Without Cause, the Executive agrees to pay as 
liquidated damages to the Employer an amount equal as follows: 

(a) Ifthe Executive Termination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 1 , then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an amount equal to $171,000.00. 
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(b) If the Executive Tennination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 2, then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an amount equal to $1 14,000.00. 

(c)  If the Executive Termination Without Cause occurs during Employment Year 3, then 
the Executive shall immediately pay to the Employer an amount equal to $57,000.00. 

7. 

7.  I 

NUN-DISCLOSURE 
COMPETE 

COVENANT; EXECUTIVE INVENTIONS; NON- 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BY THE EXECUTIVE 

The Executive acknowledges that (a) during the Employment Period and his prior 
employment period with the Employer's predecessor, the Company, and as a part of his employment 
with the Employer and its predecessor, the Company, the Executive was and will continue to be 
afforded access to Confidential Information; (b) public disclosure of such Confidential Information 
could have an adverse effect on the Employer and its business; (c) because the Executive possesses 
substantial technical expertise and skill with respect to the Employer's business, the Employer desires 
to obtain exclusive ownership ofeach Executive Invention, and the Employer will be at a substantial 
competitive disadvantage if it fails to acquire exclusive ownership of each Executive Invention; 
(d) the Parent and Employer have each required that the Executive make the covenants in this 
Section 7 as a condition to the merger pursuant to the Merger Agreement; and (e) the provisions of 
this Section 7 are reasonable and necessary to prevent the improper use or disclosure of Confidential 
Information and to provide the Employer with exclusive ownership of all Executive Inventions. 

7.2 AGREEMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

In consideration of the compensation and benefits to be paid or provided to the Executive by 
the Employer under this Agreement, the Executive covenants (in addition to but not in lieu of the 
covenants given under that certain Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation and Work-For-Hire Agreement 
dated 6/11/02 which the Executive agrees shall continue in favor of the Employer) as follows: 

Confidentiality. 

(i) During and following the Employment Period, the Executive will hold in 
confidence the Confidential Wormation and wiX1 not disclose it to any person except 
with the specific prior written consent of the Employer or except as otherwise 
expressly permitted by the terns of this Agreement. 

(ii) Any trade secrets ofthe Employer will be entitled to all of the protections and 
benefits under any applicable federal or state trade secret law and any other 
applicable law. If any infomation that the Employer deems to be a trade secret is 
found by a court of competent jurisdiction not to be a trade secret for purposes of this 
Agreement, such information will, nevertheless, be considered Confidential 
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Information for purposes of this Agreement. The Executive hereby waives any 
requirement that the Employer submit proof of the economic value of any trade secret 
or post a bond or other security. 

(iii) None of the foregoing obligations and restrictions applies to any part of the 
Confidential Information that the Executive demonstrates was or became generally 
available to the public other than as ;i result of a disclosure by the Executive. 

(iv) The Executive will not remove from the Employer's premises (except to the 
extent such removal is for purposes of the performance of the Executive's duties at 
home or while traveling, or except as athenvise specifically authorized by the 
Employer) any document, record, notebook, plan, model, component, device, or 
computer software or code, whether embodied in a disk or in any other form 
(collectively, the "Proprietary Items"). The Executive recognizes that, as between the 
Employer and the Executive, all of the Proprietary Items, whether or not developed 
by the Executive, are the exclusive property of the Employer..Upon termination of 
this Agreement by either party, or upon the request of the Employer during the 
Employment Period, the Executive will return to the Employer all of the Proprietary 
Items in the Executive's possession or subject to the Executive's control, and the 
Executive shall not retain any copies, abstracts, sketches, or other physical 
embodiment of any of the Proprietary Items. 

(b) Executive Inventions. Each Executive Invention will belong exclusively to the 
Employer. The Executive acknowledges that all of the Executive's writing, works of authorship, and 
other Executive Inventions are works made for hire and the property of the Employer, including any 
copyrights, patents, or other intellectual property rights pertaining thereto. If it is determined that any 
such works are not works made for hire, the Executive hereby assigns to the Employer all of the 
Executive's right, title, and interest, including all rights of copyright, patent, and other intellectual 
property rights, to or in such Executive Inventions. The Executive covenants that he will promptly: 

disclose to the Employer in writing any Executive Invention; 

(ii) assign to the Employer or to a party designated by the Employer, at the 
Employer's request and without additional compensation, all of the Executive's right 
to the Executive Invention for the United States and all foreign jurisdictions; 

(iii) execute and deliver to the Employer such applications, assignments, and other 
documents as the Employer may request in order to apply for and obtain patents or 
other registrations with respect to any Executive Invention in the United States and 
any foreign jurisdictions; 

(iv) sign all other papers necessary to carry out the above obligations; and 
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(v) 
rights to any Executive Invention. 

give testimony and render any other assistance in support of the Employer's 

7.3 DISPUTES OR CONTROVERSIES 

The Executive recognizes that should a dispute or controversy arising from or relating to this 
Agreement be submitted for adjudication to any court, arbitration panel, or other third party, the 
preservation of the secrecy of Confidential Information may be jeopardized. All pleadings, 
documents, testimony, and records relating to any such adjudication will be maintained in secrecy 
and will be available for inspection by the Employer, the Executive, and their respective attorneys 
and experts, who will agree, in advance and in writing, to receive and maintain all such information 
in secrecy, except as may be limited by them in writing. 

8. NON-COMPETITION AND NON-TNTEWERENCE 

8.1 ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BY THE EXECUTIVE 

The Executive acknowledges that: (a) the services to be performed by him under this 
Agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary, and intellectual character; (b) the 
Employer's business is currently regional in scope and its products are marketed or may be marketed 
throughout the States of Mississippi, Alabama, Louisiana, Georgia, Tennessee, Florida, Kentucky, 
North Carolina or South Carolina (the "Restricted Area"); (c) the Employer competes with other 
businesses that are or could be located in any part of the Restricted Area; (d) the Parent and 
Employer have each required that the Executive make the covenants set forth in this Section 8 as a 
condition to the merger under the Merger Agreement; and (e) the provisions of this Section 8 are 
reasonable and necessary to protect the Employer's business. 

8.2 COVENANTS OF THE EXECUTIVE 

In consideration of the acknowledgments by the Executive, and in consideration of the 
compensation and benefits to be paid or provided to the Executive by the Employer, the Executive 
covenants that he will not, directly or indirectly: 

(a) during the Employment Period, except in the course of his employment hereunder, 
and during the Post-Employment Period, directly or indirectly, either for himself or for any 
partnership, limited liability company, individual, corporation, joint venture or any other entity or 
person "participate in" (as defmed below) any business (including, without limitation, any division, 
group or franchise of a larger organization) which engages in the "Telecommunications Business" 
in the Restricted Area. For purposes ofthis Agreement? "Telecommunications Business" shall mean 
the business of providing any type of telecommunication services or internet access services to any 
person or customer within the Restricted Area, including, without limitation, local, long distance, 
broadband, dial up data services, wireless, DSL, Voice-over-Internet Protocol (VoIP) and any other 
service or product being offered or provided by the Employer or the Parent or any of their respective 

12 DmR 5/28/04 (4:s PM) 



affiliates. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "participate in" shall include, without limitation, 
having any direct or indirect interest in any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, j oint 
venture or other entity, whether as a sole proprietor, owner, shareholder, partner, member, manager, 
joint venturer, creditor or otherwise, or rendering any direct or indirect service or assistance to any 
individual corporation, partnership, limited liability company, j oint venture and other business entity 
(whether as a director, oEcer, manager, supervisor, Executive, agent, consultant or otherwise). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 8.2(a) shall prohibit Executive &om owning 
not more than five percent (5%) of the debt or equity securities of a publicly traded corporation 
which may compete with the Employer or the Parent. 

(b) whether for the Executive's own account or for the account of any other person, at any 
time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, solicit business of the same 
or similar type being carried on by the Employer or its Parent or any of their fliliates, from any 
person known by the Executive to be a customer of the Employer or its Parent or any of their 
affiliates, whether or not the Executive had personal contact with such person during and by reason 
of the Executive's employment with the Employer; 

(e )  whether for the Executive's own account or the account of any other person (i) at any 
time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, solicit, employ, or otherwise 
engage as an Executive, independent contractor, or otherwise, any person who is or was an Executive 
of the Employer at any time during the Employment Period or in the period of employment with the 
Employer's predecessor or in any manner induce or attempt to induce any Executive of the Employer 
to terminate his employment with the Employer; or (ii) at any time during the Employment Period 
and for the Post-Employment Period, interfere with the Employer's relationship with any person, 
including my person who at any time during the Employment Period or the period of employment 
with the Employer's predecessor was an Executive, contractor, supplier, or customer of the Employer 
or its predecessor; or 

(d) at any time during or after the Employment Period, disparage the Employer or its 
Parent or any of their affiliates or any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, Executives, 
or agents. 

For purposes of this Section 8.2, the term "Post-Employment Period" means the two (2)  year 
period beginning on the date of termination of the Executive's employment with the Employer. 

If any covenant in this Section 8.2 is held to be unreasonable, arbitrary, or against public 
policy, such covenant will be considered to be divisible with respect to scope, time, and geographic 
area, and such lesser scope, time, or geographic area, or all of them, as a court of competent 
jurisdiction may determine to be reasonable, not arbitrary, and not against public policy, will be 
effective, binding, and enforceable against the Executive. 

The period of time applicable to any covenant in this Section 8.2 will be extended by the 
duration of any violation by the Executive of such covenant. 
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The Executive will, while the covenant under this Section 8.2 is in effect, give notice to d e  
Employer, within ten days after accepting any other empIoyment, of the identity of the Executive’s 
employer. The Employer may notify such employer that the Executive is bound by this Agreement 
and, at the Employer’s election, M s h  such employer with a copy of this Agreement or relevant 
portions thereof. 

(e) If at any time during the Employment Period and the Post-Employment Period, 
Executive desires to participate in an activity that he believes might be prohibited by this Section 8.2, 
such person may request in writing (a “Clarification Request”) a determination by Employer as to 
whether such proposed activity would violate this Section 8.2. Employer shall respond in writing 
to such Clarification Request (a “Clarification Response”) within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof. 

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND ADDITIONAL REMEDY 

The Executive acknowledges that the injury that would be suffered by the Employer as a 
result of a breach of the provisions of this Agreement (including any provision of Sections 7 and 8) 
would be irreparable and that an award of monetary damages to the Employer for such a breach 
would be an inadequate remedy. Consequently, the Employer will have the right, in addition to any 
other rights it may have, to obtain injunctive relief to restrain any breach or threatened breach or 
otherwise to specifically enforce any provision of this Agreement, and the Employer Will not be 
obligated to post bond or other security in seeking such relief. Without limiting the Employer’s 
rights under this Section 9 or any other remedies of the Employer, if the Executive breaches any of 
the provisions of Section 7 or 8, the Employer will have the right to cease making any payments 
otherwise due to the Executive under this Agreement. 

9.2 COVENANTS OF SECTIONS 7 AND 8 ARE ESSENTIAL AND INDEPENDENT 
COVENANTS 

The covenants by the Executive in Sections 7 and 8 are essential elements of this Agreement, 
and without the Executive’s agreement to comply with such covenants, the Parent and Employer 
would not have consummated the merger under the Merger Agreement and the Employer would not 
have entered into this Agreement or employed or continued the employment of the Executive. The 
Employer and the Executive have independently consulted their respective counsel and have been 
advised in all respects concerning the reasonableness and propriety of such covenants, with specific 
regard to the nature of the business conducted by the Employer. 

The Executive’s covenants in Sections 7 and 8 are independent covenants and the existence 
of any claim by the Executive against the Employer under this Agreement or otherwise, or against 
the Parent, will not excuse the Executive’s breach of any covenant in Section 7 or 8. 
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If the Executive's employment hereunder expires or is terminated, this Agreement will 
continue in full force and effect as is necessary or appropriate to enforce the covenants and 
agreements of the Executive in Sections 7 and 8. 

9.3 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY THE EXECUTIVE 

(a) The Executive represents and warrants to the Employer that the execution and 
delivery by the Executive of this Agreement do not, and the performance by the Executive of the 
Executive's obligations hereunder will not, with or without the giving of notice or the passage of 
time, or both: (a) violate any judgment, writ, injunction, or order of any court, arbitrator, or 
governmental agency applicable to the Executive; or @) conflict with, result in the breach of any 
provisions of or the termination of, or constitute a default under, any agreement to which the 
Executive is a party or by which the Executive is or may be bound. 

(b) The Employer represents and warrants to the Executive that the execution and 
delivery by the Employer of this Agreement do not, and the performance by the Employer of the 

, Employer's obligations hereunder will not, with or without the giving of notice or the passage of 
time, or both: (a) violate any judgment, writ, injunction, or order of any court, arbitrator, or 
governmental agency applicable to the Employer; or (b) conflict With, result in the breach of any 
provisions of or the termination of, or constitute a default under, any agreement to which the 
Employer is a party or by which the Employer is or may be bound. 

9.4 OBLIGATIONS CONTINGENT ON PERFORMANCE 

The obligations of the Employer hereunder, including its obligation to pay the compensation 
provided for herein, are contingent upon the Executive's performance of the Executive's obligations 
hereunder. 

9.5 WAIVER 

The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement are cumulative and not alternative. 
Neither the failure nor any delay by either party in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this 
Agreement will operate as a waiver of such right, power, or privilege, and no single or partial 
exercise of any such right, power, or privilege will preclude any other or further exercise of such 
right, power, or privilege or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. To the maximum 
extent permitted by applicable law, (a) no claim or right arising out of this Agreement can be 
discharged by one party, in whole or in part, by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless 
in writing signed by the other party; (b) no waiver that may be given by a party will be applicable 
except in the specific instance for which it is given; and (c) no notice to or demand on one party will 
be deemed to be a waiver of any obligation of such party or of the right of the party giving such 
notice or demand to take W h e r  action without notice or demand as provided in this Agreement. 

9.6 BINDING EFFECT; DELEGATION OF DUTIES PROHIBITED 
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This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties hereto and 
their respective successors, assigns, heirs, and legal representatives, including any entity with which 
the Employer may merge or consolidate or to which all or substantially all of its assets may be 
transferred- The duties and covenants of the Executive under this Agreement, being personal, may 
not be delegated. 

9.7 NOTICES 

All notices, consents, waivers, and other communications under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) delivered by hand (with written 
confirmation of receipt), (b) sent by facsimile (with written confirmation of receipt), provided that 
a copy is mailed by registered mail, return receipt requested, or (c)  when received by the addressee, 
if sent by st nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case to the 
appropriate addresses and facsimile numbers set forth below (or to such other addresses and 
facsimile numbers as a party may designate by notice to the other parties): 

If to Employer: 

XFone, hc. 
BI-itannia House 
960 High Road 
London, N 129RY 
United Kingdom 
Attention: Guy Nissenson 
Telephone: -1-44 208-446-9494 
Facsimile: +44 208-446-7010 
Email: guy@xfone.com 

with a copy to: 

The Oberon Group, LLC 
79 Madison Ave., 6& Floor 
New York, NY 100 16 
Attention: Adam BresIawsky 
Telephone: 2 12-3 86-7052 
Facsimile: 2 12-447-72 12 
Email: adam@oberongroup.com 

Watkins Ludlam Winter & Stennis, P.A. 
633 North State Street (39202) 
P. 0. Box 427 
Jackson, MS 39205-0427 
Attention: Gina M. Jacobs 
Telephone: 60 1-949-4705 
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.- Facsimile: 601-949-4804 
Email : gjacobs@watkindudlam.com 

If to the Executive: 

Ted Parsons 
604 Turnbeny Lane 
Ridgeland, MS 39157 
Telephone: (H) 601-605-0827 

Facsimile: 601 -420-6503 
Email: tparsons@expetel .corn 

(9) 60 1-420-646 1 

9.8 ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS 

This Agreement, the Merger Agreement, and the documents executed in connection with the 
Merger Agreement, contain the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the 
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be amended orally, 
but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto. 

9.9 GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Mississippi Without regard to 
conflicts of laws principles. 

9.10 JURISDICTION 

Any action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any right arising 
out of, this Agreement may be brought against either of the parties in the courts of the State of 
Mississippi, or, if it has or can acquire jurisdiction, in any of the United States District Courts in 
Mississippi, and each of the parties consents to the jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate 
appellate courts) in any such action or proceeding and waives any objection to venue laid therein. 
Process in any action or proceeding referred to in the preceding sentence may be served on either 
party anywhere in the world. 

9.1 1 SECTION HEADINGS, CONSTRUCTION 

The headings of Sections in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and will not 
affect its construction or interpretation. All references to "Section" or "Sections" refer to the 
corresponding Section or Sections of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All words used in 
this Agreement will be construed to be of such gender or number as the circumstances require. 
Unless otherwise expressly provided, the word "including" does not limit the preceding words or 
t ~ ~ S .  
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9.12 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any 
provision of this Agreement held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will remain in full 
force and effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

9.1 3 COUNTEWARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed 
to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

9.14 WAIVER OF JURY TNAL 

THE PARTES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE A JURY TRIAL IN ANY LITIGATION WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

9.15 IRREVOCABLE PROXY FROM EXECUTIVE 

As a condition to the employment of the Executive, the Executive shall have entered into an 
Irrevocable Proxy in form reasonably satisfactory to Parent in which the Executive agrees to 
irrevocably appoint Guy Nissenson or such other party designated by Parent as proxy to vote the 
Executive's Parent Common Stock or any Parent Common Stock issued to or acquired hereafter by 
the Executive whether from the exercise of any of the Parent Stock Warrants or any other stock 
options or warrants granted hereafter or otherwise until such time as the Executive sells such Parent 
Common Stock. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the 
date above first written above. 

EMPLOYER: 

XFone USA, Inc. 

EXECUTIVE: 

By: 
Guy Nissenson, President Ted Parsons, Individually 
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RELEASE 

This ReIease (this "Release") is entered into by the undersigned officers and directors of the 
Company (as defined herein) (the "Officers and Directors"), effective as of the day of 

, 2004 in connection with the Transaction contemplated by the terns and 
provisions of that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger dated , 2004 (the "Merger 
Agreement") among WS Telecom, hc., a Mississippi corporation (the "Company" and for the 
purposes of this Agreement the Company shall include its wholly owned subsidiaries eXpeTel 
Communications, Inc. and Gulf Coast Utilities, hc.), XFone, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the 
"Parent"), n o n e  USA, hc . ,  a Mississippi corporation (the "Surviving Corporation") and Wade 
Spooner and Ted Parsons. 

WHEREAS, execution of this Release by each of the Officers and Directors of the Company 
is a condition precedent to the Closing of the Merger contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of 
Merger and as such is a material inducement to the Parent and Surviving Corporation in order for 
them to enter into the Merger; and 

WHEREAS, the Parent and Surviving Corporation would not have closed the Merger without 
the execution of this Release by each and everyone of the undersigned Officers and Directors; and 

/ 

WHEREAS, each Officer and Director has agreed to execute this Release. 

NOW, THEREFORE, as additional consideration for the Merger and the covenants, 
representations, agreements and undertakings contained herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged ahd intending to 
be legally bound, the undersigned parties do hereby severally agree as follows: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Recitals. Each of the above referenced recitals is true and correct and incorporated into this 
Release by this reference. 

Merger Apreement. Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the 
Merger Agreement and any amendments thereto. In the event of a conflict between the terns 
of this Release and the terms of the Merger Agreement, the terms and provisions of this 
Release shall govern. All capitalized terms which are not otherwise defined in this Release 
shall have the respective meaning ascribed to such terms in the Merger Agreement. 

Release by Each Officer and Director. Each Officer and Director hereby severally releases 
and forever discharges the Company, the Parent and the Surviving Corporation and each of 
their respective officers, directors, partners, shareholders, members, employees and their 
successors and assigns (collectively, I' Releasees") of and from any and all claims, causes or 
rights of action, demands and damages of every kind and nature which such Officer or 
Director may now have, whether known or unknown, anticipated or unanticipated and 
whether accrued or hereafter to accrue, against Releasees, caused by or arising out of or in 
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.- any way related to the following: (i) the business, affairs, actions or omissions of the 
Company andlor the Officers or Directors or any other employee or independent contractor 
of the Company through the date of Closing under the Merger Agreement; (ii) such Officer's 
or Director's direct or beneficial ownership or interests in the Company, if any; (iii) such 
Officer's or Director's status as an OEcer or Director or shareholder of the Company; (iv) 
any action or omission by any of the Officers or Directors of the Company, or any other 
employees or independent contractors of the Company through the date of Closing under the 
Merger Agreement; (v) any claims of such Officer or Director arising out of or relating in any 
manner to any prior business relationship or service of or with respect to the Company 
through the date of Closing under the Merger Agreement, and (vi) any and all agreements, 
events or occurrences by, between or among any Officer or Director andor the Company 
prior to Closing or relating in any manner to this Merger, including, without limitation, any 
tax analysis with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement or 
otherwise, or calculation for the distribution of the Aggregate Merger Consideration under 
the Merger Agreement. 

4. Compromise. Each Oficer and Director agrees that ths settlement is a compromise of 
doubtful and disputed claims through the date of Closing under the Merger Agreement, and 
that the agreement to pay the consideration recited herein is not to be construed as an 
admission of any liability whatsoever by Releasees and that Releasees expressly deny any 
such liability. 

5. Scope of Release. Each Officer and Director agrees that the consideration for this release 
was paid to secure full, complete, and final discharge of Releasees fiom any and all claims, 
demands, actions, or causes of action that any of the undersigned Officers or Directors of the 
Company may have against the Releasees as of the date hereof with respect to matters hereby 
released as set forth in paragraph 3 hereof, and each of the Officers or Directors of the 
Company hereby agree that such claims, demands, actions, or causes of action are wholly and 
forever satisfied and extinguished. 

6. Covenant Not to Sue. Each Officer and Director wiI1 forever refiain and desist fiom 
instituting, prosecuting, or asserting against Releasees, or any of them, any further claim, 
demand, action, cause of action or suit of any kind or nature, either directly or indirectly, on 
account of matters hereby releases as set forth in paragraph 3 hereof. 

7. No Prior Assignment. Each Officer and Director specifically acknowledges, covenants, 
represents and warrants that there has been no assignment of any right or claim released 
hereby and that each Officer and Director will, severally, as with respect to actions by any 
such Officer and Director defend and hold harmless Releasees with respect to any matters 
hereby released. 

8. Authority. Each Officer and Director represents and wmmts that each are fully competent 
and authorized to execute this Release, and that upon execution this Release will be valid and 
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9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

binding upon each of them. Each Officer and Director represent and warrant that the 
undersigned constitute all of the Directors and Officers of the Company. Releasees represent 
and warrant that they are fully competent and authorized to execute this Release, and that 
upon execution this Release will be valid and binding upon each of them. 

Acknowledgment. Each Officer and Director represents and warrants that the terms of this 
Release have been read, voluntarily accepted, understood by each such Oficer and Director 
or explained to each such Officer and Director by its attorney(s), and agreed to and approved 
by its attorney(s). Each Officer and Director further represents and warrants that it has relied 
upon its own judgment, knowledge and belief as to the nature and extent of any damages 
which may have been suffered or sustained, or may be sustained in the future, with regard 
to the items released hereby under paragraph 3 hereof. 

Entire Agreement. This Release constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with 
respect to the releases contemplated hereby. All prior to or contemporaneous agreements, 
understandings, representations, warranties and statements, oral or written are hereby 
superceded. Any alterations or additions shall be effective only if reduced to writing, dated 
and signed by the party against whom the enforcement thereof is or may be sought. 

Waiver. No waiver of a breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Release 
by any party shall be construed or held to be a waiver of any succeeding or preceding breach 
of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. No waiver of any 
default by any party hereunder shall be implied from any omissions by either party to take 
any action on account of such default. If such default persists or is repeated, and no express 
waiver shall af'fect a default other than as specified in such waiver. 

Severability. If any tern, provision, covenant or condition of this Release is held to be 
invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable to any extent by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
the remainder of this Release shall not be affected thereby, and each tern, provision, 
covenant or condition of this Release shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

Successors. Subject to the restriction on assignment provided herein, all terms of this 
Release shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 

Assimment. No party hereto shall assign their respective rights, obligations or interest under 
this Release in any manner. 

Headings. The captions and paragraph headings used in this Release are inserted for 
convenience of reference only and are not intended to define, limit or affect the interpretation 
or construction of any tern or provision hereof. 
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Counterparts. This Release may be executed in multiple copies, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one Agreement binding on all parties. 

Facsimile Signatures. In order to expedite the Merger contemplated herein, telecopied 
signatures may be used in place of original signatures on this Release. All parties hereto 
intend to be bound by the signatures on the telecopied document, are aware that other parties 
will rely on the telecopied signatures, and hereby waive any and all defenses to the 
enforcement of the terns of t h ~ s  Release based on the form of signature. 

Governing Law. This Release shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Mississippi. 

Effective Date. The terms and provisions of t h i s  Release shall be effective upon Closing of 
the Transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Officer and Director set forth below has executed this 
Release as of the Effective Date. 

DIRECTORS: OFFICERS : 

Wade Spooner Wade Spooner, President and CEO 

Ted Parsons Ted Parsons, Executive Vice President and Chief 
Marketing Officer 

Lisa DUM, SecretarylTreasurer 

Ted Carter, Vice President, Internal Operations 

Kent Turner, Director-Network Facilities 

Bill Moore, Director-Infunnation Technologies 

j 
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Wade Spooner 

Chairman, CEO and President 

Prior to founding eXpeTeI Communications, Wade Spooner, the Company's Chairman, CEO 
and President, was the President and Chief Operating Officer of LSCI Telecommunications, 
Inc., an integrated Regional Local Exchange Carrier with operations in Mississippi and 
Louisiana. Prior to joining LSCI, Spooner worked with competitive telecommunications 
service providers, most recently serving as Director of Technical Operations for 
ITC*DeltaCom, Inc. (NASDAQ: ITCD), a publicly traded Competitive Local Exchange 
Carrier (CLEC) and fiber optic network provider, and served as Chairman and CEO for I.T. 
GROUP Communications, a reg iona I, facilities- based, voice and data cornmu nica tions 
company operating out of Jackson, Mississippi. I.T.GROUP Communications was 
subsequently acquired by ITC*DeltaCom. Spooner received a B.S. Degree in Petroleum 
Engineering from Mississippi State University. 

Ted Parsons 

Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer 

Ted Parsons has served as a board member of the Company since its inception, and is the 
Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer, responsible for business 
development, regulatory, marketing, product management and sales. Prior to  this, Parsons 
served as Sr. Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Product Management in the wholesale 
CLEC industry working for Thrifty Call in Austin, Texas from 1999 through 2001. Parsons, 
while a t  Thrifty Call, developed and managed the sales and marketing operations to the 
next level, and was responsible for the successful management of $loo+ million in 
revenue. Parsons worked with ITC*DeltaCom as Regional Director of Sales for the 
Mississippi-Arkansas Region, after successfully selling his former Cornpan-ry, LT. GROUP 
Communications, a regional, facilities-based, voice and data communications Company 
operating out of Jackson, Mississippi, to 1TC"DeltaCom in 1998. Parsons had a successful 
career at I.T. GROUP, serving as founder, President and Chief Operations Officer since its 
inception in 1991. Parsons received a 8 .S .  in Marketing from the University of Mississippi. 



Ted Carter 

Vice President of Internal Operations 

Ted Carter serves as Vice President of Internal Operations, overseeing the daily operations 
of Customer Service, Provisioning, Billing and Collections. Carter is a founding shareholder 
and prior to  his current position, served as Director of Interconnection Sewices, 
Provisioning and Billing. Carter continues to be the point man on all Interconnection 
Services for the Company. Prior to joining the Company in March 2001, Carter served as 
Interconnection Manager for LSCI Telecommunications, Inc., and integrated Regional Local 
Exchange Carrier with operations in Mississippi and Louisiana. Carter played a key role in 
the development and establishment of the Resale and Facility-based Interconnection 
Agreement between LSCI and BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Carter served as Service 
Coordinator for ITC*DeltaCom and Circuit Design Engineer for Intermedia 
Communications, Inc. (ICI) in Tampa, FL, designing Frame Relay circuits for the Florida 
State Government Agencies. Carter also was a Circuit Design/Provisioner for WorldCom 
and spent 19 years in many capacities with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Carter 
received his BLS from MilIsaps College in Jackson, Mississippi. 

Trevor Drake 

Director of Sales 

Trevor Drake is a results-oriented professional with over a decade of sales and 
management experience in the telecommunications industry. Prior to joining eXpeTel, 
Drake served as Application Sales Engineer for Cavalier Telephone, a CLEC located in 
Washington, DC. Drake provided voice and data design applications for Major Accounts. 
Drake also served as Sales Engineer for Advanced Telecom Group in Northern Virginia, 
providing technical and sales support for the Virginia and Maryland ofices. Prior to  his 
career in the telecommunications industry, Drake served as Vice President of Marketing for 
Factual Data/Credit Services, Inc. a credit reporting company located in Memphis, 
Tennessee. Drake received his B.S. in Biology from Middle Tennessee State University. 



Bill Moore 

Director of Information Technologies 

Bill Moore serves as Director of Information Technologies, and is responsible for the 
Company’s computer services, networking, Intranet, Internet, and business application 
needs. Prior to joining eXpeTeI, Moore served as Senior Technical Lead and Senior 
Application Developer for WorldCom, Inc. where he lead a team tasked to build a Human 
Resources Data Warehouse that would support a suite of business applications and 
processes. Stationed a t  the company Corporate Head Quarters for WorldCom, Inc. in 
Clinton, Mississippi, Moore had the opportunity to be a part of and lead several different I T  
teams. Some of which dealt with the automation of certain functions of WorldCom’s Local 
and Long Distance service provisioning. Other teams and projects included building a 
Corporate Intranet and developing business applications that would make internal business 
more efficient and effective. Moore has gained 10 years of experience in the I T  field. Moore 
received his B.S. in Computer Science from Mississippi State University. 

Kurt Turner 

Director of Network Facilities 

Kurt Turner serves as Director of Network Facilities, overseeing the engineering, planning, 
provisioning and maintenance of the Company’s carrier switch and network. The Company 
utilizes a Class 5 Carrier telephony switch manufactured by Taqua t o  deliver feature rich 
telephony services to  its customers. Prior to his role as Director of Network Facilities 
Turner served as Manager of Provisioning here at eXpeTel Communications. Prior to joining 
the company Turner worked for Cincinnati Bell, Broadwing where he served as Provisioning 
Manager successfully forecasting and meeting revenue projections exceeding $100,000 
monthly and overseeing the design, provisioning, installation, and turn up of D S l  and DS3 
circuits. Turner has also served MCI, WorldCom as a Circuit Design / Provisioner and 
Cingular Wireless as a Project Manager / Provisioner. Turner began his telecommunications 
career in the U.S. ARMY were he was responsible for installation, operation, and 
maintenance of GTE switching Systems, Cellular Systems, and Digital UHF, SHF, VHF, 
multi-channel line-of-sight transmission equipment. Relevant Certifications include Taqua 
Certified OCX OAM&P, and GTE Certified MSE with Honors. 



Lisa Dunn 

Director of Accounting and Human Resources 

Lisa D u m  serves as Treasurer and Director of Accounting and Human Resources. Dunn is 
responsible for accounting operations and human resource functions. Dum, prior to joining 
the Company in 2002, was co-founder in the Jackson, Mississippi based accounting firm 
Dunn & Nabors and prior to this D u m  worked as a CPA for Horne CPA Group and Koury 
Boleware & Associates, both companies located in Jackson, Mississippi. Dum received her  
B.S. in Accounting from Belhaven College and earned her Masters of Accountancy from 
Millsaps College. Dunn earned her CPA designation in 1998. 
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Notice of Change in Local and Long Distance Service Provider 

WS Telecom, Inc. d/b/a Expetel Xfone USA, Inc. 

Dear Current Expetel Customer: 

WS Telecom, Inc. d/b/a Expetel ("Expetel") and Xfone USA, Inc.("USA") have entered into 
an agreement whereby, subject to the regulatory approval, Expetel will merge with and into USA and 
USA will become your telecommunication service provider. USA anticipates becoming your 
telecommunications provider on [date] or shortly thereafter. 

This change in ownership will not affect or in any way disrupt your current service. The 
rates and terms and conditions ofthe services offered by USA will be the same as those offered 
by Expetel. A copy of USA' s rates, terms and conditions for local exchange and long distance 
services is attached hereto . No charges or fees will be imposed and no rate increase will occur as 
a result of this transaction. 

You have a choice of carriers . If you do not wish to remain a customer, you may change 
carriers and such change will be at Network' s expense. 

USA will make every effort to resolve outstanding Expetel customer complaints . The toll 
free Customer Service number will remain the same and if you have any questions, please call one 
of our Customer Service Representatives at 1-800-[ ]. 

All customers receiving this notice, including those who have arranged preferred carrier 
freezes through their local service providers, will be transferred to USA if a different preferred 
carrier is not selected before [date]. 

We at USA are pleased to welcome you to our team and would like to express our 
appreciation for allowing us the opportunity ofbeing your telecommunication service provider. We 
are confident that you will be pleased with the high quality of our service. 
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W. S. Telecom, Inc. and Subsidiary Gulf Coast Utilites, Inc. 

Combined Balance Sheet 
As of March 31, 2004 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 


Cash 

Accounts Receivable, Net 


Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets, Net 

Other Assets 


Prepaid Expenses 


Deferred Liability - Bel/South 


Deposits 


Total Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

liabilities 


Current liabilities 


Long Term Liabilities 


Disputed Charges - BeliSouth 


Total liabilities 

Equity 
Common Stock, $0.001 Par Value, 40,000,000 shares authorized, 

22,945,422 issued 

Preferred Stock, 2,000,000 shares authorized, 2,000,000 shares issued 
Paid In Capital 

Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

137,778.71 
497,334 .24 
635,112.95 

1,330,344 .82 

14,89704 
260,737.97 

24,632 .00 
300,267.01 

2,265,724.78 

1,122,870.50 

414,327.92 
260,737.97 

1,797,936.39 

22,945.42 
1,000,000.00 

86 ,239.95 
(745,145.78) 
103,748.80 
467,788.39 

2,265,724.78 



W. S. Telecom, Inc. and Subsidiary Gulf Coast Utilites, Inc. 

Combined Monthly Profit and Loss Statement 

For the Period Ended March 31, 2004 

January 

Income 454,594 .65 

Cost of Goods Sold 254,855.59 

Gross Profit 199,739.06 

Expense 

Tax - State Income 0.00 

401 (k) Plan Expense 2,068.50 

Administration Fee 20.00 

Advertising & Marketing Expense 2,050.73 

Auto Expense 107.93 

Bad Debt Expense 14,844.19 

Bank Fees Expense 770.32 

Billing Service Expense 15,757.20 

Bond Expense 1,550.00 

Collection Fees Expense (126.92) 

Computerllnternet Expense 626.95 

Contract Labor 1,412 .53 

Contributions 0.00 

Credit Card Fees 576.64 

Document Storage Expense 44.00 

Dues & Subscriptions Exp 475.00 

Insurance Expense 1,620,40 

Insurance Exp - Group Benefits 7,282 .76 

Leased Furniture & Equip Exp 999.23 

Legal & Regulatory Expense 3,909,44 

Meals & Entertainment Expense 79 .70 

Miscellaneous Customer Expense 14.73 

Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 

Office Supplies/Printing Exp 1,634.52 

Parts & Supplies Expense 4,439.02 

Payroll Tax Expense 10,409.93 

Postage & Shipping Expense 157.81 

Rent Expense 5,878.33 

Repairs & Maint - Telephones 256.80 

Repairs & Maint - Cable Boxes 255,46 

Repairs & Maint - Plant 158.00 

Salary Expense 93,805.24 

Small Balance Write Ofts (3 .31 ) 

Software Expense 1,950.59 

Taxes - Other 154.73 

Telephone Expense 772.96 

Travel Expense 1,739.16 

Utilities Expense 274.59 

February 

489,243.61 

270,016.74 

219,226.87 

0.00 

1,173.58 

20.00 

2,085.06 

78.11 

12,4 70 .00 

696.15 

14,749.39 

0.00 

(174.65) 

703,42 

1,778.74 

48.00 

636.07 

44 .00 

0.00 

1,620,40 

7,643.25 

1,378 .90 

1,803.25 

92 .01 

468,44 

(284 .56) 

1,169.93 

265.15 

11 ,019 .61 

293.24 

5,878.33 

201.91 

0.00 

0.00 

86,601 .96 

(2 .10) 

2,283 .92 

473.96 

794.08 

1,673.17 

176.68 

March TOTAL 

484,675,44 1,428,513.70 

271,925.20 796 ,797.53 

212 ,750.24 631,716.17 

75 .00 75 .00 

1,404.30 4 ,646.38 

20.00 60 .00 

2,980.96 7,116.75 

117.59 303.63 

14,482,47 41 ,796.66 

696.66 2,163.13 

17,068.23 47,574.82 

0.00 1,550.00 

(177.10) (478 .67) 

540.18 1,870.55 

2,030,47 5,221 .74 

400.00 448.00 

689.05 1,901.76 

44.00 132.00 

0.00 475.00 

1,620,40 4,861 .20 

7,557.51 22,483.52 

1,272.52 3,650.65 

2,918.95 8,631.64 

537.83 709.54 

67 .22 550.39 

425.00 140,44 

1,494.19 4,298.64 

296.72 5,000.89 

7,429.52 28,859.06 

1,690.32 2,141 .37 

5,878.33 17,634.99 

474.34 933 .05 

0.00 255,46 

135.00 293.00 

85 ,956.33 266,363.53 

(4.00) (9,41 ) 

2,283.92 6,518,43 

225.64 854 .33 

836,45 2,403,49 

2,702 .81 6,115.14 

299.59 750.86 



Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 

Contract Term Revenue 

Bad Debt Recovery Income 

Miscellaneous Income 

Interest Income 

Tax Discounts & Admin Fees 

Total Other Income 

Depreciation/ Amort Expense 

Interest Expense 

Customer Acquisition Expense 

Legal Expense - Contr Trm Coli 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

175,967.16 

23 ,771.90 

6,892 .64 

189.92 

604.00 

901 .12 

12.53 

8,600.21 

8 ,149A8 

2,625.84 

16,177.50 

4105 

26,993.87 

(18,39366) 

5,378.24 

157,859AO 

61 ,367A7 

639.06 

177.03 

2,486A4 

9.86 

12.55 

3,324.94 

8 ,149A8 

3,542 .21 

4,502.00 

700.00 

16,893.69 

(13,568 75) 

47,798.72 

164,470AO 498,296.96 

48,279.84 133,419.21 

3,950.24 

428 .81 

12,910.15 

69A9 

11.64 

17,370.33 

11 ,481 .94 

795.76 

16,000.59 

980A7 

36.72 

29 ,295A8 

8,159.15 

1,976.62 

4,942.56 

0.00 

15,078.33 

24,458 .11 

8,144.67 

25,622 .06 

74105 

58,965.89 

2,292 .00 (29 ,670A1 ) 

50,571.84 103,748.80 



--------------------------------------

-------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------

If rate of inflation will cause a raise in salaries or other expenses and the 
market conditions will not allow us to raise prices proportionally, it will have 
a negative effect on the value of our assets and on our potential profitability. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Xfone, Inc. and Subsidiary 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Xfone, Inc. and 
Subsidiary as of December 31, 2003 the related consolidated statements of 
operati ons, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the two 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 



statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used in 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Xfone, Inc. and Subsidiary as 
of December 31, 2003 and the results of their operations and their cash flows 
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

CHAIFETZ & SCHREIBER, P.C. 
21 Harbo r Park Drive N. 
Port Washington, NY 11050 
March 31, 2004 
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XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION > 

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 2 

2003 200 3 

Convenience translatior 

<S> <C> <C > 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash (pound) 977,008 $ 1,739,074 

Acco unts receivable, net 1,263,824 2,249,607 
Prepaid expenses, other receivables and deposits 340,944 606,880 
Loan to shareholder 54,070 96,245 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,635,846 4,691,806 

Loan to shareholder 232,666 414,145 

FIXED l',SSETS 
Cost 559,786 996,419
Less - accumulated depreciation (138,071) (245,767) 

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 421,715 750,652 

TOTAL ASSETS (pound) 3, 290, 227 $5,856,603
</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these c o nsolidated financial 

statements. 
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XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

<TABLE> 

<CAPTION> 


DECEMBER 31, 


2003 

Convenience 

<S> <C> 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade payables (pound) 1, 6 37,430 
Dividend payable 86,270 
Notes payable - current portion 4,000 
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 379,809 
Obligations under capital leases - current portion 66,774 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,174,283 
Deferred taxes 36,109 
Notes payable 3 ,166 
Obligation under capital leases 86,563 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,300,121 

SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY 
Preferred stock - 50,000,000 shares authorized, 

none issued 

Common stock: 
25,000,000 shares authorized, (pound) .00068 9 6 par value; 
5,11 7 ,684 issued and outstanding 3,530 
Contributions in excess of shares 193,514 
Retained earnings 793,062 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 990,106 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (pound)3,2 90,227 

< / TABLE> 

The acc ompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial 

statements. 
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XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

<TABLE > 
<CAPTION> 

[ 

tr 

<c 

$ 

$ 

YEARS ENDED 

DECEI'1BER 31, 



--------------

-------- -- -- - -

--------------

----- -- -------

-------- - ---- - - -- -----

---- - --------- ---- - ---

-------- - ---- - - - ------

-------------- - -- -----

-- - -------- ----------- - ------------------------ - ----- - ------ - ----- - ----- - ----- - -

- ------- - --- - ------------ - ------------------- ----- - ----- - ----------------- - -----

-----------

- -- --- - ----

--------- - -

-------- - --

--------- - -

---------- -

------- - -----

--------------

--------------

2003 2002 200~ 

Conveni enc 

<S> <C > <C> <C> 
Re venues (pound) 7,2 82 ,1 81 (pound ) 3 , 7 41, 43 6 $ 12 , 96 2 
Cost o f reve nues (exc l us ive o f depr ec i at i on 

shown separate l y in Not e (13)) (4 ,4 2 7, 939) (2 ,1 94, 792) (7 , 881 

2 , 854 ,242 1,54 6 , 64 4 5 , 08C 

OPERATI NG EXPEN SES: 

Research and deve l opme nt (44, 553) (32 , 000) (7 S 

Mar ke ting a nd se lling (1, 09 1,012 ) (32 0 , 418) (1, 942 

Gene ral and administrat i ve (1, 052 ,310) (878, 624) (1, 87~ 


To t a l ope ra ting expenses (2 ,1 87 , 875) (1, 23 1, 0 42) (3 , 89 4 

3 1 5 , 60 2 1,18 E 
Opera t ing p r ofit 666 , 367 315 , 602 1,18E 
Fi nancin g expense s - net (44 ,283 ) (1 2 , 837) (78 
Othe r income 1 5 ,817 11, 029 28 

Income be f ore t axes 637 , 90 1 31 3 ,794 1,135 
Taxes on i ncome (2 1 6 ,4 56) (72 , 8 13) (3 85 

Ne t income (pound)42 1,44 5 (pound)24 0 , 98 1 $ 75C 
=== ====== ===== ==== = ======== = ==== ==== 

EARN I NGS PER SHARE : 

Ba s i c (pound) 0 . 08 (pound)0 .05 c:: 


y 

Dil uted (pou nd)0 . 08 (pound )0.04 c:: 
y 

</TABLE > 

The a ccompan ying notes are an i nt egral part of these consolidat ed fin an cial 

statements . 
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XFONE, I NC . AN D SUBS I DI ARY 

CONSOLI DATED STATEMEN TS OF CHANGES IN SHARE HOLDERS ' EQUITY 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI ON> 

NUMBER OF CON TRI BUTION S 
OR DI NAR Y SHARE I N EXCESS OF 

SHARES CAP ITAL PAR VALUE 

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Ba l ance at Ja n u a ry 1, 2002 5 , 000 , 000 (pound)3 , 448 (pound) 1 40 , 903 (pc
I ssuance o f shares 60 , 889 42 3 9,31 6
Ne t income 
Dividend 

Ba l ance a t De cember 31 , 20 02 5 , 060 ,88 9 (pound)3, 490 (pound)1 80 , 21 9 (pc 



Balance at January 1, 2003 5,060,889 3,490 180,219 
Issuance of shares 56 ,7 95 40 13,295 
Net income 
Dividend 

Balance at December 31, 2003 5,117,684 (pound)3 , 530 (pound)193 ,514 (pc 

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION I NTO U.S. $: 
Balance at January 1, 2003 5,060,889 $ 6 , 212 $ 320 , 790 
I ssuance o f shares 56 , 795 71 23 , 665 
Net income 
Dividend 
Balance at December 31, 2003 5,117, 684 $ 6,283 $ 344,455 

=========== =========== 

</TABLE > 

The accompanying no t es are an integral part o f these conso lidat ed financial 
statements . 

F-5 

<PAGE> 

XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAS H FLOWS 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

YEARS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31 , 

2003 2002 

Conv€ 

<S> <C> <C> < 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net income (pound)421,445 (pound)240 , 98 1 $ 

Adjustments to reconcile net in come to net cash 

provided by operating activiti es 298 ,159 48 ,1 45 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERAT ING ACTIV ITIES 719,604 289 ,1 26 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACT I VITIES 
Investmen t s (515 )
Purchase of equipment (108 ,270) (71 , 553) 

NET CAS H USED IN INVESTI NG ACTIVITIES (l08,270) (72 ,068) 


CAS H FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of long term debt (4 , 001 ) (34 , 921)

Repayment of capital lease obligation (55 , 862) 

Proceeds from sa l e o f fixed assets 
 3 , 500 
Proceeds from issuance o f common stock 13,335 10 , 583 
Dividend paid (63 , 261) 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (106 ,289) (24 , 338 ) 

Net increase in cash 505 , 045 1 92 , 720
Cash , beginning of year 471 , 963 279 , 243 



Cash, at end of year (pound) 977, 008 (pound)471,963 $ 

Supplement disclosures of cash flow information: 

NET CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR: 

Income taxes (pound ) 14,044 (pound)41,723 


Interest (pound) 11, 213 (pound ) 12,816 


<CAPTION> 
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
For the year ended December 31: 

2003 2002 

ConvE 

<S> <C> <C> 

Convenience translation into U.S.$ 

Acquired equipment under capital lease obligation (pound)86,316 (pound)26,002 

Issuance of 45,014 shares o f common stock for 28,775 


Compensation for professional services 
</TABLE> 

The accompanying notes are an integral part o f these consolidated financial 
statements. 
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XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont.) 

(1 ) ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

YEARS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 

2003 2002 2003 

Convenienc 

<S> <C> <C> <C > 
Depreciation (pound)89,592 (pound)58,300 $ 15S 
Bad debt expense 109,532 226,984 194 
Stock issued for professional services 28,775 

199,124 314,059 354 

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 
Increase in accounts receivable (412,627) (460,754) (734 
Increase in other receivables (160,359) (65,570 ) (28~ 
Decrease (increase) in shareholder loans 16,394 (20,783) 2S 
Increase in trade payables 461,247 214,607 821 
Increase in other payables 183,271 61,586 32E 
Increase in deferred taxes 11,109 IS5,000 



Total adjustments 	 99,035 (265,914) l7E 

(pound)298 ,159 (pound) 48,14 5 $ 53C 

</TABLE > 

The accompanying notes are an integral part o f these consolidated financial 

statements. 
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XFONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 	 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

A. 	 Xfone, Inc. ( "Xfone") was inco rporated in Nevada, U.S.A. in 
September, 2000 and is a provider of l on g distance voice and 
data telecommunications services, primarily in the United 
Kingdom. The financial statements consolidate the operations 
of Xfone and Swiftnet, Limited ("Swiftnet"), its wholly owned 
U.K. 	 subsidiary, (collectively the "Company ") 

s. 	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 
Sterling ( "(pound)") since this is the currency of the prime 
economic environment, the U.K., in which the operations of 
the Company are conducted . Transaction s and balances 
denominated in Sterling are presented at their o riginal 
amounts. Transactions and balances in other currencies are 
translated into Sterling in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 52 of the U.S. 
Financial Accounting Standards Board ( "FASB " ) . Accordingly, 
items ha ve been translated as follows: 

Monetary items - at the exchange rate effective at the balance 
shee t date. 

Revenues and expense items - at the exchange rates in effect 
at the date of recognition of those items. 

Exc hange gains and l oss es from the aforementioned translation 
are included in finan c ing expenses, net. 

C. 	 The financial statements have been translated int o U.S. 
dollars using the rate of exchange of the U.S. dollar at 
December 31, 2003. The translation was made solely for the 
convenience of the readers. It should be noted that the 
(pound) figures do not necessarily represent the current cost 
amounts of the various elements presented and that the 
translated U.S. dollar figures shou ld not be construed as a 
representation that the (pound) currency a mo unts actually 
represented, or could be converted into, U.S. dollars. The 
representative rate of exchange of the (pound ) at December 31, 
20 03 was (pound)l = 1.7 8 U.S.$. 
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